CRRA
BOARD MEETING
Sept. 27, 2012




CONNECTICUT
RESOURCES
RECOVERY
AUTHORITY

100 Constitution Plaza « Hartford « Connecticut * 06103 « Telephone (860)757-7700
Fax (860)757-7745

MEMORANDUM

TO: CRRA Board of Directors

FROM: Moira Benacquista, HR Specialist/Board Administrator
DATE: Sept. 21, 2012

RE: Notice of Regular Board Meeting

There will be a Regular Board Meeting of the Connecticut Resources Recovery
Authority Board of Directors on Thursday, Sept. 27, 2012, at 9:30 a.m. The meeting will
be held in the Board Room at CRRA Headquarters, 100 Constitution Plaza, Hartford,
CT 06103.

Please notify this office of your attendance at (860) 757-7787 at your earliest
convenience.




1.

1L

Iv.

Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority
Regular Board of Directors Meeting
Agenda
Sept. 27,2012
9:30 AM

Pledge of Allesiance

Public Portion

A Y2 hour public portion will be held and the Board will accept written testimony and
allow individuals to speak for a limit of three minutes. The regular meeting will
commence if there is no public input.

Minutes

1.

Board Action will be sought for the Approval of the Regular July 26, 2012,
Board Meeting Minutes (Attachment 1).

Board Action will be sought for the Approval of the Special Sept. 6, 2012,
Board Meeting Minutes (Attachment 2).

Board Committee Reports

A.

Finance Committee Reports

. Board Action will be sought Regarding Approval of Insurance Renewals

(Attachment 3).

. Board Action will be sought Regarding Approval of the 2012 Year End Audit

(Attachment 4).

Policies & Procurement Committee

. Board Action will be sought for the Resolution Regarding Use of Hartford

Landfill Closure Reserve (Attachment 5).

. Board Action will be sought for the Resolution Regarding Cover Soil Delivery

Agreement (Attachment 6).

Board Action will be sought for the Resolution Regarding Cover Soil
Agreement (Attachment 7).

Board Action will be sought for the Resolution Regarding the Sale of
Corrugated Cardboard and Old Newspaper (Attachment 8).

Board Action will be sought for the Resolution Regarding PILOT for Host
Community (Attachment 9).

Board Action will be sought for the Resolution Regarding CRRA’s
Membership in the Connecticut Conference of Municipalities (Attachment 10).




VI

7. Discussion — Potential Amendment to the Legal Services Agreement with
Brown Rudnick.

Chairman and President’s Reports

Executive Session

An Executive Session will be held to discuss pending litigation, trade secrets,
personnel matters, security matters, pending RFP’s, and feasibility estimates and
evaluations.




TAB 1




CONNECTICUT RESOURCES RECOVERY AUTHORITY

FOUR HUNDRED AND THIRTY ONE JULY 26, 2012

A regular meeting of the Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority Board of Directors was
held on Thurs. July 26, 2012, in the Board Room at 100 Constitution Plaza, Hartford, CT 06103. Those
present were:

Directors: Chairman Don Stein
John Adams
Ryan Bingham
David Damer (present by telephone from 9:30 a.m. — 11:30 p.m.)
Timothy Griswold
Ted Martland
Pedro Segarra
Scott Slitka (present by telephone from 10:45 a.m. -11:30 p.m.)
Steve Edwards, Bridgeport Project Ad-Hoc
Bob Painter, Mid-Connecticut Project Ad-Hoc

Present from CRRA in Hartford:

Tom Kirk, President

Jeff Duvall, Director of Budgets and Forecasting

Peter Egan, Director of Environmental Affairs and Operations
Laurie Hunt, Director of Legal Service

Paul Nonnenmacher, Director of Public Affairs

Jim Perras, Government Relations Liaison

Moira Benacquista, Board Secretary/Paralegal

Marianne Carcio, Executive Assistant

Others present: Dave Aldrige, SCRRRA; John Pizzimenti, USA Hauling; and Cheryl Thibeault,
Covanta. '

Chairman Stein called the meeting to order at 9:35 a.m. and said a quorum was present. A brief
introduction of the newest Board members was undertaken.

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE MAY 17,2012 BOARD MEETING

Chairman Stein requested a motion to approve the minutes of the May 17, 2012, Special Board
Meeting. Director Martland made a motion to approve the minutes, which was seconded by Director
Griswold.

The motion previously made and seconded was approved by roll call. Chairman Stein, Director
Damer, Director Griswold, Director Martland, and Director Painter voted yes. Director Adams, Director
Bingham, Director Freedman, and Director Segarra abstained. '




Directors Aye | Nay | Abstain
Chairman Donald Stein X

John Adams X
Ryan Bingham X
David Damer X

Joel Freedman X
Timothy Griswold X

Ted Martland X

Pedro Segarra X
Ad-Hocs

Steve Edwards, Bridgeport

Bob Painter, Mid-Ct X

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE MAY 31, 2012 BOARD MEETING

Chairman Stein requested a motion to approve the minutes of the May 31, 2012, Regular Board
Meeting. Director Martland made a motion to approve the minutes, which was seconded by Director
Bingham.

Director Segarra asked how far into the appraisal process management was. Chairman Stein
replied that appraisers had been appointed to be on call but at this point in time no appraisal have been
undertaken.

The motion previously made and seconded to approve the minutes was approved by roll call.
Chairman Stein, Director Bingham, Director Damer, Director Edwards, Director Griswold, Director
Martland, and Director Painter voted yes. Director Adams, Director Freedman, and Director Segarra
abstained.

Directors Aye | Nay | Abstain
Chairman Donald Stein X

John Adams X
Ryan Bingham X

David Damer X

Joel Freedman X
Timothy Griswold X

Ted Martland X

Pedro Segarra X
Ad-Hocs

Steve Edwards, Bridgeport X

Bob Painter, Mid-Ct X

FINANCE COMMITTEE




Mr. Kirk noted that the supplemental package contains the year end data as of May 2012 for all
projects and divisions.

Chairman Stein asked Director Freedman to serve as a member of the Finance Committee given
his background and experience. Director Freedman agreed.

POLICIES & PROCUREMENT COMMITTEE

RESOLUTION REGARDING A TRANSFER STATION HOST COMMUNITY AGREEMENT
AND LEASE AGREEMENT WITH THE TOWN OF ESSEX

Chairman Stein requested a motion on the above referenced item. The motion was made by
Director Adams and seconded by Director Damer.

RESOLVED: That the President of CRRA is authorized to execute a transfer Station Host
Community Agreement with the Town of Essex, substantially as presented an discussed at this
meeting, and

FURTHER RESOLVED: That the President of CRRA is authorized to execute an amendment
to the Lease Agreement between CRRA and the Town of Essex for the Transfer Station real
property, substantially as presented and discussed at this meeting.

Mr. Egan said this matter involves executing a host community benefit agreement with the Town
of Essex as well as an amendment to the lease agreement with the Town of Essex. He said the lease is
for property on which CRRA owns and operates a Solid Waste Transfer Station. Mr. Egan said this
matter has been before the Board several times while management continued negotiations with the Town
of Essex.

Mr. Egan explained that when CRRA first developed the Mid-Connecticut Project solid waste
transfer permits were issued for the transfer stations. He said the tonnage in those permits was based on
the estimate of tonnage that was flowed through in the 80’s. Mr. Egan said by 2000 tonnage had
increased to the point where CRRA submitted permit modification applications for the transfer stations
at the request of the Connecticut Department of Environmental Energy and Protection (hereinafter
referred to as “CT DEEP”).

Mr. Egan said the CT DEEP did not take action on those permit modifications for four to five
years. He said at that point the permit modifications were issued, the first in 2005. Mr. Egan said both
Essex and Watertown objected to the tentative issue of permit modifications due to the increase in
tonnage.

Mr. Egan explained management met with both towns and determined they wanted
compensation for agreeing to permit capacity increases. He said at the time the agreement with each
transfer station was different. Mr. Egan said these piecemeal arrangements were put into place from the
late 1980’s into 2001.




Mr. Egan said CRRA management proposed a uniform payment to the municipalities for the
transfer stations. He said the proposed 50 cent a ton payment for the four transfer stations was
determined using the appraised value of the transfer stations and what would be the estimated property
tax on the facilitates. Mr. Egan said the Board agreed to these uniform agreements and Essex is
presently the only remaining town with which CRRA needs to sign on agreements.

Mr. Egan said all of the payments in the agreements were retroactive to July 1, 2007. He said in
the case of the transfer station in Essex, CRRA does not own the real property. He said in addition to the
host community agreement management is requesting Board approval to amend the lease agreement.
Mr. Egan said since the construction of the transfer station and execution of the lease agreement in 1987
CRRA has leased this property under an agreement which expires in October of 2015. He said a small
payment which amounted to 20% of the assessed value of the property was to be made to Essex from
CRRA. Mr. Egan explained it came to management’s attention recently that Essex never billed CRRA
for this payment, and CRRA in turn never provided that payment.

Mr. Egan said management is proposing to pay Essex the lease payments it would have received
from 1987 through June 30, 2007 (which is when the host community agreement will be retroactive to).
He said in addition the Town of Essex has requested and negotiated for a larger lease payment of
$15,000 a year moving forward. Mr. Egan said the resolution provides authority for CRRA to sign the
host community agreement and execute the amendment to the lease agreement.

Mr. Egan said Essex is going to sign the fifteen year long-term municipal service agreement
which goes through June of 2027. He explained the host community agreement will go through that date
and be co-terminus and the lease agreement will also be extended to June of 2027. Mr. Egan said the
payment is reasonable and noted that the Town of Essex initially requested $30,000 a year which CRRA
management successfully negotiated down to $15,000.

Director Griswold asked if the tons exceed 50,000 if the payment to Essex will be greater. Mr.
Egan replied yes. He said CRRA will pay Essex 50 cents for every ton that comes into the transfer
station. Director Griswold asked what the assessed value of this parcel is. Mr. Egan replied that CRRA’s
activities are nested in a 20-21 acre parcel and not on a discrete parcel. He said within that parcel are
other DPW activities and the assessed value of each parcel within this 20 acre is around $20,000 an acre
and as CRRA has about four and half acres the value would be about $90,000.

Director Griswold asked if there is an opt-out option if the solid waste system changes the way
transfer stations are used in the future. Mr. Egan replied yes. He said if CRRA does not conduct solid
waste transfer station activities management will ensure that such language is present in the amendment.

Chairman Stein asked if there was an escalator in the 50 cent per ton payment. Mr. Egan
explained the 50 cents a ton began July 1, 2007 for FY 08 and escalates at a prescribed CPI index
contained in the host community benefit agreement. He said this year CRRA is paying about 53 and half
cents a ton.

Director Freedman asked if the roughly $158,000 payment has been reserved for. Mr. Egan
replied yes. He said it has been accrued for and the funds have been put aside. Mr. Kirk said the funds
for FY’13 have also been put aside.




The motion previously made and seconded was approved unanimously by roll call. Chairman
Stein, Director Adams, Director Bingham, Director Damer, Director Freedman, Director Griswold,
Director Martland, Director Segarra, and Director Painter voted yes.

Directors

>
3
o

Nay | Abstain

Chairman Donald Stein
John Adams

Ryan Bingham

David Damer

Joel Freedman
Timothy Griswold

Ted Martland

Pedro Segarra

XXX XXX | > | X

Ad-Hocs
Steve Edwards, Bridgeport
Bob Painter, Mid-Ct X

RESOLUTION REGARDING THE PURCHASE AND INSTALLATION OF A NEW 60 FOOT
VEHICLE SCALE FOR THE ESSEX TRANSFER STATION

Chairman Stein requested a motion on the above referenced item. The motion was made by
Director Adams and seconded by Director Damer.

RESOLVED: That the President is hereby authorized to execute a purchase order with Mettler
Toledo for the purchase of a new 60-foot vehicle scale for the Essex Transfer Station,
substantially as presented and discussed at this meeting.

Director Damer said that this item is related to Essex but is unrelated to the negotiations or lease.
He noted that the items under the Policies & Procurement Committee were thoroughly discussed and
vetted and received votes of approval before being brought to the full Board.

Mr. Egan said this matter involves giving Mr. Kirk authority to execute a purchase order with
Mettler Toledo under a State of Connecticut Department of Administrative contract which CRRA is
allowed to utilize for the purchase production, fabrication and installation of a vehicle scale at the Essex
transfer station. He said the scale is nearly twenty years old and is at the end of its life.

Mr. Egan said under CRRA’s procurement policies Mettler was solicited to provide a quote as a
DAS contractor. He said in order to validate the price, management asked two other vendors to quote to
the same scope of work. Mr. Egan said those prices are contained in the write-up. He said Mettler is the
lowest cost vendor and additionally Mettler Toledo maintains CRRA’s other scales. Mr. Egan said
scales at the transfer stations are configured with Mettler and in addition to the lowest price there is an
additional advantage as they will install the software that CRRA already has in the system.




Mr. Egan said there is about a six-eight week lead time. He said when the delivery date is
scheduled Mettler will come in a few days in advance and prepare the area. Mr. Egan said during the
actual installation CRRA has a load out scale which will be used.

Director Martland asked if there is any value in the existing scale. Mr. Egan said there may be
some scrap value.

The motion previously made and seconded was approved unanimously by roll call. Chairman
Stein, Director Adams, Director Bingham, Director Damer, Director Freedman, Director Griswold,
Director Martland, Director Segarra, and Director Painter voted yes.

Directors Nay | Abstain

>
<
o

Chairman Donald Stein
John Adams

Ryan Bingham

David Damer

Joel Freedman
Timothy Griswold

Ted Martland

Pedro Segarra

DD XXX XX ([X

Ad-Hocs
Steve Edwards, Bridgeport
Bob Painter, Mid-Ct X

RESOLUTION REGARDING RATIFICATION OF EMERGENCY PROCUREMENT
CONTRACT

Chairman Stein requested a motion on the above referenced item. The motion was made by
Director Martland and seconded by Director Adams.

RESOLVED: That the CRRA Board of Directors ratifies the Emergency Procurement as
substantially presented and disused at this meeting.

Mr. Kirk said that resolution and the next issues on the agenda involves fuel for the jet turbine
facility for twin pack peaking generators onsite for the Mid-Connecticut Facility. He said the generators
run very rarely and are permitted to run up to 168 hours a year. Mr. Kirk said occasionally they are
called on to run and when they do they consume a good portion of the fuel CRRA is required to keep on
site. He said CRRA is required as part of its capacity payment agreement to have a certain amount of
fuel on site. Mr. Kirk said purchasing the expensive aviation kerosene fuel is necessary from time to
time.

Mr. Kirk said this resolution is unusual because this is an emergency procurement
acknowledgment. He explained CRRA’s policies and procedures allow the President.in emergency
situations to make a purchase which is then ratified at the next Board meeting. Mr. Kirk explained

typically CRRA’s fuel is purchase by its operator. He said in this case CRRA had just finished changing

6




operators to NAES which was unable to purchase the fuel without paying the excise tax of about
$70,000. Mr. Kirk said CRRA is exempt from having to pay the excise tax. He said management
purchased the fuel and met its requirements under its capacity agreement so the standby requirements of
the generators were preserved.

Mr. Kirk said the following resolution is to allow management to purchase the fuel as necessary
going forward in order to avoid using the emergency procedure again. He said it is in the best interest of
CRRA to be able to purchase without excise or sales tax.

Director Martland said he was surprised by the limitation. Mr. Kirk said NAES is able to
purchase items for CRRA without sales tax as it is CRRA’ agent but the excise tax is particular to fuel
and there 1s no program management is aware of which would allow such a relationship to exist. Mr.
Egan said the previous contract was different in that Select Energy had the obligation and responsibility
to keep the fuel tank full and was a different arrangement in which CRRA shared in revenues. He said
because CRRA is purchasing the fuel directly under its procurement policies the Board has to approve
this expenditure.

Director Freedman asked if the contractor had purchased the fuel if CRRA would be responsible
for the cost. Mr. Kirk replied yes. Director Painter asked if this resolution will have to be approved each
year. Mr. Kirk replied yes.

Director Griswold asked what the capacity of the tank is. Mr. Egan replied 550,000 gallons. Mr.
Kirk said the older tank was recently replaced by the minimum size necessary for the permitted
operation of the plant. Mr. Egan said ISO New England has verbally advised the former operator that a
24 hour fuel supply is reasonable for a Black Start asset, which this is. He said the unit, if all four twin
packs are operating, consumes 16,000 gallons an hour and 24 hours is just about 385,000 gallons and as
a result management will keep around 400,000 gallons of fuel in the tank.

Mr. Kirk said the fuel has already been purchased and is in the tank. He said future fuel will be
purchased via CRRA in a purchase order as part of the normal budgeting process to avoid the excise tax.
He said CRRA will continue to work with DSS to see if there is a way that CRRA’s contractor can make
the purchase directly because CRRA’s purchasing process is far more arduous.

Director Freedman asked if the old contractor purchased the fuel directly and CRRA paid the
excise tax. Mr. Kirk replied yes. He said the old contractor was purchasing fuel to generate its own
megawatts under a different contract arrangement. Mr. Kirk said now those units are being operated for
CRRA'’s express and exclusive benefits and the benefit of the megawatts.

Director Freedman asked if management is sure there will not be an issue in the future. Mr. Kirk
said yes. He said CRRA is exempt from all taxes, government fees and assessments which is written
directly into the statutes.

Chairman Stein said a discussion on the future of the facility should also be held. Mr. Kirk said
the future of the jets and whether or not they should be monetized has been discussed by the Board in
the past and noted it would be appropriate to hold that discussion again soon. )




Director Griswold asked what the cost of the fuel is. Mr. Egan replied $2.95 a gallon exclusive of
tax. He said CRRA pays two very small taxes, a leaking underground storage tank tax and a spill clean-
up tax.

The motion previously made and seconded was approved unanimously by roll call. Chairman
Stein, Director Adams, Director Bingham, Director Damer, Director Freedman, Director Griswold,
Director Martland, Director Segarra, and Director Painter voted yes.

Directors

>
<
o

Nay | Abstain

Chairman Donald Stein
John Adams

Ryan Bingham

David Damer

Joel Freedman
Timothy Griswold

Ted Martland

Pedro Segarra

XXX XD X[ >

Ad-Hocs
Steve Edwards, Bridgeport
Bob Painter, Mid-Ct X

RESOLUTION REGARDING THE PURCHASE OF JET FUEL FOR THE SOUTH
MEADOWS JET TURBINE FACILITY

Chairman Stein requested a motion on the above referenced item. The motion was made by
Director Martland and seconded by Director Adams.

RESOLVED: That the President is hereby authorized to execute a purchase order with Santa
Buckley Energy, Inc. for purchase of Ultra Low Sulfur No. 1 Diesel Fuel to support operation of
the South Meadows Jet Turbine Facility, substantially as presented and discussed at this meeting.

The motion previously made and seconded was approved unanimously by roll call. Chairman
Stein, Director Adams, Director Bingham, Director Damer, Director Freedman, Director Griswold,
Director Martland, Director Segarra, and Director Painter voted yes.




Directors Aye | Nay | Abstain

Chairman Donald Stein
John Adams

Ryan Bingham

David Damer

Joel Freedman
Timothy Griswold

Ted Martland

Pedro Segarra

XX XK IDIX | XXX

Ad-Hocs
Steve Edwards, Bridgeport
Bob Painter, Mid-Ct X

RESOLUTION REGARDING A CONTRACT WIT STEVEN YATES FOR ENVIRONMENTAL
CONSULTING SERVICES

Chairman Stein requested a motion on the above referenced item. The motion was made by
Director Martland and seconded by Director Adams.

RESOLVED: That the President is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Steven Yates
for environmental consulting services, substantially as discussed and presented at this meeting.

Mr. Kirk said Mr. Yates was a valuable member of the CRRA team for many years and recently
retired. He said for the first year following Mr. Yate’s retirement he was used occasionally for additional
work tasks. Mr. Kirk said management would like to keep that option moving forward and this
resolution addresses that. Mr. Kirk said consultants can be very costly and using a less expensive
alternative such as Mr. Yates is a more cost effective option. He said the $15,000 is a budget amount
and may not all be used.

Director Martland said management often presents a stable of potential consultants and
specialists for potential assistance to the Board, however there is no guarantee that their services will be
utilized.

Director Painter asked why the employee (Mr. Shepard) who took over Mr. Yate’s
responsibilities is not able to perform this work. Mr. Kirk said the workload the Environmental
Department is responsible for grows exponentially every year between government monitoring and
oversight. He said that Mr. Yate’s expertise was on the air emissions side of the plant and Mr. Shepard’s
direct expertise is on the civil engineering side. Mr. Kirk said Mr. Yate’s knowledge is used in lieu of a
consultant.

Mr. Egan added that CRRA engages several consultants for assistance on air matters. He said
Mr. Shepard has transitioned into managing Mr. Yate’s responsibilities very well however this contract
allows management to call on Mr. Yate’s if assistance is needed while Mr. Shepard is otherwise.engaged
and avoid a greater billing rate of a consultant on this matter which would also lack Mr. Yate’s historical
knowledge and expertise.




Director Damer said he feels this is a reasonable rate for a consultant. He said he has personally
known Mr. Yate’s for many years as a colleague and his intuitional knowledge is well worth this cost.
Director Freedman suggested using Mr. Yate’s more often if his rate is low. Mr. Egan said Mr. Yate’s is
retired and is only available for a limited amount of time.

The motion previously made and seconded was approved unanimously by roll call. Chairman
Stein, Director Adams, Director Bingham, Director Damer, Director Freedman, Director Griswold,
Director Martland, and Director Segarra voted yes.

Directors Aye | Nay | Abstain

Chairman Donald Stein
John Adams

Ryan Bingham

David Damer

Joel Freedman
Timothy Griswold

Ted Martland

Pedro Segarra

XXX XKD X | X

Ad-Hocs
Steve Edwards, Bridgeport

Bob Painter, Mid-Ct

RESOLUTIONS REGARDING SERVICE TO THE CONNECTICUT RESOURCES
RECOVERY AUTHORITY JULY 26,2012

Chairman Stein requested a motion on the above referenced item. The motion to approve the
following resolutions was made by Director Griswold and seconded by Director Bingham.

RESOLUTION HONORING DOT KELLY

WHEREAS, the Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority (“CRRA”) was established in 1973
by Special Act 73-459 of the General Assembly to provide Connecticut’s cities and towns with
environmentally responsible, cost-effective solid waste management services; and

WHEREAS, CRRA is governed by a volunteer Board of Directors required by statute to include
members with significant expertise in environmental matters and the energy industry; and

WHEREAS, Dorothy “Dot” Kelly is a prominent environmental and energy consultant with
experience as Director of Environmental and Energy Services for Ciba Specialty Chemicals; and

WHEREAS, Dot Kelly is also an active volunteer working on environmental and energy-related
issues in her hometown of Darien and elsewhere in Connecticut; and

10




WHEREAS, by virtue of her environmental and energy expertise Dot Kelly was appointed to
the CRRA Board of Directors in March 2010; and

WHEREAS, Dot Kelly immediately and energetically immersed herself in the many complex
issues facing CRRA; and

WHEREAS, Dot Kelly’s term on the CRRA Board expired June 30, 2012; now
BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority Board of Directors
expresses its gratitude to Dorothy “Dot” Kelly for her service to CRRA and the people of

Connecticut.

RESOLUTION HONORING L.OUIS AULETTA

WHEREAS, the Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority (“CRRA”) was established in 1973
by Special Act 73-459 of the General Assembly to provide Connecticut’s cities and towns with
environmentally responsible, cost-effective solid waste management services; and

WHEREAS, CRRA is governed by a volunteer Board of Directors whose members are required
by statute to have a mixture of public-sector and private-sector experience; and

WHEREAS, Louis J. “Lou” Auletta Jr., 1s the President and Chief Executive Officer of Bauer
Inc., a global leader in providing test equipment for the aviation industry based in Bristol,
Connecticut; and

WHEREAS, by virtue of his experience and success in private industry Lou Auletta was
appointed to the CRRA Board of Directors in June 2010; and

WHEREAS, despite a demanding schedule that required him to travel around the world Lou
Auletta kept his commitments to CRRA and participated fully in the activities of the CRRA
Board; and

WHEREAS, Lou Auletta’s term on the CRRA Board expired June 30, 2012; now
BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority Board of Directors
expresses its gratitude to Louis J. “Lou” Auletta Jr. for his service to CRRA and the people of

Connecticut.

RESOLUTION HONORING THEODORE MARTLAND

WHEREAS, the Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority (“CRRA”) was established in 1973
by Special Act 73-459 of the General Assembly to provide Connecticut’s cities and towns with
environmentally responsible, cost-effective solid waste management services; and

WHEREAS, in 2002 CRRA was close to financial collapse due to an ill-fated deal with the
Enron Corporation; and

11




WHEREAS, in April 2002 the General Assembly passed Public Act 02-46 to place CRRA
under the jurisdiction of a new Board of Directors; and

WHEREAS, Theodore H. “Ted” Martland was appointed to the new CRRA Board of Directors
in June 2002; and

WHEREAS, Ted Martland brought to CRRA a unique combination of experience in the public
sector, having served as a public-school superintendent, and the private sector, as a partner in
residential-care facilities; and

WHEREAS, Ted Martland played a key role in CRRA’s development of policies and
procedures in areas such as bidding, purchasing, contracting and ethics, that became models for
the State of Connecticut; and

WHEREAS, Ted Martland, in his no-nonsense style, has closely scrutinized every solicitation
and contract brought to the CRRA Board of Directors, ensuring CRRA’s ratepayers were
receiving maximum value for their dollars; and

WHEREAS, Ted Martland has vigorously supported CRRA and its role in protecting the state’s
environment and has been justifiably proud of its turnaround; and

WHEREAS, Ted Martland asked that he not be re-appointed to the CRRA Board of Directors,
bringing to an end 10 years of hard work in service to the people of Connecticut; now

BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority Board of Directors
extends its heartiest congratulations to Theodore H. “Ted” Martland for a job well done; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority Board
of Directors wishes Ted Martland success in all his future endeavors.

Mr. Kirk expressed his appreciation to Director Martland for his years of service and dedication.

He said the work and commitment level from Director Martland has been remarkable. He thanked him
for the skills and assets that he brought to the Board especially for his willingness to contact
representatives at the Legislature. The Board agreed.

Chairman Stein said although he has only been on the Bard for a year he has noted that Director

Martland had years of experience to draw on and always asked the hard questions.

Chairman Stein added that Director Kelly and Director Auletta were very strong contributors to

the Board and were very knowledgeable people who did a great job during their tenure.

The motion previously made and seconded was approved unanimously by roll call. Chairman

Stein, Director Adams, Director Bingham, Director Damer, Director Edwards, Director Freedman,
Director Griswold, Director Martland, Director Segarra, and Director Painter voted yes.

12




Directors

>
s
o

Nay | Abstain

Chairman Donald Stein
John Adams

Ryan Bingham

David Damer

Joel Freedman
Timothy Griswold

Ted Martiand

Pedro Segarra

DD X

Ad-Hocs
Steve Edwards, Bridgeport
Bob Painter, Mid-Ct

x| X

PRESIDENT’S REPORT

Mr. Kirk said all CRRA facilities operated without environmental, safety, or public health issues
throughout the reporting period. He referred the Board to the supplemental package for financial
updates. Mr. Kirk said recycling had a modest surplus of $129,000 for the eleventh month period. He
said the full year-end data will be available shortly.

Mr. Kirk said the Southeast Project had a $1.1 million surplus and reduced deliveries of member
waste and spot waste and lower administrative cost. He said there were some unplanned boiler outages
which negatively affected CRRA’s performance. Mr. Kirk said Mid-Connecticut has a modest surplus of
nearly a quarter of a million dollars with highly unfavorable member waste deliveries between 7% and
12% below similar months the year prior which is remarkable because last year was also very low.

Mr. Kirk said when tonnage is down management is looking for tonnage which is then attracted
into the plant at a discount in an effort to burn and process as much waste as the plant is capable unless
the spot price falls below the marginal costs of operations. He said that is rare and generally speaking -
when tonnage is scarce the revenues from tons goes down appreciably and the number of tons that
crosses the scale stays relatively the same as it is based on how much the plant can process.

Mr. Kirk said CRRA continues to struggle with fuel shortages due to the poor economy and
diversions. He said Mid-Connecticut tonnage in particular has been unprecedentedly low at this time of
year. He said CRRA’s marginal operating costs tend to be higher than its competitors and as a result
CRRA has not operated the boiler in order to avoid losing money due to the cost of residue disposal and
operating the facility.

Mr. Kirk said hopefully this issue will resolve itself. Director Edwards asked how that could
happen. Mr. Kirk replied through a recovery by the economy. He said looking at month to month reports
is difficult and he is hopeful the increase is approaching.

Director Edwards asked if any of the diversions are out of state. Mr. Kirk said there is less

diversion out of state due to a reduced economy.

13




Mr. Kirk said 44 towns have signed agreements with CRRA and management believes there will
be sufficient waste to fill the plant however, much of that waste will be coming in as spot waste. He said
the impact to CRRA may be substantial if the spot waste price does not improve.

Mr. Kirk noted that a prior emergency procedure was approved at the May meeting for the
remote telemetric unit, the RTU, which are the electronics that allow CRRA to communicate with ISO
New England and the jet system. He said an additional $16,000 was required because AT&T could not
support the schedule of installation of the dedicated communication line with ISO. Mr. Kirk said that
was adjusted by $16,000.

Mr. Kirk said at the request of the Connecticut Department of Environmental Justice the CT
DEEP will be holding an informational open meeting for the Title V permit renewal for the Mid-
Connecticut Plant Thurs. Aug. 1, 2012, at 6:30 p.m. at which CRRA management will be present to
address questions.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

Chairman Stein requested a motion to enter into Executive Session to discuss pending litigation,
trade secrets, personnel matters, security matters, pending RFP’s, and feasibility estimates and
evaluations with appropriate staff. The motion, made by Director Martland and seconded by Director
Bingham, was approved unanimously. Chairman Stein asked the following people join the Directors in
the Executive Session:

Tom Kirk
Peter Egan
Laurie Hunt

The Executive Session began at 10:41 a.m. and concluded at 11:30 a.m. Chairman Stein noted
that no votes were taken in Executive Session.

The motion previously made and seconded to enter into Executive Session was approved
unanimously by roll call. Chairman Stein, Director Adams, Director Bingham, Director Damer, Director
Edwards, Director Freedman, Director Griswold, Director Martland, Director Segarra, and Director
Painter voted yes.

14




Nay | Abstain

>
<
o

Directors

Chairman Donald Stein
John Adams

Ryan Bingham

David Damer

Joel Freedman
Timothy Griswold

Ted Martland

Pedro Segarra

XXX IDIX XXX

Ad-Hocs
Steve Edwards, Bridgeport
Bob Painter, Mid-Ct

x| X

ADJOURNMENT

Chairman Stein requested a motion to adjourn the meeting. The motion to adjourn was made by
Director Adams and seconded by Director Bingham and was approved unanimously.

There being no other business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 12:04 p.m.

Respectfully Submitted,

Moira Benacquista
HR Specialist/Board Administrator

15




TAB 2




CONNECTICUT RESOURCES RECOVERY AUTHORITY

FOUR HUNDRED AND THIRTY-SECOND  SEPTEMBER 6. 2012

A special meeting of the Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority Board of Directors
was held on Thurs. Sept. 6, 2012, in the Board Room at 211 Murphy Rd., Hartford, Connecticut.
Those present by were:

Directors: Chairman Don Stein
John Adams
Ryan Bingham
David Damer
Joel Freedman
-Timothy Griswold
Andrew Nunn (present by telephone)
Steve Edwards, Bridgeport Project Ad-Hoc
Mark Tillinger, Bridgeport Ad-Hoc
Bob Painter, Mid-Connecticut Project Ad-Hoc
Steve Wawruck, Mid-Connecticut Project Ad-Hoc

Present from CRRA in Hartford:

Tom Kirk, President

Jim Bolduc, Chief Financial Officer

Peter Egan, Director of Environmental Affairs and Operations
Laurie Hunt, Director of Legal Service

Moira Benacquista, Board Secretary/Paralegal

Chairman Stein called the meeting to order at 9:35 p.m. and said that a quorum was
present.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

Chairman Stein requested a motion to enter into Executive Session to discuss pending
claims and litigation, trade secrets, personnel matters, pending RFP’s, real estate acquisition, and
feasibility estimates and evaluations with appropriate staff. The motion, made by Director
Damer and seconded by Director Griswold, was approved unanimously. Chairman Stein asked
the following people to join the Directors in the Executive Session:

Tom Kirk
Jim Bolduc
Peter Egan
Laurie Hunt




The motion previously made and seconded to enter into Executive Session was approved
unanimously by roll call. Chairman Stein, Director Adams, Director Bingham, Director Damer,
Director Edwards, Director Freedman, Director Griswold, Director Nunn, Director Painter,
Director Tillinger, Director Wawruck voted yes.

Directors Aye | Nay | Abstain

Chairman Donald Stein
John Adams

Ryan Bingham

David Damer

Joel Freedman
Timothy Griswold
Andrew Nunn

XX XXX | XX

Ad-Hocs

Bob Painter, Mid-Ct

Steve Wawruck, Mid-Ct
Mark Tillinger, Bridgeport
Steve Wawruck, Bridgeport

XXX |>*

The Executive Session began at 9:36 a.m. and concluded at 12:05 p.m. Chairman Stein
noted that no votes were taken in Executive Session.

The door to the Board room was opened, and the Board secretary and all members of the
public (of which there were none) were invited back in for the continuation of public session.

ADJOURNMENT

Chairman Stein requested a motion to adjourn the meeting. The motion to adjourn made
by Director Adams and seconded by Director Damer was approved unanimously.

The meeting was adjourned at 12:06 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

th

Moira Benacquista
Secretary to the Board/Paralegal




TAB 3




RESOLUTION REGARDING THE PURCHASE OF COMMERCIAL GENERAL
LIABILITY, UMBRELLA LIABILITY, POLLUTION LEGAL LIABILITY AND
COMMERCIAL AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY INSURANCE

RESOLVED: That CRRA’s Commercial General Liability insurance be purchased from
ACE American Insurance Company (Rating A+) with a $1,000,000 limit, $25,000
deductible, for the period 10/1/12 — 10/1/13 for a premium of $218,926 as discussed at
this meeting; and

FURTHER RESOLVED: That CRRA’s Umbrella Liability insurance be purchased
from ACE Property & Casualty Insurance Company (Rating A-+) with a $25 million
limit, $10,000 retention, for the period 10/1/12 — 10/1/13 for a premium of $162,500 as
discussed at this meeting; and

FURTHER RESOLVED: That CRRA’s Pollution Legal Liability insurance be
purchased from Illinois Union Insurance Company (ACE) (Rating A+) with a $20
million limit, $250,000 retention, for the period 10/1/12 — 10/1/13 for a premium of
$243,012; as discussed at this meeting, and;

FURTHER RESOLVED: That CRRA’s Commercial Automobile Liability insurance
be purchased from ACE American Insurance Company (Rating A+) with a $1 million
limit, liability coverage on all and comprehensive and collision on fifteen (15) passenger
vehicles and light trucks with a $1,000 deductible, for the period 10/1/12 — 10/1/13 for a
premium of $59,293.




Executive Summary
Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority
Casualty Insurance Program Renewal
September 27, 2012

Background

CRRA’s current casualty insurance program, consisting of Commercial General Liability,
Automobile Liability, Umbrella Liability and Pollution Legal Liability policies, expires
on October 1, 2012 and needs to be renewed. (Exhibit I briefly summarizes the coverage
under these policies.)

New Program Marketing and Results

CRRA began this marketing phase with our broker, Aon Risk Services (Aon) in May of
this year. All of the markets were provided the same underwriting data and identical
specifications. All premiums quoted were kept strictly confidential. Aon approached a
dozen markets: Some declined to quote because they were unable to provide the
requested limits, others declined based on the nature of CRRA’s exposures and/or loss
history, and still others could not price competitively or did not write business in CT.
ACE, the incumbent, was the only market to provide quotes for the entire casualty
program. We received one additional quote for the Pollution Legal Liability insurance.

(Exhibit II identifies the markets approached by Aon and their responses).

General Liability/Umbrella Liability/Pollution Legal Liability

Quotations on the existing program structure for a $1 million General Liability policy and
a $25 million Umbrella limit as well as a $20 million Pollution Legal Liability limit were
sought from all markets. Initial quotes received where significantly higher than what is
reported below. Aon was successful in obtaining decreases in each line of coverage
resulting in coverage and pricing described on the following pages:

General Liability

Our current insurance company, ACE American Insurance Company (ACE) (Rated A+
Superior), was the only insurer of the twelve (12) approached by Aon that quoted a
premium that followed the specifications exactly. ACE’s quote for the $1 million
General Liability program with a deductible of $25,000 carries a premium of $218,926.
This premium is 3% (or $7,387) higher than last year. ACE will not write a multi-year
policy for General Liability. Terrorism coverage (TRIA) is included.




e Despite a large General Liability claim in 2007, which was closed in January of
2011, ACE has consistently provided competitive premium quotes;

¢ Since 2007 ACE has reduced premiums; this is the first premium increase for
General Liability insurance since 2006;

¢ ACE has also been agreeable to enhancing coverage terms and conditions over the
years. Unlike many carriers, ACE’s General Liability policy:

o provides coverage for abuse and molestation;
o provides a free loss prevention engineering survey;
o Includes catastrophe management with a $250,000 sublimit;

¢ Claims handling is included in the premium.

Umbrella Liability

Only ACE Property & Casualty Insurance Company (ACE) offered an Umbrella limit of
~$25 million as described in the specifications. The premium is $162,500. This premium
is $3,948 (2%) more than last year.

The policy attaches to the General Liability, Auto Liability and our Employers’ Liability

(Part II of the Workers Compensation Policy with CIRMA.) Multi-year policies are not
available. Terrorism (TRIA) is included.

Pollution Legal Liability

The pollution market began hardening last year, particularly for public entities. This
insurance is always challenging to place because of CRRA’s many environmental
exposures.




In spite of these circumstances, Aon was able to secure quotes from our current insurer,
ACE Illinois Union Insurance Company (ACE) (Rated A+ Superior) and Starr Surplus
Lines Insurance Company (Starr) (Rated A Excellent).

STARR

$250,000 SIR* $243,012 $240,344

$500,000 SIR* $231,607 No Quote

* SIR = Self-Insured Retention which is similar to a deductible, but must be paid out by the insured before
insurance applies

ACE’s quote for the $250,000 SIR is the same as last year’s premium.

The ACE pollution premium with the higher self insured retention of $500,000 does not
represent significant premium savings ($11,405) over the ACE $250,000 SIR. The
frequency of these kinds of claims is less than that of the General Liability category;
however, the higher retention would require CRRA to pay an additional $250,000 for
each claim before the insurance company contributed. For this reason, we recommend
that CRRA purchase the policy with the lower retention ($250,000).

While Starr’s premium is slightly lower than ACE’s $250,000 SIR premium ($2,668), the
broader coverage provided by ACE’s policy leads us to recommend the selection of ACE.
The closeness of the premiums offered supports the competitive nature of the ACE
premiums and their coverage is broader than Starr’s.

Coverage Enhancements / Exclusions

Asbestos
¢ Coverage for Bodily Injury / Property Damage
o ACE provides
o Starr excludes

Coverage Limitation and Reopener
o Allows for re-opening of coverage in the event “closure” is obtained for known conditions
o ACE provides
o Starr does not include coverage




Divested Properties Coverage
¢ Includes historical / pre-existing coverage for divested sites (9)

o ACE provides

o Starr does not

Emergency Response / Expense
e  Sublimit of $250K in event of catastrophe / emergencies
o ACE provides
o Starr does not include coverage

Fungi / Microbial Matter (Mold) / Legionella
¢ ACE provides
e Starr excludes

Lead Paint
¢ Coverage for Bodily Injury / Property Damage
o ACE provides
o Starr excludes

Medical Waste Coverage
o ACE provides
¢ Starr excludes

Transported Cargo
¢ Blanket Coverage, full limits
o ACE provides
o Starr excludes

TRIA (Terrorism)
¢ Inclusive of Bioterrorism-coverage
o ACE provides
o Starr excludes

Automobile Liability

CRRA sought coverage on thirty (30) units. Comprehensive and collision coverage is
only provided on the newer fifteen (15) passenger vehicles and light trucks with low
mileage, while liability coverage is on the entire fleet of 30 units. ACE American
Insurance Company (ACE) provided a quote for $1 million of coverage for a premium of
$59,293. This year’s premium is $5,833 (11%) higher than last year’s $53,460.

All other markets declined to quote the Auto.

¢ The ACE policy provides a composite rate, eliminating the need to notify the insurer when
vehicles are acquired or deleted during the year;

¢ The ACE policy provides full glass replacement without a deductible; something CRRA
has utilized on many occasions.

Terrorism (TRIA) coverage is not available on Commercial Auto Liability insurance.
Multi-year policies are not available for Automobile Liability.




The chart that follows compares expiring premiums against quotes — highlighted column

recommended;

CRRA Casualty Insurance: 10/1/12-10/1/13

Breakdown of Expiring Premiums vs. Recommended Renewal Premiums

Expiring Renewal Premiums
Premiums (Same Deductibles)
Line of Coverage ACE - Rating A+ ACE - Rating A+
Starr — Rating A
2011-2012 2012-2013
$1 Million $211,539 $218,926
General (includes TRIA) (includes TRIA)
Liability
" $25,000 Deductible $25,000 Deductible
$1 Million
$53,460 $59,293
Automobile
Liability (comp & collision on 14 (comp & collision on
vehicles with $1000 15 vehicles with $1000
deductible on these units) deductible on these units)
$25 Million $158,552 $162,500
Umbrella Liability (Includes TRIA) (Includes TRIA)
$10,000 SIR $10,000 SIR
(Sits over all but (Sits over all but
Pollution) Pollution)
$20 Million $243,012 $240,344
Pollution Legal $20m ea/$20m $20m ea/$20m
Liability Aggregate/$250K SIR Aggregate/$250K SIR
(TRIA Included) (TRIA Included)
GL, Umbrella, Auto GL, Umbrella, Auto
Overall Cost of & Pollution & Pollution
Program
Total $666,563 $681,063
Overall 2.2%Increase
from last year)




RECOMMENDATIONS

Aon believes that ACE continues to provide the most comprehensive and competitively
priced program for CRRA’s current and historical exposures.

In consultation with our broker Aon and management, the Finance Committee
recommends that the Board of Directors accept, the following quotes offered by ACE
Insurance Company for the period 10/1/12 — 10/1/13:

$218,926 for $1 million of Commercial General Liability
ACE (Best Rating A+ (Superior))

$162,500 for $25 million of Umbrella Liability
ACE (Best A+ (Superior))

$243,012 for $20 million of Pollution Legal Liability
ACE (Best Rating A+ (Superior))

$59,293 for $1 million of Commercial Automobile Liability —
ACE (Best Rating A+ (Superior))

TRIA (certified acts of terrorism) coverage is on all appropriate policies.
Total Casualty Premium - $683,731 vs. total casualty budget of $699,892 (see Premium
to Budget Comparisons, Exhibit III).

Total annualized FY12-FY13 insurance program premiums equal $1,641,388.
Total annualized FY12-FY 13 insurance program budget equals $1,771,490.




Exhibit I

Description of Coverage

Commercial General Liability Insurance

$1,000,000 — Commercial General Liability

Covers damages to third parties for bodily injury or property damage within
policy terms and conditions (e.g., a workman drops a tool and dents somebody’s
automobile; someone slips and falls at one of our facilities). Limits are $1 million
each occurrence, $2 million general aggregate per location.

$25,000,000 — Umbrella Liability
Covers all of the losses within policy terms and conditions that exceed the
underlying layer of $1 million General Liability, $1 million Auto Liability and $1
million Employers’ Liability.

Pollution Legal Liability

$20,000,000 — Pollution Legal Liability

Covers losses arising from pollution conditions to third-parties within policy
terms and conditions for onsite bodily injury and property damage, third party claims for
off-site clean up resulting from new conditions, third party claims for off site bodily
injury and property damage, coverage for scheduled non-owned disposal locations and
pollution conditions resulting from transported cargo. On site clean up of new conditions
only from spills associated with the jet fuel tank at Hartford WTE facility. Limits are $20
million each occurrence, $20 million in the aggregate.

Automobile Liability Insurance

Covers damages to third parties for bodily injury or property damage from the use of a
CRRA owned auto within policy terms and conditions. The policy also covers the
physical damage of certain CRRA owned units. CRRA is responsible for insuring 30
power units and 1 transporter plate - tractors/ trailers, light trucks and passenger vehicles
used in connection with administration and operation of our facilities. Comprehensive
and collision coverage is only on fifteen (15) passenger vehicles and light trucks with a
$1,000 deductible. Limits are $1 million each occurrence with no aggregate.




GEN LIABILITY, AUTO, UMBRELLA

coaceasiman

isayy
)y

SAMSO[951(]
asa Wmimy TI0WLS 21w Soymivaayy
’ T - 8 E5)
00°005'291$ [vin v v VN VNVIN 000052918 {VIN PIOODY o mne Kensey @ Aiadosg | AT TIAEA] VLM miqun 6609202]
00°29LVS1S VN VIN N N VINIVIN 00TLISIS T VIN PO | onswy kenarsy g Ausdong goy|  AMIART TGO Hiaqu| 8405202
;3 Tirvdiiog| Hereaon
vIN Vi VIN v vt VINYIN VIN ST 0 LD pautjsaq] fomer1 2 s sug omy ssaemne eeIqwe} oINY IO 9619207,
VIN VN v \ZSS VN VINIVIN VN sraateng Jo U pauraq| "ol teasury esvemsu1sy yommA] oy .ts”_o_w ojjsquen) omy 19| 1619207
| : o
Jvin VN vin v v vilviN e sauadiseaun prtsoq Pr1 ez piogioon o smeongy M1 A8V D) see9tet
~ SBRRAD,
VIN v vin v iy VIN[VIN VIR vsautsng Jo siord poutteeq 00 ORRINT] WRIPITAY 154D saﬂi_._.nw sijasquar; ARy 0| £pL9t6L
- TORIN
v 3 vin wal VN VN[VIN VIN SR JO D pamsoqy Areduron) asuninsu] (nope oy .us.N Gtman ony 19| $619207
H u~§o
N viN v vt v VIN[YIN VN SSUPTE JO SO paujixg| Anedoin aavemsy Aifaonds ysrv, oy .nsaw HaiquA BINY 10 1919202
6 ETI ) RIA00)
'Y/N <mz v v NN VINIYAN VIN aanpadiods] puNQg Aupdtios) 23UBMETY PO PV omy seommg tipiqun) oiny 10| eI
(S : TBEmAD;
v viN v ViN ViN YM[YN ! ssaujmg Jo 5VI) pannsagy 9 T NeEDLAUY Y347 oy .a._h_,w Bjaqur OmY 9 L9861
” oTLIeAa))| YL
ore ozg" P a u
00926518 v 3 VN vin VN[V 'ITERITS YN paiond)| Aundioo) eatumiK] BESUILLY FOV o Ry ———rt L9202,
332iA0;
00°105'9028 v VIN VIN VIN|VIN 00'108'8028  |v/N p10nd] Aurdino) sremu avaAIY 4OV — _.E_uw Auiniawi (exsasp) 9v09202|
CFTCTY Y
00'¢67°65$ 00°€6Z'65S A3 poiond)] Aurdaio)) oueinau] UELRETY IJV oy seourog| oiny ssnjsmg &TL9T6L

jredayy axnsopsyq ajond

L1109y £19A0093 $30In0S3Y INIPIIUUCD

NO




. ‘ansaf 3 $221040) 3 o Alotesedos reodde saay FAPLITTUNTIDE 05941 pirs 'eameul £q 1 of prvd saolsTaruIos Aan lo/puw nud|to sno Ag
st 0) pred pue 01 PaaLAy £39) 031U 1410 AT Jo R3] 1) 104 PUE O) QORIPPE U} A9 530) PARRRSUTUPY "M 71) WG 090) PARERCTUNAIDY 5133{[02 POV (YRGS W WO 1§ 40) $a13043 §3¥y ‘oz 0p 0) potitad Alled0) a1y saqunos swor vy posnid Astjod axd oRueys saprasmppe Loy10d 00€3 ¥ 'Guap 0 ciny
N031|03 puy waosse und 1 305 2o 94y ‘ot op o1 paymiad £)1e8s) ;o "ADRERSTUNAPE PUT JuBuUBTTITE v uals Buproes vonrdxs ‘9 Teron pue Su)jg £3)jod 3003373 o) peifuiy 10U 1nq ‘Fuipnjauy 98113403 J0 1roWnMoosd 3D 0) PIISTA) $TONIUNY AMPONOIWPY MOLYA suuonsd gyy +p

“Ao110d 8 16 porsasse s3xw) 40 ‘Sekreyams ‘sway aers 91qnadde 3pa|5ay o1 60p 1t pus £33) pus sexm st snidms 2)quondde opnjain 100 £a0p 13 03 1909 oL, e ey ingd

SHY (11 J0 2aimiou}) aniumad 3} U211 0} 1800 [eI0 g o) 'g

'S3183 oSS TRILGS Sqeagtdde 4q wunoww ummug oy K M Aq INIMED € uogssn D) A0 1} 893 SYV o pure (aquaydde sv) suopsiuwos Paatdv Arvogew Jo pajonb Bupnow ‘apw) aq HOg AR 14 SV VO{SHIunn0d 9t Jo ums o sjeuby SooA SV {0] '5

*wn 1qeoydde £q panspiusd 134 pU AISFING WP S 1 Y13 o 0] £93) Y0 31wGD AN Sy ‘sway> MO Jo 1R 301 40) J{ayoq 6101es 2y 40 S Aqp

SN Bag N pire a8 Q 31 43403 0 JUALOIMY JIMAUIE tre Avd 10u sop 1aLES B g v
) L P! 0.8

‘340Q0 PO1ORD emjuaLd 3y Lem Sue 3 28UTy3 100 )14 YotsEIRAUSS 0 Hnoatjop ‘vpasy patonb junowe UM{TRald oY) U0 1w UojsSjuRD S W 03 £19adx0 SV ‘Wmoys ary Lossjonue) poarly

AyeaoneN e 5y aiag ARIAL JTEGRG £13L103 U1 vo RIS pa P I0] 20/ptio FSAIENG O $IUY) DITLIIS JO LUoLLES Busos Qikw £ UOIsittNIOn peady-A(euopety W SYY ‘tum]aes votsanos SV PAIORY 31 W RMNqS O3% sUnOLEE Aurrnnagm 8 WION "¢

B "PUBIWIAIG 13LITI PUR ta€) 3304) 0 awmnsmd 1isodap 00 A Spaty ¢ons aIfy paures Quoesay
UIURTRAUT 10 I521T) 21 WAt [|Ln SV IS 9Q 01 #np a2 Ao jjim tave] FTINI) 2P IR 1tm PIUEPIOSIR 1t UMOIOL A1Rg5npY o1t macked eRatn sysadap puv iesj) o1 aaumnuat o5 {ed tarmvduios 3sresraay SPUNRI 5T |19 88 ‘t1atires 0 aatnn)) ey 10) Sed f1u9)17) swmitsad roAjedas SYY T

H “XOF [FPLNY UoY BojfIRUm 10 3AIASOKg IUnoIaY Mok Bap%N009 4 *rasnpaid 3 K3 Jasegaind o o) paittasnud 13jo0b QAHBLIDIE AUe YO Lred Ut io
910Um 0f PISEQ P23 g o1 pa1oadys vonmswaduies (e1ge311dd J1) pus ‘saveyamd 34 €1 23URMIV} SO blex I 6o pred Uj J0 3joym th paseq Ronpoad eqi Aq panoas 39 o} po120do vogittosdmos 1N0Q¥ UonvaLa/ UTHIQe Avw Pateyaand oauemsuy sy, “Auaduios asuemeng sejnonsed 3 Inpw $9B0s3A03 SUEMsTY
mos o2e1d & sapudon) ov RATY 0) PALIRIECO3 8q Leut voy s ey “stxeq £otjod |enpyarp} o ue 101 *Auedaos MU} IR Yipe poarid epopiod 3y jo asarunioysad {1wsaa0 3y o Auvdioes NN 3 Ui €Oy £q pror|d a3eson00 QdUBINU] UFEBD SO 1000UIR |MO 2Y) 0O pareq Awoid4s an 5ol yong

"PAAIFYIN37% 1208 GopuaIns 10 AUmioA “ABHAMU0IS Tugiuaopun ujesss [dwrws 103 41 ‘vonesesdwco 11afunues jtaoyppe igp apiaaxd 13y) papuedios HURASY e 3 ety :l u} aredy d Soin (oY, V) 1B 5T PUR $25)98 ASHY HOY ‘0TI osremauy ok
Hnarss 1o uo Buitingvos Bupmavas “Rugoe|d u] "noo[ss seseyamd ath {shdsngay 7y pue (shsanuos sxwemst) oqy Bupniouy ‘tioragg Jo quinu e uo Sarpasdap Area Auw votiesuadiun omg *ALied papq saqiou 4q 10 136103 durment o4 But) 28 (shemsu o Aq £vd 34 e Copsusdiuog 03> 1eseyund
2 (384105 saoemem pure (s)samsu ou uo Jappuadagg sjres 23npoxd 3y 1requon asmeInsU} 24 Uo pastq sagnpatd ov o pped 3] it uoperexduo) raympoe PO DIOW 20 QUD $I4{0AU] BOLIUEUY) aopaapied Aux up anpoud aq) Jo 5101 3y *sraregamd 40J 3URINLY) LFtIGE 0) PUE *ICRINSY ||ag

01 91580003 2usmsu} sensnsed jo NYIATIQ BAUUTINNS 341 FuRLUGD EIUPE £3)40 o1 K1dennos SFTHME] 4O FUOKIPNOS PUK SUL] ‘IYaEDq 33 1A0qE RSy AE OIURINUT L 13400 01 ITWIY 21941 £Q PoZMIOYITY Bse uasnposd OBURMAIL A1FIS MO Uf ORI 3RONPAIA SURMEL] U 5) $92IAIIG TRyaoy ‘|




EXHIBIT I
POLLUTION LEGAL LIABILITY

N
: o SRRy
; as skeaaang 1IVAZL02 ' 29qaa1d8 9397 vommustary
v C v N N fen viNjos L6s' 162 N potond)| Avedutos smmmen) wvopsury Fov] i _n“m_._m $068¢61
" ™ v i vix vagvi los cv's Y01 9 AONIOV! Ay
: ! s IO oSO TYARGIOLL VS {27 oopaygog yaestet
R Y - v v v Ymos uotes . v 100 Areduod ssuamiu] uesHaLY v s soescel
: ! MY (e3s vonmyo
viN t v VIN VN e VNIV Vi baptuodess voy peingseg weapAY g3 o1 .mw_a_.m_
il
) H Rapmsdwos TaE]
VAN i . v YN YN YIRIYIN VN kg tovmy poayaq|  Auedurog aniremsyy pjopm panry ior _.Qf_z
v ;e N Ty VIR VINIYN VN laatsuodses qont paugeog aogran o suﬂ_ﬁ
/N YN /N v VN VNP v bapstiodsa voy paullssq o wusTy sawamsy] T W Suﬂ_ﬁ_ Ledsesl
Vi ] VN YN YN VINIYIN vax poufeq)  Auvdwos ssurment e spuynl o Sﬁ__h 1268€51
i _ R bt N i VINIY/N /N pauttooq ‘00 3R J9RINGY Kutaqe]| f _Mw_s_.“ 112141}
real '
/N ! IN Ivin vt N VINVIN i s_s.wnw“oh“ws puipe] oy omeman urway jeap Ataery | Apaey S168261
: ol padueqs yusey : {e87 wdnnpad [¥3] vognyjeg
- Ppoa fuper qayp
- ST
: P Amary Apiqery
PN 7 (VN N VN YMYIN [N fareaidmoo/Kionsy 2 00 FAURMIL & I
w e 520\ 4 pottag 3 ML AP 490D #3a] vounfiog {e207 tapnqay| 2168¢6!1
; - T G i AaT| Ln
V) v 0 IVIN v Z u e ]
l\m&. G N N YIN[YIN M boq tawnrey pautjsag AavduioD sowemsu) £apysesy] m3oquenniiog]  |e8oy sopmypog Hestel
H iy A9
i » lv, v, (onde Al AT
viN s N 'm N VNV v oedus jo yov pavyoaq| fdates eocemsa} yary Wy somniog]  Wavyuonned 9168561

Ay1ogny Lresooay sadinosay jnagosuuoy)

NOY

.



YIN'L

VN9

YIN'S
YiIN'Y
YIN'E

. ) X *109100ST £HUIed PrY pme| 050yt of Nmatnd 1{5045D 110 3B ety yoas M PIUIES SO
1499079AU] J0 JEUANTY O UNIAL (|14 SYY TINNDAS 39 0F S0P &e Lo uun $40] 93U} ojqrolidde Qiia asirepi0sdk of nunaoY Ampnpg oy siwautded aray ssodap PU ‘B3 o) Saumiiwar og Avd wpuedmon DITHIISY) IPATYSL 3¢ (13n 58 ‘Liotisvn O) AN Jof Avd RUBIL) SuMEad £3A138 SYY ‘2

XOF {617 Toy AUHRA JO JAQNSIXG SUMOISY 104 Buireies Aq '329mposd 2y 4 22smyaund o1 01 paseatasd ssonb 3aquane 4w vo wed vy 20
[04A Uy DIsEq PaA1aoal 3 o1 pajsadiea Uopesusdas (atqwasdde Jy) pus “13r0qamd a4y ) 200RIRN 30 3[Ee aY) U0 Ird 30 Slofm u} pasyq 2onposd om 4q peatxaas aq 01 garaadxs UONWTIR00 10T TOBTULLJY] BQe At Srvgand onsansy] oy, “Auedizos 230EmIu) remopitd 8 m 0519403 goutmsut
nok ovid 01 34ROl \re 3amy 0} parzpitun? 99 AVig U0 [nas ¥ 5y “sfevq A2y0d #patpu T e j0u ‘Auredion SoUrRST} 1) N paseid $a5110d 511 10 aotruutoprad |1e13a0 51 40 Aurdunss QIURMSUL Y 1L VOV £q POOTIS £9TEI3A00 ST U[FIS3 O JanbUTE 19101 39 1o paseq A eadd) ose f1vod (Eag

"PARINIC 21T 11108 EoiUBIAl 16 sumios 'ljIqtyesd Fuapauspun s ‘ajdidena Jo) )¢ ‘uonuaduos MO0 IULPPY 405 opaosd wy son S i o) Anws (AUDY,\) SARHIE 9] U 594ARS YT WOy ‘altssace oxmnng ok
Bopajamr o 0o u:E:ES “Bumau ‘Qutand oy N5e195 Loseynmd s (sHaMBY] et pue (#pavaucs asunmiur 3 TAISN(20) WI01587 J6 2D4UING ¢ Lo Bunpusdap Area Lew topesvadars 4305 At QD 3341000 £q 10 PRAVO J00RMIY) 31 Buppos (spomam oyl £q pjed og ffja WORFFUADG) '1a0ief Soseyvnd
343 (391080000 2aueInSY) puw {s}rameny oy us Buspusda(] "sifet onpoid o 133U g2tems H41 Uo paseq 'ronpard 2 o pred ag [t UORYFUTWOD “Santpot ssaty J© U010 20 210 29A0A} UOPIRSIRY Mnawd AU u) Josnpard 3 Jo ojol Y, *e5wyamid 20) daveInIty UPRIQO OF pup lourmsuy (o5

01 13UAO3 UMY JemoNnd O NYIAIIG FAUTIENS 3Y) UALIATUGD TIUPE SO0 O) HIIRANCD SOVETET JO SUORIPUOS R UL13) *F1Y3UIY 341 1A0QN LISTRIN AKTEMS] YL S0P O) ) K £q paziomne 312 £230npasd SLMEU] 21638 0K O pesiaoyy saonpcud SOORINTU UT §| $I3AIIG NIRY VOV ']




Casualty insurance Program
Renewat Date - October 1

(81721$) 19761
(EE§59) (081°e9)
0$ 161218
(8v6'cs) 086'e$
(£88'2$) 06483

© +¥380L00 - 31va IYMINaY
WYNO0Ud IONVINSNI ALIVNSYD

£91'9628
08r'001%

9412228

H LIgIHX3

cio'epes
006291 ¢

gze'gLes

150'9v2$
££5°0018

v8lL'rizs

c62'89$
619'L48

085'95%

NOSRIVAWOD 13909 0L WnIwayd

2z6'86v8

S60°0v¢
652'781¢%

yL6'8LLS

$59'851¢

09vess
ZLo'ehzs
265'851%

6£8'1128

$TIvICoL

Allger sqowoiny
‘qef jeBe uonn)joy
Atiqe| Biresquin

Aliger jessusg




i - Aprit 1
Property & FinfPro - Renewal Date - April
Workers' Comp. - Renewal Date - July 1

. TS W WEOTOR WS weR RS WRE IR sietor
. wWS Lows SR @I BEOR WU OO TR tarwod mewon
0$ 04 98L'es 961'¢$ z61'cs ¥8£'2¢ 864$ 961°c$ ewny _u_eosaoo
: os 0$ z6Y'v$ z8t'rs 88y'v 99¢'s8 2zL'Lg 26¥'v$ Alger) Aejonp)y
(220'851$) (v29'118) g0¥'85.8 610'048  009'9zs8 008'898% 000'851$ 200'229$ Auodoad ysiy liv
Asiger seekoldusy .
0$ o8t'yis 8/2'65L8 96L'pyL$ §59'g5LS L5Y'6118 861'05¢ 96L'vbLs B §18190 2liqng

NOSRIVJINOD 139anG OL WNINIXY

H-ATNC AIYMINTY dIWOD .SuaNHOM
NV TYMINZY "O¥d/NId B ALYIJONd

iamxg







TAB 4




RESOLUTION REGARDING THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL
REPORT FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Resolved: That the Board hereby accepts the Annual Financial Report for the Fiscal
Year Ended June 30, 2012, substantially as discussed and presented at this meeting.







CONNECTICUT RESOURCES
RECOVERY AUTHORITY

A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

TOGETHER WITH
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT







Connecticut Resources Recovery Ruthority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED

JUNE 30, 2012

TABLE OF CONTENTS PAGEY)
Independent Auditor's Report ' 1-2
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 3-27
Basic Financial Statements:

Balance Sheets 28 - 29

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and

Changes in Net Assets 30
Statements of Cash Flows 31
Notes to the Financial Statements 32-52

Supplementary Information:
Combining Schedule of Balance Sheets 53-55

Combining Schedule of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in

Net Assets 56
Combining Schedule of Cash Flows 57-58
Combining Schedule of Net Assets 59 - 60

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based
on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed
in Accordance with Government Auditing
Standards 61-62

This document is printed on recycled content paper

i

II

I




Connecticut Resources Recovery Ruthority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

This Page Left Intentionally Blank

This document is printed on recycled content paper

ii




BOLLAM, SHEEDY, TORANI & CO. LLP
Certified Public Accountants
New York, New York

DRAFT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Directors
Comnecticut Resources Recovery Authority
Hartford, Connecticut

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of the Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority
(Authority), a component unit of the State of Connecticut, as of June 30, 2012 and 2011, and the related
statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets, and cash flows for the years then ended. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Authority’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Authority as of June 30, 2012 and 2011, and the results of its operations and its cash
flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September XX
2012, on our consideration of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of 1ts
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 through XX be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the
basic financial statements, and other knowledge obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do
not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide
us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.




Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken
as a whole. The accompanying combining schedules on pages XX through XX are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audits of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining schedules are fairly
stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

New York, New York
XX, 2012

BOLLAM, SHEEDY, TORANI & CO. LLP Certified Public Accountants

2




Connecticut Resources Recovery Ruthority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”) of the Connecticut Resources
Recovery Authority’s (the “Authority”) activities and financial performance provides an
introduction to the audited financial statements for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2012 and
2011. Following the MD&A are the basic financial statements of the Authority together with the
notes thereto, which are essential to a full understanding of the data contained in the financial
statements.

FINANCIAL POSITION SUMMARY

The Authority’s fiscal year 2012 total assets decreased by $18.9 million or 7.0% from fiscal year
2011 and total liabilities decreased by $6.9 million or 8.3%. Total assets exceeded total
liabilities by $176.5 million as of June 30, 2012 as compared to $188.5 million as of June 30,
2011 or a net decrease of $12.0 million.

The fiscal year 2011 total assets decreased by $36.4 million or 11.8% from fiscal year 2010 and
total liabilities decreased by $7.1 million or 7.8%. Total assets exceeded total liabilities by
$188.5 million as of June 30, 2011 as compared to $217.8 million as of June 30, 2010, or a net
decrease of $29.3 million.

BALANCE SHEETS

As of June 30,
(Dollars in Thousands)

2012 2011 2010
ASSETS
Current unrestricted assets $ 101,160 $ 95,885 $ 106,047
Current restricted assets 22.875 35,134 46,979
Total current assets 124,035 131,019 153,026
Non-current assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents - 14,724 22.434
Restricted investments 8,177 817 817
Capital assets, net 119,385 123,543 129,521
Development and bond issuance costs, net 1,576 1,984 2,727
Total non-current assets 129,138 141,068 155,499
TOTAL ASSETS $ 253,173 $ 272,087 $ 308,525
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Current unrestricted liabilities $ 7,792 $ 8,473 $ 10,688
Current restricted liabilities 17,984 21,296 23,088
Total current liabilities 25,776 29,769 33,776
Long-term unrestricted labilities 42,713 41,429 38,566
Long-term restricted habilities 8,183 12,390 18,340
Total long-term habilitics 50,896 53,819 56,906
TOTAL LIABILITIES 76,672 83,588 90,682
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 116,348 117,634 120,895
Restricted 11,050 24,837 44,381
Unrestricted 49,103 46,028 52,567
TOTAL NET ASSETS 176,501 188,499 217,843
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 253,173 $ 272,087 $ 308,525




Connecticut Resources Recovery Ruthority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The following is an overview of significant changes within the Balance Sheets as of June 30,
2012 and 2011:

ASSETS

A summary of assets and the amount and percentage of change in relation to the immediate prior
two fiscal years is as follows:

SUMMARY OF CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Fiscal Years Ended June 30,
(Dollars in Thousands)

2012 2012 2011 2011
Increase/  Percent - Increase/  Percent
(Decrease) Increase/ (Decrease) Increase/
2012 2011 from 2011 (Decrease) 2010 from 2010 (Decrease)
CURRENT ASSETS
Unrestricted Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 76331 § 73499 § 2832 39% § 78462 $ (4,963) (6.3%)
Accounts receivable, net of allowances 14,009 17,528 (3,519) (20.1%) 22,571 (5,043) (22.3%)
Inventory 6,370 3973 2,397 60.3% 3,870 103 2.7%
Prepaid expenses 4450 885 3,565 402.8% 1,144 (259) (22.6%)
Total Unrestricted Assets 101,160 95,885 5,275 5.5% 106,047 (10,162) (9.6%)
Restricted Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 22,875 35,127 (12,252) (34.9%) 46,954 (11,827) (25.2%)
Accrued interest receivable - 7 (7) _ (100.0%) 25 - (18) (72.0%)
Total Restricted Assets 22,875 35,134 (12,259) (34.9%) 46,979 (11,845) (25.2%)
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 124,035 131,019 (6,984) (5.3%) 153,026 (22,007) (14.4%)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Restricted cash and cash equivalents - 14,724 (14,724)  (100.0%) 22,434 (7,710) (34.4%)
Restricted investments 8,177 817 7,360 900.9% 817 - 0.0%
Capital Assets:
Depreciable, net 85,262 91,400 (6,138) (6.7%) 100,480 (9,080) (9.0%)
Nondepreciable 34,123 32,143 1,980 6.2% 29,041 3,102 10.7%
Development and bond issuance costs, net 1,576 1,984 (408) (20.6%) 2,727 (743) (27.2%)
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 129,138 141,068 (11,930) (8.5%) 155,499 (14431) (9.3%)
TOTAL ASSETS $ 253173 $ 272087 § (18914) (7.0%) $ 308,525 (36438) (11.8%)

Current unrestricted assets increased by $5.3 million or 5.5% from fiscal year 2011, which
decreased by $10.2 million or 9.6% over fiscal year 2010. The fiscal year 2012 increase is
primarily due to:

* Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents increased by $2.8 million primarily as a result of
the following:

~ o Contributions of $13.8 million for operating requirements at the Mid-Connecticut
Project for costs associated with on-going legal matters; expiration of the project and
transitioning from original operators to a new operator contract; capital expenditures;
recycling education program; and funding solid waste reduction activities in support




Connecticut Resources Recovery Ruthority
R Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

of the Connecticut Department of Energy and Environmental Protection (“DEEP”)
Solid Waste Management Plan; and

o Funds transfer, net of $6.9 million. Of the $6.9 million, net, $8.7 million reflects

funds transferred from Mid-Connecticut current restricted Revenue Fund for potential
project exposure, risks, and liabilities ($6.5 million), and operating and capital
expenditures ($2.2 million); respectively, less funds transferred to the Mid-
Connecticut current restricted Revenue Fund to defray the estimated impact of fiscal
year 2012 tip fees ($1.8 million); and

o Electric revenue increased by $1.1 million at the Southeast Project as a result of

higher electricity generated and increasing electricity rates; partially offset by:

o Payments for equipment purchases, plant improvements, and transition costs at the

Mid-Connecticut Waste Processing Facility (“WPF”) and Power Block Facility
(“PBF”); spare parts inventory at the PBF; closure costs at the Hartford Landfill; and
post-closure costs at the Shelton, Wallingford, and Waterbury Landfills ($12.4
million); and

o An increase in payments for ash and non-processible waste transportation and

disposal services at the Mid-Connecticut Project as a result of higher waste deliveries
and unanticipated outages ($2.5 million); and

o A distribution of Southeast Project prior year’s surplus funds ($1.4 million) to

Southeastern Connecticut Regional Resources Recovery Authority (“SCRRRA”); and

o Contributions to SCRRRA Future Needs Reserve increased by $2.2 million as a result

of the continuous impact of increased electricity revenues due to higher electric rates
and prior year project surpluses; and

o A net decrease of $0.5 million in cash balances at the General Fund, Bridgeport and

Wallingford Projects, as well as the Landfill, Property, and Recycling Divisions.

Accounts receivable, net decreased by $3.6 million. This occurred due to timely receipt
of electric revenue at the Southeast Project, lower member waste deliveries at the Mid-
Connecticut Project and SouthWest Division, decreased other operating revenues at the
Property Division, which is partially offset by increased non-member charges and other
operating revenues at the Mid-Connecticut Project.

Inventory, including spare parts and fuel inventory, increased by $2.4 million. This
increase is a result of spare parts acquired from the Connecticut Light and Power
Company, the purchase of PBF spare parts inventory upon a contract expiration with a
Mid-Connecticut former operator, and fuel purchases for the Jet Turbine Facility
(“JTF”).

Prepaid expenses, reflecting payments to Mid-Connecticut vendors for insurance and
contract operating charges that are applicable to future accounting periods, increased by
$3.6 million.




Connecticut Resources Recovery Ruthority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

The fiscal year 2011 decrease was primarily due to:

Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents decreased by $5.0 million primarily as a result of

the following:

@]

Payments of $7.6 million for equipment purchases and plant improvements at the
Mid-Connecticut WPF and PBF ($4.5 million), closure costs at the Hartford Landfill
($2.6 million), and post-closure costs at the Shelton Landfill ($0.5 million); and

A transfer of $3.3 million to Mid-Connecticut Project current restricted Revenue
Fund to pay for Mid-Connecticut capital expenditures incurred during fiscal year
2011; and

Distributions of Authority’s project-related funds to its former Wallingford and
Bridgeport Projects member towns of $5.0 million and $1.0 million, respectively; and

A transfer of $1.7 million to Property Division non-current restricted Post-Closure
Trust Fund as a result of a new Stewardship Permit at the Wallingford Landfill; and

Funds transfer for a total of $0.8 million to Mid-Connecticut Project current restricted
Revenue Fund to offset fiscal year 2012 debt payments ($0.4 million) and to use as a
credit in the Mid-Connecticut Project adopted tip fee of $69 per ton of solid waste
delivered ($0.4 million); partially offset by:

A $5.2 million receipt from the DEEP in October 2010 as reimbursement for costs
previously incurred by the Authority in the closure of the Hartford Landfill ($5.0
million) and the Waterbury Landfill ($0.2 million); and

Contributions of $4.6 million toward operating cash requirements at the Mid-
Connecticut Project for capital expenditures associated with the Mid-Connecticut
facilities, future Energy Generating Facility (“EGF”) operating costs, and recycling
education program; and

Operating Fund balances increased by a total of $4.1 million at two projects; the
Southeast Project ($2.8 million) and the SouthWest Division ($1.3 million). The
increase at the Southeast Project is due to project surplus, timing in payments to
certain member towns for credit associated with fiscal year 2011 waste delivered and
Southeast Project operator for the balance of fiscal year 2011 service fee. The
increase at the SouthWest Division is due to timing in payment for contract operating
charges; and

A transfer of $1.1 million from Mid-Connecticut Project current restricted Revenue
Fund for fiscal year 2010 contributions toward operating cash requirements for future
EGF operating costs.




Connecticut Resources Recovery Ruthority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

e Accounts receivable, net decreased by $5.0 million primarily due to:

O

A decrease of $4.4 million at the Mid-Connecticut Project as a result of the $5.0
million receipt from the DEEP in October 2010 as State grant-in-aid to reimburse for
costs previously incurred by the Authority in the closure of the Hartford Landfill;
partially offset by an increase of $0.4 million in service payment receivables as a
result of no tip fee subsidy credit to the Mid-Connecticut Project’s member and
contract towns and higher spot waste revenues as a result of waste delivery
settlements with various hauling companies for diversion of waste from the
Authority’s Mid-Connecticut Project less the impact of lower member waste
deliveries occurring state-wide; and

A decrease of $0.8 million at the Wallingford Project resulting from the closure of the
project as of June 30, 2010.

e Inventory remained relatively flat, increasing by $103,000.

o Prepaid expenses remained fairly flat, decreasing by $259,000.

Current restricted assets decreased by $12.3 million or 34.9% from fiscal year 2011, which
decreased by $11.8 million or 25.2% from fiscal year 2010. The fiscal year 2012 decrease is
primarily due to:

e Payments for various expenses as follows:

O

Regular principal and interest due on the Authority’s Mid-Connecticut bonds in
November 2011 ($4.1 million); and

Reconstruction of a fuel tank, rebuilding of two power turbines, and fuel purchases at
the JTF ($4.2 million); and

Prepayments to the Mid-Connecticut operator for July 2012 operational and capital
expenditures pursuant to the Mid-Connecticut Operations and Management
Agreement ($3.5 million); and

e Various funds transfer as follows:

O

$6.5 million to Mid-Connecticut current unrestricted Risk Fund (the “Risk Fund”) for
potential project exposure, risks, and liabilities; and

$2.2 million to Mid-Connecticut current unrestricted Facility Modifications Fund for
capital expenditures incurred during fiscal year 2012 and Jets Operating Fund to
subsidize fiscal year 2012 expenditures, ($0.5 million) and ($1.7 million);
respectively; and

e Use of funds from the Mid-Connecticut current restricted Revenue Fund to pay for costs
and fees incurred during fiscal year 2012 ($6.8 million); partially offset by:

o The $1.8 million transferred from the Risk Fund to defray the estimated impact of fiscal
year 2012 tip fees; and




Connecticut Resources Recovery Ruthority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

Contributions of $2.8 million at the EGF and JTF and the Southeast Montville Landfill
for capital costs ($2.4 million) and monitoring and maintenance of the Montville Landfill
post-closure care costs ($0.4 million); respectively; and

A total of $7.4 million reclassified from Mid-Connecticut non-current Special Capital
Reserve Fund and other Trustee accounts for the final year’s debt service payments on
the Mid-Connecticut 1996 Series A Project Refinancing (the “Mid-Connecticut bonds™)
due in November 2012 ($4.4 million) and remaining trustee funds that will be released to
the Authority after the Mid-Connecticut bonds are paid off in pursuant with the Mid-
Connecticut bond indentures ($3.0 million); respectively; and

Timely receipt of electric revenue at the Southeast Project ($2.8 million).

The fiscal year 2011 decrease was primarily due to:

Tip Fee Stabilization Fund at the Wallingford Project decreased by $14.5 million due to
distribution of funds to the former Wallingford Project member towns; and

Debt Service Fund balances decreased by a total of $3.0 million at two projects; the Mid-
Connecticut Project ($2.6 million) and the Southeast Project ($0.4 million). This
decrease is as a result of regular principal and interest payments due on Authority bonds
in November 2010 and May 2011 less additional debt service deposits for regular
principal payments due in November 2011; partially offset by:

A $3.5 million reclassified from Mid-Connecticut non-current restricted assets for capital
expenditures to be incurred during fiscal year 2012; and

Revenue Fund balance at the Mid-Connecticut Project increased by $1.8 million mainly
due to a combination of the following:

o Funds transfer of $2.8 million and $0.5 million from the Mid-Connecticut Project
current unrestricted Landfill Development Fund and Risk Fund, respectively, to pay
for Mid-Connecticut capital expenditures incurred during fiscal year 2011; and

o A balance in advanced payments of $0.7 million from the Mid-Connecticut customers
for future solid waste deliveries; and

o A transfer of $0.7 million from Mid-Connecticut non-current restricted General Fund
to offset Mid-Connecticut Project fiscal year 2012 debt service; and

o Funds released by Authority Trustee from the Mid-Connecticut non-current restricted
Equipment Replacement Fund and Operating and Maintenance Fund totaled $544,000
($272,000 each) for amount in excess of minimum funding requirement of $1.5
million for each fund as defined in the Mid-Connecticut Bond Resolution; and




Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

A transfer of $0.4 million from Mid-Connecticut Project current unrestricted Debt
Service Stabilization Fund to offset fiscal year 2012 debt payments; partially offset
by:

Non-transference from Mid-Connecticut current unrestricted Debt Service
Stabilization Fund ($2.5 million) due to depletion of funds in prior periods; and

The transfer of $1.1 million to Mid-Connecticut Project current unrestricted Jets
Operating Fund. This transfer represents fiscal year 2010 contributions toward
operating cash requirements for future EGF operating costs; and

Contributions toward reserve requirements of $0.5 million at the Mid-Connecticut
Project for recycling education program and Southeast Project for monitoring and
maintenance of the Montville landfill post-closure care costs.

Non-current assets decreased by $11.9 million or 8.5% from fiscal year 2011, which decreased
by $14.4 million or 9.3% from fiscal year 2010. The fiscal year 2012 decrease occurred
primarily due to:

e Restricted cash and cash equivalents decreased by $14.7 million due to:

(6]

Purchases of $7.3 million U.S. Treasury Bills for landfill post-closure trust funds,
which is classified as non-current restricted investments; and

The reclassification of $7.4 million of debt service reserve funds to current restricted
assets for the final debt service payment on the Mid-Connecticut bonds due in
November 15, 2012 ($4.4 million) and the other Trustee funds that will be released to
the Authority after the bonds are paid off ($3.0 million).

e Capital assets, net, consisting of depreciable and nondepreciable assets, decreased by

$4.2 million. The component of net capital assets fluctuated as follows:

O

Captial assets — depreciable, net decreased by $6.1 million primarily due to $15.8
million of depreciation expense; partially offset by $1.4 million in equipment
purchases and plant improvements and a reclassification of $8.2 million in
construction in progress (“CIP”) from the nondepreciable capital assets. The $8.2
million CIP projects represent capital projects that have been completed as of June
30, 2012 including purchases of a new primary superheater for PBF boilers,
installation of a fuel tank as well as rebuilding a spare jet engine and turbines at the
JTF, and installation of a video monitoring system at the WPF; partially offset by:

Captial assets — nondepreciable increased by $2.0 million due to an increase in
construction in progress of $10.1 million; partially offset by the $8.2 million
reclassification of CIP to the depreciable capital assets, net.

* Development and bond issuance costs, net, slightly decreased by $0.4 million due to

. .amortization. -

¢ Restricted investments increased by $7.4 million due to the purchases of U.S. Treasury

Bills for the landfill post-closure trust funds with maturities over three months.




Connecticut Resources Recovery Ruthority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

The fiscal year 2011 decrease occurred primarily due to:

Restricted cash and cash equivalents decreased by $7.7 million. This decrease occurred

primarily due to:

0]

Payments of $5.3 million for fuel tank at the Jet Turbine Facility; turbine controls
upgrade and new turbine diaphragms at the EGF; and rebuild two free (power)
turbines at the Jet Turbine Facility; and

The $3.5 million reclassified to Mid-Connecticut current restricted assets for capital
expenditures to be incurred during fiscal year 2012; and

A decrease in Special Capital Reserve Fund of $886,000 at the Southeast Project
resulting from the refunding of the Southeast Project 1998 Series A Bonds in
December 2010; and

The transfer of $0.7 million to the Mid-Connecticut current restricted General Fund to
offset Mid-Connecticut Project fiscal year 2012 debt service; and

The $544,000 released by the Trustee to the Mid-Connecticut current restricted
Revenue Fund for amount in excess of minimum funding requirement of $1.5 million
for each fund as defined in the Mid-Connecticut Bond Resolution; partially offset by:

A purchase of $1.7 million U.S. Treasury Bill for the Wallingford Landfill Post-
Closure Trust Fund; and

A $1.7 million contribution to Jets reserve to cover for some of the replacement costs
for the fuel tank and turbine rebuild.

Restricted investments remained unchanged.

Capital assets, net, consisting of depreciable and nondepreciable assets, decreased by

$6.0 million. The component of net capital assets fluctuated as follows:

O

Captial assets — depreciable, net decreased by $9.1 million due to a $17.6 million of
depreciation expense and a $1.2 million loss on write-off of various Mid-Connecticut
assets as a result of plant improvements and equipment disposals and sales; partially
offset by $2.1 million in plant improvements and equipment purchases and a
reclassification of $7.6 million in construction in progress (“CIP”) from the
nondepreciable capital assets. The $7.6 million CIP projects represent capital
projects that have been completed or substantially completed as of June 30, 2011.

Captial assets — nondepreciable increased by $3.1 million due to an increase in CIP of
$10.7 million; partially offset by the $7.6 million reclassification of CIP to the
depreciable capital assets, net. The balance in CIP of $3.1 million represents
installation of fuel tank and rebuild of a spare jet engine at the JTF as well as other
miscellaneous projects.

10




Connecticut Resources Recovery Ruthority
R Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

* Development and bond issuance costs, net decreased by $0.7 million due to amortization
expense and a write-off of unamortized bond issuance costs as a result of the Southeast
Project refunding.

LIABILITIES

A summary of liabilities and the amount and percentage of change in relation to the immediate
prior two fiscal years is as follows:

SUMMARY OF CURRENT AND LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Fiscal Years Ended June 30,
(Dollars in Thousands)

2012 2012 2011 2011
Increase/  Percent Increase/  Percent
(Decrease) Increase/ (Decrease) Increase/
2012 2011 from 2011 (Decrease) 2010 from 2010 (Decrease)
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payable from unrestricted assets:
Closure and post-closure care of landfills $§ 1330 § 4193 § (2,863) (683%) § 53593 $§ (1400) (25.0%)
Accounts payable 1,658 1,671 (13) (0.8%) 1,730 (59 (3.4%)
Acccrued expenses and other current liabilities 4804 2,609 2,195 84.1% 3,365 (756) (22.5%)
Total payable from unrestricted assets 7,792 8473 (681) (8.0%) 10,688 (2215) (20.7%)
Payable from restricted assets:
Bonds payable, net 4,134 3,906 228 5.8% 4280 (374) (8.7%)
Closure and post-closure care of landfills 1,298 1,196 102 8.5% 4,650 (3,454) (74.3%)
Accounts payable 850 3,650 (2,800) (76.7%) 1,009 2,641 261.7%
Acccrued expenses and other current liabilities 11,702 12,544 (842) (6.7%) 13,149 (605) (4.6%)
Total payable from restricted assets 17,984 21,296 (3312) (15.6%) 23,088 (1,792) (7.8%)
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 25,776 29,769 (3,993) (13.4%) 33,776 (4,007) (11.9%)
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Payable from unrestricted assets:
Closure and post-closure care of landfills 39213 37,929 1,284 3.4% 38,566 (637) (1.7%)
Other liabilities 3,500 3,500 - 0.0% - 3,500 100.0%
Total payable from unrestricted assets 42713 41429 1,284 3.1% 38,566 2,863 7.4%
Payable from restricted assets:
Bonds payable, net - 4,134 (4,134)  (100.0%) 11,664 (7,530) (64.6%)
Closure and post-closure care of landfills 7359 7,358 1 0.0% 5,672 1,686 29.7%
Other liabilities 824 898 (74) (8.2%) 1,004 (106) (10.6%)
Total payable from restricted assets 8,183 12,390 (4,207) (34.0%) 18,340 (5,950) (32.4%)
TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 50,896 53,819 (2,923) (5.4%) 56,906 (3,087) (5.4%)
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 76672 $ 83588 § (6916) (83%) $ 90,682 (7,094) (7.8%)

Current liabilities decreased by $4.0 million or 13.4% compared to fiscal year 2011, which also
decreased by $4.0 million or 11.9% compared to fiscal year 2010. The fiscal year 2012 decrease
from 2011 is due to:

s.. Current liabilities payable from unrestricted assets decreased by $0.7 million due to:

o Closure and post-closure care of landfills decreased by $2.9 million primarily as a
result of delayed closure activities as the Authority prepares for final closure at the

11




Connecticut Resources Recovery Ruthority
K Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

Hartford Landfill by bringing soil in and using the soil to adjust the grade of the
landfill to accept the final cap.

o Accounts payable and accrued expenses and other current liabilities increased by $2.2
million due to timing in payments for goods and services received.

e Current liabilities payable from restricted assets decreased by $3.3 million. This
occurred due to:

o Accounts payable and accrued expenses and other current liabilities decreased by
$3.6 million as a result of disbursements of funds for goods and services received.

o Bonds payable, net, remained fairly constant, increasing by $228,000. This increase
reflects a reclassification of debt service from long-term restricted liabilities for the
Mid-Connecticut 1996 Series A Bonds Project Refinancing that is due on November
15, 2012; partially offset by the regular principal payment made on the Authority’s
Mid-Connecticut bonds in November 2011.

o Closure and post-closure care of landfills, remained relatively flat, increasing by
$102,000.

The fiscal year 2011 decrease from 2010 was due to:
e Current liabilities payable from unrestricted assets decreased by $2.2 million due to:
o Closure and post-closure care of landfills decreased by $1.4 million primarily as a

result of lower construction and engineering costs at the Hartford Landfill as the
closure activities are approximately 65% completed.

o Accounts payable and accrued expenses and other current liabilities decreased by
$0.8 million mainly due to the closure of the Wallingford Project as of June 30, 2010.

e Current liabilities payable from restricted assets decreased by $1.8 million. This
occurred due to:

o Bonds payable, net, remained fairly constant, decreasing by $374,000.

o Closure and post-closure care of landfills decreased by $3.5 million primarily as a
result of lower construction and engineering costs at the Hartford Landfill.

o Accounts payable and accrued expenses and other current liabilities increased by $2.0
million due to timing in payments for goods and services received at the Southeast
Project and the SouthWest Division.

... Long-term liabilities decreased by $2.9 million or 5.4% compared to fiscal year 2011, which
decreased by $3.1 million or 5.4% compared to fiscal year 2010. The fiscal year 2012 decrease
from 2011 is primarily due to:

12




Connecticut Resources Recovery Ruthority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

Long-term liabilities payable from unrestricted assets increased by $1.3 million due to a
reduction in the long-term portion of closure and post-closure care costs as a result of
payments for closure and post-closure costs less the impact of decreased current closure and
post-closure care costs.

Long-term liabilities payable from restricted assets decreased by $4.2 million as a result
of the following:

O

Bonds payable, net decreased by $4.1 million. This decrease occurred due to the
reclassification of the debt service amount to current restricted liabilities for the Mid-
Connecticut 1996 Series A Bonds Project Refinancing that is due on November 15, 2012.

Other liabilities remained flat, decreasing by $74,000.

Closure and post-closure care of landfills, remained unchanged.

The fiscal year 2011 decrease from 2010 was due to:

Long-term liabilities payable from unrestricted assets increased by $2.9 million due to a
$3.5 million increase in other liabilities; partially offset by a $637,000 decrease in closure
and post-closure care of landfills. The increase in other liabilities was due to potential end of
project transition costs. The decrease in closure and post-closure care of landfills was due to
payments for closure and post-closure care costs at the Ellington, Hartford, Shelton,
Waterbury, and Wallington landfills.

Long-term liabilities payable from restricted assets decreased by $5.9 million due to:

0]

Bonds payable, net decreased by $7.5 million as a result of regular principal payments
due on Authority bonds in November 2010 ($4.4 million), principal payment on the
outstanding Southeast Project 1998 Series A Bonds as of December 15, 2010 ($3.8
million), and write-off of unamortized premium on sale of bonds and other deferred
amounts as a result of the Southeast Project refunding.

Other liabilities remained relatively flat, decreasing by $106,000.

Closure and post-closure care of landfills increased by $1.7 million due to the impact of
decreased current portion of closure and post-closure liabilities.

13




Connecticut Resources Recovery Ruthority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of the Authority’s financial position.

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
Fiscal Years Ended June 30,
(Dollars in Thousands)

2012 2011 2010

Operating revenues $ 132,043 $ 132,067 $ 138,122
Operating expenses 127,799 144,121 135,011
Income (loss) before depreciation and

amortization and other non-operating

revenues and (expenses) 4,244 (12,054) 3,111
Depreciation and amortization 16,242 18,009 17,292
Loss before other non-operating

revenues and (expenses), net (11,998) (30,063) (14,181)
Non-operating revenues (expenses), net - (1,614) 5,363
Loss before special item (11,998) (31,677) (8,818)

Special item:

Gain on early retirement of debt, net - 2,333 -
Change i net assets - (11,998) (29,344) (8,818)
Total net assets, beginning of year 188,499 217,843 226,661
Total net assets, end of year - $ 176,501 $ 188499 $ 217843

Operating revenues remained flat, decreasing by $24,000 during fiscal year 2012 from fiscal
year 2011 and $6.1 million or 4.4% during fiscal year 2011 from fiscal year 2010. The fiscal
year 2012 decrease is primarily due to:

o A $923,000 decrease in member service charges; and
o A $545,000 decrease in other operating revenues; partially offset by:
¢ A $1.4 million increase in other services charges; and

The fiscal year 2011 decrease was primarily due to:

A $7.5 million decrease in member service charges; and

A $2.7 million decrease in energy sales; partially offset by:
e Anincrease of $1.8 million in other services charges; and
A $2.3 million increase in other operating revenues.

14




Connecticut Resources Recovery Ruthority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

Operating expenses decreased by $16.3 million or 11.3% during fiscal year 2012 primarily due
to:

e A $20.7 million decrease in distribution to member towns; partially offset by:
¢ Anincrease of $3.0 million in solid waste operations; and
e A $1.4 million of distribution to SCRRRA.

Operating expenses increased by $9.1 million or 6.7% during fiscal year 2011 primarily due to:

A $19.0 million increase in distribution to member towns; and

A $2.7 million increase in closure and post-closure care of landfills; and
A $12.2 million decrease in solid waste operations; and

A $0.5 million decrease in legal services — external.

Depreciation and amortization decreased by $1.8 million or 9.8% during fiscal year 2012 as a
result of the Jets asset being fully depreciated. During fiscal year 2011, depreciation and
amortization increased by $0.7 million or 4.1% as a result of additional plant improvements and
equipment purchases.

Non-operating revenues (expenses), net decreased by $1.6 million during fiscal year 2012 from
fiscal year 2011 and $7.0 million during fiscal year 2011. The fiscal year 2012 decrease is due
to:

e Investment income decreased by $114,000; partially offset by:
e Other income (expenses), net decreased by $1.3 million; and
e Interest expense decreased by $369,000.

The fiscal year 2011 decrease is due to:

¢ Investment income decreased by $250,000; and
e Other income (expenses), net decreased by $7.1 million; partially offset by:
e Interest expense decreased by $377,000.

15




Connecticut Resources Recovery Ruthority
A Component Unit of the State of Cornecticut

SUMMARY OF OPERATING REVENUES

The following charts show the major sources and the percentage of operating revenues for the
fiscal years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011:

Fiscal Year 2012

Member Service
Charges
42 4%

Other Service
Charges
15.8%

Energy Sales
352%

During fiscal year 2012 Solid Waste tipping fees (member service and other service charges)
account for 58.2% of the Authority’s operating revenues. Energy sales make up another 35.2%
of operating revenues.

Fiscal Year 2011

Member Service
Charges
43.1%

Other Service
Charges -
14.7%

Energy Sales
35.2%

During fiscal year 2011, Solid Waste tipping fees (member service and other service charges)
account for 57.8% of the Authority’s operating revenues. Energy sales make up another 35.2%
of operating revenues.

16




Connecticut Resources Recovery Ruthority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

A summary of operating revenues and non-operating revenues, and the amount and percentage of
change in relation to the immediate prior two fiscal years is as follows:

SUMMARY OF OPERATING AND NON-OPERATING REVENUES
Fiscal Years Ended June 30,
(Dollars in Thousands)

2012 2012 2011 2011
Increase/  Percent Increase/  Percent
(Decrease) Increase/ (Decrease) Increase/
2012 2011 from 2011 (Decrease) 2010  from 2010 (Decrease)
Operating Revenues:

Member service charges $ 55966 $ 56880 § (923) (1.6%) § 64393 § (7504) (11.7%)
Other service charges 20,860 19,439 1,421 7.3% 17,597 1,842 10.5%
Energy sales 46,547 46,524 23 0.0% 49,203 (2,679 (5.4%)
Other operating revenues 8,670 9,215 (545) (5.9%) 6,929 2,286 33.0%
Total Operating Revenues 132043 132,067 24 (0.0%) 138,122 (6,055) (4.4%)

Non-Operating Revenues:
Investment income 192 306 (114)  (37.3%) 556 (250)  (45.0%)
Other income 560 255 305 119.6% 5912 (5,657)  (95.7%)
Total Non-Operating Revenues 752 561 191 34.0% 6,468 (5907)  (91.3%)
Total Revenues $132795 $132628 § 167 0.1% $ 144,590 $ (11,962) (8.3%)

Overall, fiscal year 2012 total revenues remained flat, increasing by $167,000 or 0.1% from
fiscal year 2011. Fiscal year 2011 total revenues decreased by $12.0 million or 8.3% from fiscal
year 2010. The following discusses the major changes in operating and non-operating revenues
of the Authority:

e Member service charges decreased by $923,000 and $7.5 million in fiscal years 2012 and
2011, respectively. The fiscal year 2012 decrease is primarily due to anticipated decrease in
member deliveries at the Mid-Connecticut Project and SouthWest Division.

The fiscal year 2011 decrease is primarily due to:

o A decrease of $8.5 million at the Wallingford Project due to the closure of the project as
of June 30, 2010; and

o A decrease of $1.2 million at the Southeast Project. This occurred due to a reduction in
member revenues as a result of rebates to certain member towns for fiscal years 2010 and
2011 waste delivered and paid under the minimum commitment pursuant to the
Municipal Service Agreement between those towns and SCRRRA plus the impact of
lower member waste deliveries; partially offset by:

o An increase of $2.0 million at the Mid-Connecticut Project. This increase reflects higher
member revenues received as a result of no tip fee subsidy credit to the Mid-Connecticut
Project’s member towns less the impact of lower member waste deliveries occurring
state-wide.

17




Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

Other service charges to both contract towns and spot waste haulers increased by $1.4
million and $1.8 million in fiscal years 2012 and 2011; respectively. The fiscal year 2012
increase is primarily as a result of unexpected higher spot waste deliveries at the Mid-
Connecticut Project that includes a slight increase in waste delivery settlements (the “waste
settlements™) with various hauling companies for diversion of waste from the Authority’s
Mid-Connecticut Project. The fiscal year 2011 increase was primarily a result of no tip fee
subsidy credit to the Mid-Connecticut Project’s contract towns and higher spot waste
revenues as a result of the waste settlements.

Energy sales remained flat, increasing by $23,000 during fiscal year 2012 and decreased by
$2.7 million during fiscal year 2011. The fiscal year 2012 net increase is due to an increase
of $1,075,000 at the Southeast Project a result of higher electricity generated and contract
rates; partially offset by a decrease of $1,052,000 at the Mid-Connecticut Project due to
lower contract rates offset by higher electricity generated.

The fiscal year 2011 decrease was due to:

o A decrease of $2.4 million at the Wallingford Project due to the closure of the Project as
of June 30, 2010; and

o A decrease of $1.0 million at the Mid-Connecticut Project due to turbines performance
1ssues; partially offset by:

o An increase of $0.7 million at the Southeast Project as a result of a slight increase in
electricity rates less the impact of lower electricity generated.

Other operating revenues decreased by $545,000 in fiscal year 2012 and increased by $2.3
million in fiscal years 2011. The fiscal year 2012 decrease is mainly due to decreased
residual revenue share and rental income at the Recycling Division resulting upon the
expiration of a contract between the Authority and its former operator, which is offset by
higher metal and recycling sales at the Mid-Connecticut Project as a result of favorable
market conditions.

The fiscal year 2011 increase reflects higher metal and recycling sales at the Mid-
Connecticut Project as a result of favorable market conditions and higher rental income at the
Property Division as a result of leasing land located at Stratford to the Authority’s former
operator.

Investment income for both fiscal years 2012 and 2011 remained fairly constant, decreasing
by $114,000 from fiscal year 2011 and $250,000 from fiscal year 2010; respectively. The
decreases for both fiscal years are due to low cash balances and continued low interest rates.

- Other income of $560,000 for fiscal year 2012 represents settlement income in association’
with one of the lawsuits at the Mid-Connecticut Project, gains on sales of equipment and

miscellaneous income. Other income of $255,000 for fiscal year 2011 represents gains on
sales of equipment and miscellaneous income.

18




Connecticut Resources Recovery Ruthority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

SUMMARY OF OPERATING EXPENSES

The following charts show the major sources and the percentage of operating expenses for the

fiscal years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011:

Fiscal Year 2012

Solid Waste
Operations
91.0%

Maintenance &
Utilities
0.7%

Distribution to
SCRRRA 1.1% Landfill closure and

post-closure 0.3%

Administrative and
Operational services

Legal services -
5.5%

external 1.4%

Solid Waste Operations are the major component of the Authority’s operating
accounting for 91.0% of operating expenses in fiscal year 2012.

Fiscal Year 2011

Solid Waste
Operations
78.6%

Maintenance &
Utilities
0.9%
Distribution to
member towns
14.3% Landfill closure
and post-closure
Legal services - 0.1%
external 1.1%

Administrative
and Operational
services 5.0%

expenses,

During fiscal year 2011, Solid Waste Operations accounted for 78.4% of operating expenses.
A summary of operating expenses and non-operating expenses and the amount and percentage of

change in relation to the immediate prior two fiscal years is as follows:

19




Connecticut Resources Recovery Ruthority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

SUMMARY OF OPERATING AND NON-OPERATING EXPENSES
Fiscal Years Ended June 30,
(Dollars in Thousands)

2012 2012 2011 2011
Increase/ Percent Increase/  Percent
(Decrease) Increase/ (Decrease) Increase/

2012 2011 from 2011 (Decrease}) 2010  from 2010 (Decrease)

Operating Expenses:

Solid waste operations $116261 $113219 $ 3,042 27% $125407 $ (12,188) (9.7%)
Maintenance and utilities 900 1,237 337y  (27.2%) 1,365 (128) (9.4%)
Landfill closure and post-closure 415 214 201 93.9% (2,495) 2,709  (108.6%)
Legal services - external 1,803 1,601 202 12.6% 2,055 454) (22.1%)
Administrative and operational services 7,019 7,194 (175) 2.4%) 7,040 154 2.2%
Distribution to member towns - 20,656 (20,656) (100.0%) 1,639 19,017  1160.3%
Distribution to SCRRRA 1,401 - 1,401 100.0% - - 0.0%
Total Operating Expenses 127,799 144,121 (16322)  (11.3%) 135011 9,110 6.7%
Depreciation and amortization 16242 18,009 (1,767) (9.8%) 17,292 717 4.1%
Non-Operating Expenses:
Interest expense 317 686 (369)  (53.8%) 1,063 (B77)  (35.5%)
Other expenses 435 1489 (1,059  (70.8%) 42 1,447 3445.2%
Total Non-Operating Expenses 752 2,175 (1423)  (65.4%) 1,105 1,070 96.8%
Total Expenses $144793 $164,305 (19512)  (11.9%) $153408 $ 10397 7.1%

The Authority’s total expenses decreased by $19.5 million or 11.9% between fiscal years 2012
and 2011. Fiscal year 2011 total expenses increased by $10.9 million or 7.1% from fiscal year
2010. Notable differences between the fiscal years include:

e Solid waste operations increased by $3.0 million from fiscal year 2011 to 2012. This

occurred primarily due to the following:

O

Greater ash and non-processible waste transportation and disposal services as a result of
higher waste deliveries and unanticipated outages, increased payments in lieu of taxes,
and transition costs for the new operator at the Mid-Connecticut Project; partially offset
by lower contract operating charges resulting from a new Operations and Management
Agreement to operate the Mid-Connecticut’s Waste to Energy Facility effective on
December 31, 2011 for the WPF; and

Higher distribution of funds to SCRRRA for future expenses at the Southeast Project;
partially offset by:

Decreased contract operating charges at the SouthWest Division due to lower member
waste deliveries; and

Decreased operating fee of recyclables at the Recycling Division as a result of the
contract expiration with the Authority’s former operator.

20




Connecticut Resources Recovery Ruthority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

Solid waste operations decreased by $12.2 million from fiscal year 2010 to 2011 primarily due
to:

o Operating expenses decreased by $11.9 million at the Wallingford Project as a result of
the closure of the Project as of June 30, 2010; and

o Operating expenses decreased by $1.1 million at the Southeast Project as a result of lower
distribution of funds to SCRRRA for future expenses due to the impact of increased
electric revenues and prior year project surpluses, plus a slight decrease in contract
operating charges; partially offset by:

o Operating expenses increased by $0.6 million at the Bridgeport Project due to a write-off
in bad debt expense resulting from collections of service payment receivables from
certain former Bridgeport Project member towns.

* Maintenance and utilities expenses remained relatively flat, decreasing by $337,000 and
$128,000 during fiscal years 2012 and 2011; respectively.

* Landfill closure and post-closure care costs remained flat, increasing by $201,000 during
fiscal year 2012. During fiscal year 2011, landfill closure and post-closure care costs
increased by $2.7 million due to the increase in estimated costs at the Hartford Landfill;
partially offset by decreases in estimated costs at the Shelton and Wallingford landfills.

o Legal services — external remained flat, increasing by $202,000 during fiscal year 2012.
Legal services - external decreased by $454,000 during fiscal year 2011 as a result of a legal
matter that was settled in favor of the Authority in July 2010.

¢ Administrative and operational services for both fiscal years remained relatively flat,
decreasing by $175,000 from fiscal year 2011 and increasing by $154,000 from fiscal year
2010.

* Distribution to member towns decreased by $20.6 million from fiscal year 2011. During
fiscal year 2011, the Authority distributed $19.4 million and $1.2 million to its former
Wallingford and Bridgeport Projects town members, respectively.

¢ Distribution to SCRRRA increased by $1.4 million from fiscal year 2011. During fiscal year
2012, the Authority transferred $1.4 million of the Southeast Project surplus funds to
SCRRRA for its future needs.

e Interest expense decreased by $369,000 and $337,000 during fiscal years 2012 and 2011;
respectively, due to principal paydowns on outstanding bonds.

e Other expenses of $435,000 during fiscal year 2012 represents the write-off of various Mid-
Connecticut assets as a result of equipment disposals, future use expense at the Shelton
Landfill, and miscellaneous expenses. Other expenses of $1.5 million during fiscal year
2011 represents the write-off of various Mid-Connecticut assets as a result of plant
improvements and equipment disposals and sales, as well as the transfer of the Wallingford

21




Connecticut Resources Recovery Ruthority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

Project equipment to its former operator on July 1, 2010, distribution of the remaining
balance in the Southeast Project Rebate Fund to SCRRRA for its future needs, and trustee

fees.

CAPITAL ASSETS

The following table is a three year comparison of the Authority’s investment in capital assets:

Capital Assets
(Net of Accumulated Depreciation)
As of Jumne 30,
(In Thousands)
2010 2011 2012
Land $ 28,180 $ 28,180 $ 28,180
Plant 43,189 40,158 37,338
Equipment 57,291 51,242 47,924
Construction-in-progress 861 3,963 5,943
Totals 5 129,521 $ 123,543 $ 119,385

$70,000

$60,000

$50,000

$40,000

32010

$30,000

Amount in Thousands

2011

$20,000 A

E2012

$10,000

$- T ] , ,
Land Plant Equipment  Construction-in-
progress

The Authority’s investment in capital assets for its activities as of June 30, 2012 and 2011 totaled
$119.4 million and $123.5 million, respectively (net of accumulated depreciation). This
investment in capital assets includes buildings and improvements, equipment, gas and steam
turbines, land, landfills, roadways, rolling stock and vehicles.

The total fiscal year 2012 and 2011 decrease in the Authority’s investment in capital assets was
- 3.4% -and -4.6%, respectively. -The fiscal year-2012-decrease is due to depreciation expense;
partially offset by plant improvements, equipment purchases, and CIP. The fiscal year 2011
decrease is due to depreciation expense and the write-off of various Mid-Connecticut assets and

22




Connecticut Resources Recovery Ruthority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

the transfer of the Wallingford Project equipment to its former operator; partially offset by plant
improvements, equipment purchases, and CIP.

Additional information on the Authority’s capital assets can be found in Notes 1J and 3 on pages
36 and 41 of this report; respectively.
LANDFILL ACTIVITY

Hartford Landfill

The Connecticut State Legislature approved legislation that provides $13.0 million, for the
Authority, for costs associated with the closure of the Hartford landfill, with $3.0 million
allocated in fiscal year 2008, and $10.0 million allocated in fiscal year 2009. In March 2008, the
State Bond Commission appropriated $3.0 million. The Authority received the $3.0 million in
January 2009. In July 2010, the State Bond Commission appropriated another $5.0 million. The
Authority recetved the $5.0 million in October 2010. Subsequent legislation was approved that
reduced the amount reimbursable to the Authority to $8.0 million, a reduction of $5.0 million.
Therefore, the Authority has received all of the money available to it ($8.0 million) for costs
associated with the closure of the Hartford Landfill.

In June and July 2007, the Authority awarded two closure construction contracts, one to cap
approximately seven acres in the Phase 1 Ash Area, and the other to cap approximately 45 acres
in the Municipal Solid Waste (“MSW”)/Interim Ash Area, together valued at approximately
$15.0 million. These construction activities proceeded during fiscal 2008 and continued into
fiscal year 2009. In July 2009, the Authority awarded a closure contract for the remaining
portion Phase I ash area valued at approximately $2.5 million. The closure construction
activities associated with the Phase I ash area were completed in fiscal year 2010. The closure
construction activities associated with the 45 acre portion of the MSW/Interim ash area were
completed in 2011. In July 2011, the Authority submitted an application to DEEP for a
modification of the existing Closure Plan to allow for the installation of an exposed
membrane/solar landfill cap over the remaining, uncapped, 35 acres of the landfill. In December
2011, DEEP issued an approval of the Closure Plan Modification, which approved two different
exposed membrane/solar technologies. The Authority anticipates advertising a request for bids
in early fiscal year 2013 for construction of either of the two exposed membrane/solar
technologies to be completed during the calendar year. It is expected that the Authority will
receive certification of closure from DEEP for the entire landfill by January 1, 2014.

Waterbury Landfill

The Authority’s Waterbury Bulky Waste Landfill, a 5.5 acre landfill, was permitted in the mid-
1980°s by Waterbury Landfill Associates to accept waste such as land clearing debris and
construction and demolition debris. The landfill was subsequently purchased by the Authority in
1986  and made part-of its Bridgeport Project: The landfill reached the end of its economically
useful life in fiscal year 2008 and the Authority initiated closure activities during the Summer of
2008, which was completed in November 2008. The Authority submitted a closure construction

23




Connecticut Resources Recovery Ruthority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

certification report on September 18, 2009, and received a notice for DEEP certifying compliant
closure of the landfill dated November 19, 2009.

In December 2000, the State Bond Commission appropriated $200,000 for costs associated with
the closure of the Waterbury Landfill. The Authority received the $200,000 in October 2010.

Shelton and Wallingford Landfills

These two landfills are both closed and are being compliantly managed in accordance with
DEEP’s regulations governing post-closure management of solid waste landfills and the specific
environmental permits that govern post-closure requirements at these landfills. In January 2009,
DEEP advised the Authority that it was finally in a position to issue Stewardship permits to the
Shelton and Wallingford landfills. The Authority had previously submitted post-closure permit
applications to the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (“USEPA”) under the federal
hazardous waste program in December 1991 for both landfills. Both of the new Stewardship
permits were issued on September 16, 2009. Both landfills are subject to this permit program
because both have metal hydroxide waste (hazardous waste) disposal areas. In general, these
Stewardship permits incorporated and subsumed permit conditions and regulatory requirements
found in the solid waste and groundwater discharge permits for the landfills, in addition to the
requirements specified in the hazardous waste regulations.

24




Connecticut Resources Recovery Ruthority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

AUTHORITY RATES AND CHARGES

During the months of January and February each year, as required under the various project bond
resolutions, the Authority’s Board of Directors approves the succeeding fiscal year tip fees for all
of the projects except the Southeast Project, which is subject to approval by SCRRRA. The
following table presents a history of the tip fees for each of the projects:

TIP FEE HISTORY BY PROJECT
(Dollars charged per ton of solid waste delivered)
. Mid-Connecticut . 45 SouthWest . 6
Fiscal Year 123 Bridgeport Division ® Wallingford Southeast
2001 $50.00 $60.00 | $7.00 N/A $56.00 $58.00
2002 $51.00 $60.00 | $7.00 N/A $55.00 $57.00
2003 $57.00 $62.00 | $7.00 N/A $55.00 $57.00
2004 $63.75 $63.00 | $8.00 N/A $55.00 $60.00
2005 $70.00 $64.50 | $8.00 N/A $56.00 $60.00
2006 $70.00 $66.00 | $8.00 N/A $57.00 $60.00
2007 $69.00 $70.00 | $8.00 N/A $58.00 $60.00
2008 $69/$60.96 $76.00 | $5.00 N/A $59.00 $60.00
2009 $72/$62 $80.00 | $18.50 $63.00 $60.00 $60.00
2010 $69/863 N/A N/A $63.00 $60.00 $60.00
2011 $69.00 N/A N/A $64.16 N/A $60.00
2012 . $69.00 N/A N/A $65.11 N/A $60.00

' On October 25, 2007, per court order, the Authority reduced the Mid-Connecticut Project tip fee for municipalities for the remainder of
fiscal year 2008. The hauler’s rate remained at $69/ton for the entire year.

? The Mid-Connecticut Project tip fee was reduced to $62.00 per ton for the period January 1 — June 30, 2009.
* On June 18, 2009, the Board of Directors authorized a $6 per ton credit to the Mid-Connecticut Project tip fee.

4 . . . . L.
The Bridgeport Project charged a split rate; the first rate was for actual tons delivered and the second rate was based on the minimum
commitment tonnage.

* Contracts with the towns within the Bridgeport Project expired on December 31, 2008. Many former Bridgeport Project towns entered into
contracts with the Authority for disposal at the Bridgeport facility at a rate of $63.00 per ton for the period beginning January 1, 2009.

% The Authority's operating contract with the Wallingford Project expired on June 30, 2010. The original Walhngfmd Project towns
subsequently signed solid waste delivery agreements with the operator.

LONG-TERM DEBT ISSUANCE, ADMINISTRATION AND CREDIT RATINGS

As detailed in the table on the following page, as of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 the
Authority had $70.4 million of outstanding debt. Of this amount, $4.1 million comprises debt
issued for the Mid-Connecticut Project. - This issue is further secured by the Special Capital
Reserve Fund (“SCRF”) of the State. The SCREF is a contingent liability of the State available to
replenish any debt service reserve fund draws on bonds that have the SCRF designation. The
. funds used to replenish a debt service reserve draw are provided by the State’s General Fund and
are deemed appropriated by the Connecticut legislature.

25




Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority
K Component Unit of the State of Conmnecticut

In December 2010, the Authority issued $27.8 million of 2010 Series A Project Refunding
Bonds as a conduit for the Southeast Project. This issuance refunded the Southeast Project’s
outstanding 1998 Series A Bonds and were additionally secured by the SCRF. Based on the
contractual arrangements, the 2010 Series A Bonds are not carried on the Authority’s books.

The Authority previously served as conduit issuer on $43.5 million of bonds for the Southeast
Project in connection with the Covanta Southeastern Connecticut Company, which are not
carried on the Authority’s books.

The current ratings of the Authority’s outstanding bonds reflect the upheaval in the credit
markets following the sub-prime mortgage crisis of 2007 and 2008 and the subsequent
recalibration of municipal bond ratings by the major rating agencies.

Additional information on the Authority’s long-term debt can be found in Note 4 on pages 41 -
43 of this report.

STATUS OF OUTSTANDING BONDS ISSUED AS OF JUNE 30, 2012

On
Standard X= Original Principal | Authority's
Moody's | & Poor's | SCRF- Maturity | Principal |Outstanding| Books
PROJECT / Series Rating Rating | Backed ! Dated Date [ ($000) f ($000) [ ($000)
MID-CONNECTICUT PROJECT
1996 Series A - Project Refinancing Aa3 AA X 08/20/96 | 11/15/12 | $209,675 $4,134 $4,134
4,134 4,134
SOUTHEAST PROJECT
2010 Series A - Project Refunding 2 Aa3 AA X 12/02/10 | 11/15/15 27,750 22,760
CORPORATE CREDIT REVENUE BONDS
1992 Series A - Corporate Credit Bal NR - 09/01/92 | 11/15/22 30,000 30,000 -
2001 Series A - Covanta Southeastern Connecticut Company-1 Bal NR - 11/15/01 | 11/15/15 6,750 6,750 -
2001 Series A - Covanta Southeastern Connecticut Company-11|  Bal NR - 11/15/01 | 11/15/15 6,750 6,750 -
66,260 -
TOTAL PRINCIPAL BONDS OUTSTANDING $70,394 $4,134

T SCRF = Speciai Capital Reserve Fund of the State of Connecticut.
r 2

” The 2010 Series A Bonds refunded the 1998 Series A Bonds originally issued in the amount of $87,650,000 on August 18, 1998.
NR = Not Rated

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Authority’s finances for all
those with an interest in the Authority’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information
provided in this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to the Director
of Accounting and Financial Reporting, 100 Constitution Plaza — 6™ Floor, Hartford, CT 06103.

26




Connecticut Resources Recovery Ruthority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

This Page Left Intentionally Blank

27




CONNECTICUT RESOURCES RECOVERY AUTHORITY

A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut
BALANCE SHEETS

AS OF JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011
(Dollars in Thousands)

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS

Unrestricted Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net of allowances
Inventory -
Prepaid expenses
Total Unrestricted Assets

Restricted Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accrued interest receivable
Total Restricted Assets

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Restricted investments o
Capital Assets:
Depreciable, net
Nondepreciable
Development and bond issuance costs, net
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

EXHIBIT 1
Page 1 of 2
2012 2011

$ 76,331 § 73,499
14,009 17,528

6,370 3,973

4,450 885
101,160 95,885
22,875 35,127

- 7

22,875 35,134
124,035 131,019

- 14,724

8,177 817

85,262 91,400
34,123 32,143

1,576 1,984
129,138 141,068

$ 253,173 $ 272,087

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

28




CONNECTICUT RESOURCES RECOVERY AUTHORITY EXHIBIT 1
A Comporient Unit of the State of Connecticut Page 2 of 2
BALANCE SHEETS (Continued)
AS OF JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011
(Doliars in Thousands)
2012 2011
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payable from unrestricted assets:
Closure and post-closure care of landfills 1,330 4,193
Accounts payable 1,658 1,671
Acccrued expenses and other current liabilities 4,804 2,609
Total payable from unrestricted assets 7,792 8,473
Payable from restricted assets:
Bonds payable, net 4,134 3,906
Closure and post-closure care of landfills 1,298 1,196
Accounts payable 850 3,650
Acccrued expenses and other current liabilities 11,702 12,544
Total payable from restricted assets 17,984 21,296
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 25,776 29,769
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Payable from unrestricted assets:
Closure and post-closure care of landfills 39,213 37,929
Other liabilities 3,500 3,500
Total payable from unrestricted assets 42,713 41,429
Payable from restricted assets:
Bonds payable, net - 4,134
Closure and post-closure care of landfills 7,359 7,358
Other liabilities 824 8§98
Total payable from restricted assets 8,183 12,390
TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 50,896 53,819
TOTAL LIABILITIES 76,672 83,588
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 116,348 117,634
Restricted for:
Revenue fund 2,408 13,134
Energy generating facility 1,516 1,421
Equipment replacement 1,504 1,501
Operating and maintenance 1,504 1,501
Select Energy escrow 1,000 1,000
DEEP trust - landfills 818 818
Shelton landfill future use 700 848
Montville landfill post-closure 680 330
Covanta Wallingford escrow 500 500
City of Hartford recycling education fund 189 364
Other restricted net assets 135 153
Debt service funds 96 -
Debt service reserve funds - 3,267
Total Restricted 11,050 24,837
Unrestricted 49,103 46,028
TOTAL NET ASSETS 176,501 188,499
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 253,173 $ 272,087

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

29




CONNECTICUT RESOURCES RECOVERY AUTHORITY

A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011

(Dollars in Thousands)

Operating Revenues
Service charges:
Members
Others
Energy sales
Other operating revenues
Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
Solid waste operations
Depreciation and amortization
Maintenance and utilities
Closure and post-closure care of landfills
Legal services - external
Administrative and Operational services
Distribution to member towns
Distribution to SCRRRA

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Loss
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

Investment income -

Other income (expenses), net

Interest expense
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses), Net
Loss before Special Item

Special item:

Gain on early retirement of debt, net

Change in Net Assets

Total Net Assets, beginning of year

Total Net Assets, end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

EXHIBIT II

2012 2011
$ 55,966 $ 56,889
20,860 19,439
46,547 46,524
8,670 9,215
132,043 132,067
116,261 113,219
16,242 18,009
900 1,237

415 214
1,803 1,601
7,019 7,194

- 20,656

1,401 .
144,041 162,130
(11,998) (30,063)
192 306
125 (1,234)
(317) (686)
- (1,614)
(11,998) (31,677)
- 2,333
(11,998) (29,344)
188,499 217,843
$ 176,501 $ 188,499

30




CONNECTICUT RESOURCES RECOVERY AUTHORITY EXHIBIT I
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011
(Dollars in Thousands)
2012 2011
Cash Flows Provided (Used) by Operating Activities
Payments received from providing services $ 136,561 $ 137,183
Payments to suppliers for goods and services (129,867) (114,179)
Payments to employees for services (4,384) (4,420)
Distribution to member towns - (20,656)
Distribution to SCRRRA (1,401) -
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 909 (2,072)
Cash Flows Provided (Used) by Investing Activities
Interest on investments 197 327
Purchases of investments (7,357) -
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities (7,160) 327
Cash Flows Provided (Used) by Capital and Related Financing Activities
Proceeds from sales of equipment 54 108
Payments for landfill closure and post-closure care liabilities (1,891) (4,019)
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (11,793) (12,829)
Interest paid on long-term debt (335) 677)
Principal paid on long-term debt (3,915) (5,324)
Net Cash Used by Capital and Related Financing Activities (17,880) (22,741)
Cash Flows Used by Non-Capital Financing Activities
Other interest and fees ‘ (13) (14)
Net Cash Used by Non-Capital Financing Activities (13) (14)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (24,144) (24,500)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 123,350 147,850
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 99,206 $ 123,350
Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash Provided (Used)
by Operating Activities:
Operating loss $  (11,998) $  (30,063)
Adjustments to reconcile operating (loss)
to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation of capital assets 15,835 17,577
Amortization of development and bond issuance costs 407 433
Provision for closure and post-closure care of landfills 415 214
Other income (expenses) 197 €]
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable, net ’ 3,519 5,043
Inventory (2,397) (103)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (3,564) 259
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities (1,505) 4,665
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $ 909 $ (2,072)

‘The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

31




Connecticut Resources Recovery Ruthority
K Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Entity and Services

The Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority
(the “Authority”) is a body politic and
corporate, created in 1973 by the State Solid
Waste Management Services Act, constituting
Chapter 446e of the Connecticut General
Statutes. The Authority is a public
instrumentality and political subdivision of the
State of Connecticut (the “State”™) and is
included as a component unit in the State’s
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. As of
June 30, 2012, the Authority is authorized to
have a board consisting of eleven directors and
eight ad-hoc members. The Governor of the
State appoints three directors and all eight ad-
hoc members. The remaining eight directors are
appointed by various state legislative leaders.
All appointments require the advice and consent
of both houses of the General Assembly.

The State Treasurer continues to approve the
issuance of all Authority bonds and notes. The
State is contingently liable to restore
deficiencies in debt service reserves established
for certain Authority bonds. The Authority has
no taxing power.

The  Authority has responsibility for
implementing solid waste disposal and resources
recovery systems and facilities throughout the
State in accordance with the State Solid Waste
Management Plan. To accomplish its purposes,
the Authority is empowered to determine the
location of and construct solid -waste
management projects, to own, operate and
maintain waste management projects, or to make
provisions for operation and maintenance by
contracting with private industry. The Authority
is required to be self-sufficient in its operation
in order to cover the cost of fulfilling the
Authority's mission.

32

The Authority is comprised of two
comprehensive solid waste disposal systems:
Mid-Connecticut Project and Southeast Project,
four divisions: Property Division, SouthWest
Division, Landfill Division, and Recycling
Division (South Unit), a General Fund, and two
inactive projects:  Wallingford Project and
Bridgeport Project. Each of the operating
systems has a wunique legal, contractual,
financial, and operational structure described as
follows:

Mid-Connecticut Project

The Mid-Connecticut Project consists of a 2,850
ton per day municipal solid waste / 2,030 ton
per day refuse derived fuel Resources Recovery
Facility located in Hartford, Connecticut, four
transfer stations, the Hartford Landfill, the
Ellington Landfill, and a Regional Recycling
Center located in Hartford, Connecticut. This
system of facilities provides solid waste disposal
and recycling services to 70 Connecticut
municipalities  through  service  contract
arrangements. The initial contracts with the
municipalities begin to expire in November
2012. The Authority owns the Resources
Recovery Facility, the transfer stations, the
Ellington Landfill, and the Regional Recycling
Center. The Authority leases the land for the
Essex transfer station. The Authority controls
the Hartford Landfill under a long-term lease
with the City of Hartford. The Hartford Landfill
was closed as of December 31, 2008. Under a
contractual arrangement, the Authority currently
ships ash to the privately owned Putnam
Landfill. Private vendors, under various
operating contracts, conduct operation of the
facilities. All revenue generated by the facilities
accrues to the Authority. Certain operating
contracts have provisions for revenue sharing
with a vendor if prescribed operating parameters
are achieved. The Authority has responsibility
for all debt issued in the development of the
Mid-Connecticut system.




Connecticut Resources Recovery Ruthority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

Southeast Project

The Southeast Project consists of a 690 ton per
day mass burn Resources Recovery Facility
located in Preston, Connecticut and the
Montville Landfill. The Southeast Project
provides solid waste disposal services to 12
Connecticut municipalities in the eastern portion
of the State through service contract
arrangements. The initial contracts with the
municipalities begin to expire in November
2015. The Authority owns the Resources
Recovery Facility. It is leased to a private
vendor under a long-term lease. The private
vendor has beneficial ownership of the facility
through this arrangement. The vendor is
obligated to operate and maintain the facility
and service the debt. The Authority derives its
revenues from service fees charged to
participating municipalities and other system
users. The Authority pays the vendor a
contractually determined service fee. Electric
energy revenues and certain other service
charges are accrued by the vendor with certain
contractually prescribed credits payable to the
Authority for these revenue types.

Property Division

The Property Division was created on January 1,
2009, following the expiration of the Bridgeport
Project on December 31, 2008 and the
simultaneous maturity of the Authority’s bonds
that had been issued to finance the construction
of the Bridgeport Project. The Authority was
the owner and holder of several funds, assets,
and liabilities, including numerous landfill post-
closure reserves related to the former Bridgeport
Project, the Shelton transfer station, and the
Garbage Museum (located in Stratford). As
these assets and liabilities were no longer
project-specific, the Authority created the
Property Division to reflect their status. On
July 1, 2010, the Authority transferred similar
assets and liabilities associated with the
Wallingford Project following the expiration of
that Project on June 30, 2010. In addition, other
post-closure reserves related to the Mid-
Connecticut Project are anticipated to be
transferred to the Property Division following

33

the culmination of that Project on November 15,
2012.

SouthWest Division

The Authority provides disposal services to 12
of the former 20 Bridgeport Project towns for
disposal at the Wheelabrator facility located in
Bridgeport. On December 31, 2008, the
Authority and Wheelabrator Bridgeport entered
into a First Amendment and Renewal of Site
Lease; whereby Wheelabrator Bridgeport
purchased the Authority’s nominal interest in
the Facility.

Landfill Division

The Landfill Division was created during fiscal
year 2012 to account for specific costs
associated with post-closure reserves for the
Shelton, Waterbury, and Wallingford landfills.
As a result, certain assets; liabilities; and net
assets previously reported in the Property
Division were transferred into the Landfill
Division. Following the expiration of the Mid-
Comnecticut Project, the Ellington and Hartford
landfills will also become part of the Landfill
Division,

Recycling Division (South Unit)

A new division called the Recycling Division
(South Unit) was created during fiscal year 2012
to account for the Stratford recycling activity
that was originally part of the Bridgeport
Project. As a result, certain assets, liabilities,
and net asset related to the Stratford recycling,
which was previously reported in the Property
Division following the closure of the Bridgeport
Project, were transferred into the Recycling
Division (South Unit). A Recycling Division
(North Unit) will be created following the
expiration of the Mid-Connecticut Project to
account for the recycling operations of Mid-
Connecticut.




Connecticut Resources Recovery Ruthority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

General Fund

The Authority has a General Fund in which the
costs of central overall expenditures are
accumulated. These costs were historically
allocated to the Authority’s projects primarily
based on time expended. Effective fiscal year
2010, these costs are allocated to the Authority’s
projects primarily based on a weighting of
assets, revenues, number of towns, and tonnage
deliveries, in order to be more indicative of cost
causation.

Wallingford Project

The Authority’s contract with the Wallingford
Project’s municipalities ended on June 30, 2010.
The operating contract between the Authority
and the Wallingford Project also expired on
June 30, 2010. The contract had a provision;
whereby the Authority could exercise an option
to purchase the facility under certain conditions
when the contract ended. The Authority did not
exercise its option to purchase and the vendor
now owns the Facility. The Authority retained
the right to deliver 25,000 tons per year of solid
waste. The five original Wallingford Project
towns signed agreements with the vendor and
continue to deliver their solid waste to the
Facility.

Bridgeport Project

The Authority's contract with the Bridgeport
Project’s municipalities ended on December 31,
2008, as did the Authority’s agreement with the
Bridgeport Project’s operator. As a result, the
Bridgeport Project is no longer accepting solid
waste and has effectively ceased operations.
The Authority executed a new five-and-a-half-
year service agreement with an operator,
commencing on Jamuary 1, 2009, for the
disposal of approximately 265,000 tons of
municipal solid waste (“MSW?”) annually from
12 of the Project’s municipalities.  These
Bridgeport Project municipalities have signed
service agreements with the Authonty’s
SouthWest Division for waste deliveries
beginning on January 1, 2009.

34

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting,
and Basis of Presentation

The Authority is considered to be an Enterprise
Fund. The Authority’s operations and balances
are accounted for using a separate set of self-
balancing accounts that comprise its assets,
liabilities, net assets, revenues, and expenses.

Enterprise funds are established to account for
operations that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business enterprises,
where the intent is that the costs of providing
goods or services on a continuing basis are
financed or recovered primarily through user
charges.

The Authority’s financial statements are
prepared using an economic  resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recognized when
earned and expenses are recognized when
incurred. Interest on revenue bonds, used to
finance the construction of certain asset, is
capitalized during the construction period, net of
interest earned on the investment of unexpended
bond proceeds.

The Authority distinguishes operating revenues
and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally
result from providing services in connection
with the disposal of solid waste. The principal
operating revenues of the Authority are charges
to customers for user services and sales of
electricity. Operating expenses include the cost
of solid waste operations, maintenance and
utilities, closure and post-closure care of
landfills, administrative expenses, distribution
to member towns and/or other, and depreciation
on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as non-
operating revenues and expenses.

C. Estimates P

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America
(“GAAP”) requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the




Connecticut Resources Recovery Ruthority
R Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the balance sheets and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting  period. Such  estimates are
subsequently revised as deemed necessary when
additional information becomes available.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

D. Cashand Cash Equivalents

All unrestricted and restricted highly liquid
investments with maturities of three months or
less when purchased are considered to be cash
equivalents.

E. Accounts Receivable, Net

Accounts receivable are shown net of an
allowance for the estimated portion that is not
expected to be collected. The Authority
performs ongoing credit evaluations and
generally requires a guarantee of payment form
of collateral. The Authority has established an
allowance for the estimated portion that is not
expected to be collected of $468,000 at June 30,
2012 and $115,000 at June 30, 2011.

F. Inventory

The Authority’s spare parts inventory is stated
at the lower of cost or market using the
weighted-average cost method. The Authority’s
fuel inventory is stated at the lower of cost or
market using the FIFO method. Inventories at
June 30, 2012 and 2011 are summarized as
follows:

Fiscal Year
Inventories 2012 2011
(5000) ($000)
Spare Parts $ 5,390 $ 3,973
Fuel 980 -
Total $ 6,370 $ 3,973

35

G. Investments

Investments are stated at fair value. Gains or
losses on sales of investments are determined
using the specific identification method.

Interest on investments is recorded as revenue in
the year the interest is earned, unless capitalized
as an offset to capitalized interest expense on
assets acquired with tax-exempt debit.

H. Restricted Assets

Under provisions of various bond indentures
and certain other agreements, restricted assets
are used for debt service, special capital reserve
funds and other debt service reserve funds,
development, construction and operating costs.




Connecticut Resources Recovery Ruthority
R Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

I. Development and Bonds Issuance Costs

Costs incurred during the development stage of
an Authority project, including, but not limited
to, initial planning and permitting, and bond
issuance costs are capitalized. When the project
begins commercial operation, the development
costs are amortized using the straight-line
method over the estimated life of the project.
Bond issuance costs are amortized over the life
of the related bond issue using the straight-line
method.

At June 30, 2012 and 2011, development and
bond issuance costs for the projects are as
follows:

Fiscal Year
Project 2012 2011
($000) ($000)

Southeast
Development Costs 10,006 10,006
Less:

Accummulated

amortization 8,438 8,045
Total development

costs, net 1,568 1,961
Mid-Connecticut
Bond Issuance Costs 239 239
Less:

Accummulated

amortization 231 216
Total bond issuance

costs, net $ 8 $§ 23
Totals, net $ 1,576 $ 1,984

36

A summary of future amortization for
development costs and bond issuance costs is as
follows:

Project
Fiscal year ending Mid-
June 30, Connecticut  Southeast
($000) ($000)
Bond Issuance Costs
2013 8 -
$ $ -
Development Costs
2013 - 392
2014 - 392
2015 - 392
2016 - 392
$ - 8§ 1568
Total $ 8 § 1568

J. Capital Assets

Capital assets with a useful life in excess of one
year are capitalized at historical cost.
Depreciation of exhaustible capital assets is
charged as an expense against operations.
Depreciation has been provided over the
estimated useful lives using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives of landfills
are based on the estimated years of available
disposal capacity. The estimated useful lives of
other capital assets are as follows:

Capital Assets Years
Resources Recovery Buildings 30
Other Buildings 20
Resources Recovery Equipment 30
Gas and Steam Turbines 10-20
Recycling Equipment 10
Rolling Stock and Automobiles 5
Office and Other Equipment 3-5
Roadways 20




Connecticut Resources Recovery Ruthority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

The Authority’s capitalization threshold for
property, plant, and equipment and for office
furniture and equipment is $5,000 and $1,000,
respectively. Improvements, renewals, and
significant repairs that extend the useful life of a
capital asset are capitalized; other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed as incurred.
When capital assets are retired or otherwise
disposed of, the related asset and accumulated
depreciation is written off and any related gains
or losses are recorded.

The Authority reviews its long-lived assets used
in operations for impairment when there is an
event or change in circumstances that indicates
impairment in value. The Authority records
impairment losses and reduces the carrying
value of properties when indicators of
impairment are present and the expected
undiscounted cash flows related to those
properties are less than their carrying amounts.
In cases where the Authority does not expect to
recover its carrying costs on properties held for
use, the Authority reduces its carrying cost to
fair value, and for properties held for sale, the
Authority reduces its carrying value to the fair
value less costs to sell. During the fiscal years
ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, no impairment
losses were recognized. Management does not
believe that the value of its properties is
impaired as of June 30, 2012.

K. Accrued Compensation

The Authority’s liability for vested accumulated
unpaid vacation and other employee benefit
amounts is included in accrued expenses and
other current liabilities in the accompanying
balance sheet.  Accumulated vacation and
personal time earned and not paid at June 30,
2012 and 2011 was $475,000 and $409,000,
respectively.

L. Net Assets

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt,
consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation and reduced by the outstanding
balances of bonds that are attributable to the
acquisition, construction, or improvement of
those assets.

37

Unrestricted net assets may be divided into
designated and  undesignated  portions.
Designated net assets represent the Authority’s
self-imposed limitations on the use of otherwise
unrestricted net assets. Unrestricted net assets
have been designated by the Board of Directors
of the Authority for various purposes. Such
designations totaled $34.9 million and $27.3
million as of June 30, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. Unrestricted net assets at June 30,
2012 and 2011 are summarized as follows:

Unrestricted Net Assets 2012 2011
(5600) (5000)
Undesignated $ 14,251 $ 18,744
Designated:
Non-GASB#18 post-closure 7,628 10,379
Future loss contingencies 12,262 10,600
Facility modifications 6,351 3,004
Litigation reserve 2,358 -
Transition costs 2,029 -
Rolling stock 1,033 1,031
Recycling 678 677
Béc.yc.ling Education solid waste 500 )
initiative reserve
Post-litigation expense 459 51
Post-project 1,053 393
Project-closure 117 305
Landfill development 296 296
South Meadows site remediation 88 88
34,852 27,284
Total Unrestricted Net Assets $ 49,103 $ 46,028

Restrictions of net assets are limited to outside
third party restrictions and represent the net
assets that have been legally identified for
specific purposes. Restricted net assets totaled
$11.1 million and $24.8 million as of June 30,
2012 and 2011, respectively.

As of June 30, 2012 and 2011, the Authority has
no restricted net assets that are restricted by
enabling legislation.




Connecticut Resources Recovery Ruthority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

M. Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the
2011 financial statements to conform to the
current year presentation.

2. CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of the
following as of June 30, 2012 and 2011:

Cash and Cash Equivalents 2012 2011
(3$000) ($000)
Unrestricted:
Cash deposits $ 1326 $ 1218
Cash equivalents:
STIF * 75,005 72,281
76,331 73,499
Restricted — current:
Cash deposits 3,628 1,511
Cash equivalents:
STIF * 18,106 33,116
U.S. Treasuries - 500
Money Market
Funds 1,141 -
22875 35,127
Restricted — non-current:
Cash equivalents:
STIF * - 7,366
U.S. Treasuries - 7,358
- 14,724
Total $ 99,206 $123.350

* STIF = Short-Term Investment Fund of the State of Connecticut

A. Cash Deposits — Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event
of a bank failure, the Authority will not be able
to recover its deposits or will not be able to
recover collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. The Authority’s
investment policy does not have a deposit policy
for custodial credit risk.

As of June 30, 2012 and 2011, approximately
$2.3 million and $5.2 million, respectively, of

38

the Authority’s bank balance of cash deposits
were exposed to custodial credit risk as follows:

Custodial Credit Risks 2012 2011
($000) ($000)

Uninsured and Uncollateralized  $1,941 $4.423

Uninsured but collateralized

with securities held by the

pledging bank’s trust

department or agent but not in

the Authority’s name 406 802

Total $2,347 $5,225

All of the Authority’s deposits were in qualified
public institutions as defined by State statute.
Under this statute, any bank holding public
deposits must at all times maintain, segregated
from other assets, eligible collateral in an
amount equal to a certain percentage of its
public deposits. The applicable percentage is
determined based on the bank’s risk-based
capital ratio. The amount of public deposits is
determined based on either the public deposits
reported on the most recent quarterly call report,
or the average of the public deposits reported on
the four most recent quarterly call reports,
whichever is greater. The collateral is kept in
the custody of the trust department of either the
pledging bank or another bank in the name of
the pledging bank.

Investments in the Short-Term Investment Fund
(“STIF”), U.S. Treasuries, and Money Market
Funds as of June 30, 2012 and 2011 are
included in cash and cash equivalents in the
accompanying balance sheet. For purposes of
disclosure under GASB Statement No. 40, such
amounts are considered investments and are
included in the investment disclosures that
follow.




Connecticut Resources Recovery Ruthority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

B. Investments
Interest Rate Risk

As of June 30, 2012, the Authority’s
investments consisted of the following debt
securities:

Investment Maturities

(In Years)
Investment Fair Less More
Type Value than  1to 6to than
{8000) | 5 10 10
STIF $ 93,111 $93111 § - $§ - § -

U.S. Treasuries 8,177 8,177 - -

Total $101288 $101288 § - § - § -

As of June 30, 2011, the Authority’s
investments consisted of the following debt
securities:

Investment Maturities

(In Years)
Investment Fair Less More
Type Value than 1to 6to than
(8000) i 5 100 10
STIF $112,763 $112,763 § - § - § -
U.S. Treasuries 8,675 8,675 - - -
Total $121438 $121438 § - § - § -

STIF is an investment pool of short-term money
market instruments that may include adjustable-
rate federal agency and foreign government
securities whose interest rates vary directly with
short-term money market indices and are
generally reset daily, monthly, quarterly, and
semi-annually. The adjustable-rate securities
have similar exposures to credit and legal risks
as fixed-rate securities from the same issuers.
The fair value of the position in the pool is the
same as the value of the pool shares. As of both
June 30, 2012 and 2011, STIF had a weighted
average maturity of 31 days. The U.S. Treasury
Securities are U.S. Treasury Bills that had 180-
day and 90-day maturities as of June 30, 2012
and 2011, respectively. The Money Market

39

Funds invest exclusively in short-term U.S.
Treasury obligations and repurchase agreements
secured by U.S. Treasury obligations. This fund
complies with Securities and Exchange
Commission regulations regarding money
market fund maturities, which requires that the
weighted average maturity be 90 days or less.
As of June 30, 2012, the weighted average
maturity of this fund was 49 days.

The Authority’s investment policy does not
limit investment maturities as a means of
managing its exposure to fair value losses
arising from increasing interest rates. The
Authority is limited to investment maturities as
required by specific bond resolutions or as
needed for immediate use or disbursement.
Those funds not included in the foregoing may
be invested in longerterm securities as
authorized in the Authority’s investment policy.
The primary objectives of the Authority’s
investment policy are the preservation of
principal and the maintenance of liquidity.

Credit Risk

The Authority’s investment policy delineates the
investment of funds in securities as authorized
and defined within the bond resolutions
governing the Mid-Connecticut and Southeast
Projects for those funds established under the
bond resolution and held in trust by the
Authority’s trustee.  For all other funds,
Connecticut state statutes permit the Authority
to invest in obligations of the United States,
including its instrumentalities and agencies; in
obligations of any state or of any political
subdivision, authority or agency thereof,
provided such obligations are rated within one
of the top two rating categories of any
recognized rating service; or in obligations of
the State of Connecticut or of any political
subdivision thereof, provided such obligations
are rated within one of the top three rating
categories of any recognized rating service.

As of June 30, 2012, the
investments were rated as follows:

Authority’s




Connecticut Resources Recovery Ruthority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

Fair Moody's
Security Value  Standard Investor  Fitch
($000) & Poor's Service  Ratings
Not Not
STIF $ 93111 AAAm  Rated Rated
U.S. Treasuries $ 8177 AA+ Aaa AAA
Money Market Funds $ 1141 AAAm  Aaa  AAAmmf
As of June 30, 2011, the Authority’s
investments were rated as follows:
Fair Moody's
Security Value  Standard Investor  Fitch
($000) & Poor's Service  Ratings
Not Not
STIF $112,763 AAAm  Rated Rated
U.S. Treasuries $ 8675 AAA Aaa AAA
Custodial Credit Risk

For an investment, custodial credit risk is the
risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the Authority will not be able to
recover the value of its investments or collateral

40

securities that are in the possession of an outside
party. The Authority’s investment policy does
not include provisions for custodial credit risk,
as the Authority does not invest in securities that
are held by counterparties. In accordance with
GASB Statement No. 40, none of the
Authority’s investments require custodial credit
risk disclosures.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Authority’s investment policy places no
limit on the amount of investment in any one
issuer, but does require diversity of the
investment portfolio if investments are made in
non-U.S. government or U.S. agency securities
to eliminate the risk of loss of over-
concentration of assets in a specific class of
security, a specific maturity and/or a specific
issuer. The asset allocation of the investment
portfolio should, however, be flexible enough to
assure adequate liquidity for Authority and/or
bond resolution needs. As of June 30, 2012 and
2011, approximately 90.9% and 92.9%,
respectively, of the Authority’s investments are
in the STIF, which is rated in the highest rating
category by Standard & Poor’s and provides
daily liquidity, thereby satisfying the primary
objectives of the Authority’s investment policy.




Connecticut Resources Recovery Ruthority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

3. CAPITAL ASSETS

The following is a summary of changes in capital assets for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2012:

Balance at Sales and Balance at Sales and Balance at
June 30,2010  Additions Transfers Disposals  June 30,2011  Additions Transfers Disposals June 30,2012
($000) ($000) (8000) ($000) ($000) ($000) ($000) ($000) ($000)
Depreciable assets:
Plant $ 185853 § 64 5 313§  (625) § 189016 7 8 3030 § (214 § 192180
Equipment 218,834 1,574 4,408 (1,394 22,91 1205 § 5122 §  (787) 228,521
Total at cost 404,687 2228 7541 (2,519 411,937 1,672 8,153 (£.061) 420,701
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Plant (142,664) (6,379) 186 (148,858) 6,192) § -3 208 (154,842)
Equipment (161,543) (11,198) 1,062 (171,679) (9643) § -3 725 (180,597)
Total accumulated depreciation (304,207 (17,517 1,248 (320,537) (15,335) - 933 (335,439)
Total depreciable assets, net $ 100480 § (15349) $ 1541 0§ (1271) § 91400 8 (14163) $ 8153 § (128 § 85,262
Nondepreciable assets:
Land § 28180 % -8 -8 § 2818 § - ¥ -8 - § 28,180
Construction-in-progress 861 10,643 (7,541) 3,963 10,133 8,153) % - 5,943
Total nondepreciable assets § 29041 § 10643 § (7541) § § 3243 § 1013 0§ §15) § - § 34,123
Total depreciable and
nondepreciable assets $§ 12950 § (47060 § $ (1,27 0§ 123543 0§ (4030) $ - 0§ (128 8§ 119385
Interest is capitalized on assets acquired with 4. LONG-TERM DEBT

debt. The amount of interest to be capitalized is
calculated by offsetting interest expense
incurred from the date of borrowing until
completion of the projects with interest earned
on invested debt proceeds over the same period.
During fiscal years 2012 and 2011, there was no
capitalized interest as there was no new external
borrowing.

The principal long-term obligations of the
Authority are special obligation revenue bonds
issued to finance the design, development, and
construction of resources recovery and recycling
facilities and landfills throughout the State.
These bonds are paid solely from the revenues
generated from the operations of the projects
and other receipts, accounts, and monies
pledged in the respective bond indentures.

The following is a summary of changes in bonds payable for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2012:

Balance at Balance at Balance at Amounts
July I, June 30, June 30, Due Within
Bonds Payable 2010 Increases Decreases 2011 Increases  Decreases 2012 One Year
(8000) ($000) ($000) ($000) ($000) ($000) ($000) ($000)
Bonds payable - principal $ 16200 § $ @i151) $  8M9 § - § (3915 § 4134 0§ 414
Unamortized amounts:
Premiums 188 (188) - -
Deferred amount on refunding (444) 433 (11 - 11
Total bonds payable $ 15044 % $ (7906 $§ 8038 § - $ (3904 § 413§ 41H4

41




Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

The long-term debt amounts for the projects in
the table above have been reduced by the
deferred amount on refunding of bonds, net of
the unamortized premium on the sale of bonds at
June 30, 2012 and 2011 as follows:

Project 2012 2011
($000) ($000)
Deferred amount on
refunding;
Mid-Connecticut $ - $ 11
Subtotal - 11
Net Reduction $ - $ 11

Certain of the Authority’s bonds are secured by
special capital reserve funds. Each fund is equal
to the highest annual amount of debt service
remaining on the issue. The State is contingently
liable to restore any deficiencies that exist in
these funds in the event that the Authority must
draw from the fund. Bond principal amounts
recorded as long-term debt at June 30, 2012 and
2011, which are backed by special capital
reserve funds, are as follows:

Project 2012 2011
($000) ($000)
Mid-Connecticut $ 4,134 $ 8,049
Total $ 4,134 $ 8,049
These special capital reserve funds are

presented as net assets, restricted for debt
service reserve funds on the Authority’s balance
sheet.

Annual debt service requirements to maturity on
bonds payable are as follows:

Fiscal year Mid-Connecticut
ending - Principal Interest
June 30, ($000) ($000)
2013 4,134 114
Interest Rate 5.50%

42

Early Retirement of Debt

The Authority has served as the conduit issuer
on behalf of the Southeastern Connecticut
Regional Resources Recovery  Authority
(“SCRRRA”) for all of its solid waste disposal
facility bonds. SCRRRA has a beneficial
ownership arrangement with its facility operator
Covanta Southeastern Connecticut Company
(“Covanta”) in which debt service obligations
are shared. On December 15, 2010, the
Authority issued Resource Recovery Revenue
Refunding Bonds (Covanta Southeastern
Connecticut Company Project — 2010 Series A)
(the “2010 Series A Bonds™) in the principal
amount of $27.750 million, which refunded the
Authority’s Resource Recovery Revenue Bonds
{American REF-FUEL Company of
Southeastern Connecticut Project — 1998 Series
A) (the “1998 Series A Bonds”). Substantially
all of the net proceeds of the 2010 Series A
Bonds, together with other monies of SCRRRA,
were used to refund $34.010 million of the
outstanding 1998 Series A Bonds. The sale of
the 2010 Series A Bonds generated savings
totaling $7,971,230 over the life of the issue.

Under an agreement between the Authority and
Covanta, 11.129% of the 1998 Series A Bonds
were carried on the books of the Authority as
they reimbursed both the Authority and
SCRRRA for certain development costs in
connection with the original construction of the
solid waste disposal facility. With the issuance
of the 2010 Series A Bonds, both the Authority
and Covanta agreed that the amount carried on
the books of the Authority be reduced from
11.129% to zero.

No other bonds were issued by the Authority
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012.

As a result of the refunding, the Authority
recognized $2.3 million in the accompanying
statement of revenues, expenses and changes in
net assets for the year ended June 30, 2011. The
amount is attributable to the repayment of the
1998 Series A Bonds outstanding principal as of
December 15, 2010 and the write-off of
unamortized amounts such as bond issuance
costs, premium on sale of bonds, and other




Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

deferred amounts as a result of the Southeast
Project refunding. The following table presents
the calculation for gain on early retirement of
debt, net:

S. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES FOR
CLOSURE AND POST-CLOSURE
CARE OF LANDFILLS

Federal, State and local regulations require the

CRRA's Portion Authority to place final cover on its landfills
(3000) when it stops accepting waste (including ash)
Funds provided for refunding; and to perform certain maintenance and
Transfer from: monitoring functions for periods that may
Debi Service Interest Account $ 16 extend to thirty years after closure.
Debt Service Principal account 57
Special Capital Reserve Fund — 886 GASB Statement No. 18 "Accounting for
959 Municipal Solid Waste Landfill Closure and
Accrued interest (16) Post-Closure Care Costs," applies to closure and
$ A post-closure care costs that are paid near or after
the date a landfill stops accepting waste. In
Net carrying amounis: accordance with GASB Statement No. 18, the
Principal § 3,785 Authority estimates its liability for these closure
Unamortized premium on sale of bonds 161 and post-closure care costs and records any
Bonds issuance costs (1,009) increases or decreases to the liability as an
Accum. amortization - bonds issuance costs 698 operating expense. For landfills presently open,
Deferred amount on 19984 refunding — )] such estimate is based on landfill capacity used
S 3 as of the balance sheet date. The liability for
these costs is reduced when the costs are
Gain § 2,333 actually paid, which is generally after the
landfill is closed.
Actual costs may be higher due to inflation or
changes in permitted capacity, technology or
regulation. The closure and post-closure care
liabilities including the amounts paid and
accrued for fiscal 2011 and 2012 for the
landfills, are presented in the following table:
Liability Liability Liability Amounts
at at at Due
July 1, June 30, June 30, Within
Project/Landfill 2010 Expense Paid 2011 Expense Paid 2012 Ore Year
($000) (8000) ($000) ($000) ($000) (8000) ($000) (8000)
Mid-Connecticut:
Hartford $ 31,795 $ 853 $ (3242) $ 29,406 $ 418 $ (1,206) $ 28618 $ 1223
Ellington 3,985 (107) (140) 3738 16 (140) 3,614 245
Landfill Division:
Shelton 11,764 (170) (456) 11,138 162 (394) 10,907 746
Waterbury 978 31 (28) 981 (1) (29) 950 41
 Wallingford 5959 (393) (153) 5413 (180) (122) 5111 373
Total $ 54481 $ 214 $(4019) $50676 $ 415  $ (1891) $49200 $ 2,628

43




Connecticut Resources Recovery Ruthority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

The Connecticut Department of Environmental
Protection (“DEEP”) requires that certain
financial assurance mechanisms be maintained
by the Authority to ensure payment of closure
and post-closure costs related to certain
landfills. Additionally, DEEP requires that the
Authority budget for closure costs for Mid-
Connecticut’s Hartford Landfill.

The Authority has placed funds in trust accounts
for the Ellington, Waterbury, and Wallingford
Landfills for financial assurance purposes.
These trust accounts are reflected as restricted
investments in the accompanying balance sheet.

In addition, the Authority has established Post-
Closure Trust Funds as financial assurance
mechanisms for the Shelton Landfill and the
Wallingford Landfill. These trust funds are
reflected as restricted investments and restricted
cash and cash equivalents in the accompanying
balance sheet as of June 31, 2012 and 2011;
respectively.

6. MAJOR CUSTOMERS

Energy sales to Northeast Utilities and
Constellation totaled 21.77% and 13.48%,
respectively, of the Authority’s operating
revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2012. Energy sales to Northeast Utilities and
Constellation totaled 21.44% and 13.79%,
respectively, of the Authority’s operating
revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2011.

Service charge revenues from All Waste, Inc.
totaled 7.00% of the Authority’s operating
revenues for each of the fiscal years ended June
30, 2012 and 2011.

7. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN

The Authority is the Administrator of its 401(k)
Employee Savings Plan. This defined
contribution retirement plan covers all eligible
employees.

Under the Amended and Restated 401(k)
Employee Savings Plan, effective July 1, 2000,
Authority contributions are five percent of

44

payroll plus a dollar for dollar match of
employees’ contributions up to five percent of
employee wages. Authority contributions for the
years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 amounted
to $404,000 and $415,000, respectively.
Employees contributed $378,000 to the plan in
fiscal year 2012 and $411,000 in fiscal year
2011.

In addition, the Authority is a participating
employer in the State of Connecticut’s defined
contribution 457(b) Plan, which allows
Authority employees to participate in the State
of Connecticut’s deferred compensation plan
created in accordance with Internal Revenue
Code Section 457. All  amounts of
compensation deferred under the 457(b) plan,
all property and rights purchased with those
amounts, and all income attributable to those
amounts, property, or rights are held in trust for
the exclusive benefit of the plan participants and
their beneficiaries. The Authority holds no
fiduciary responsibility for the plan; rather,
fiduciary responsibility rests with the State
Comptroller’s office.

The Authority has no post-employment benefit
plans as of June 30, 2011 and 2012.

8. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Authority is exposed to various risks of
loss. The Authority endeavors to purchase
commercial insurance for all insurable risks of
loss that can be done so at reasonable expense.
Settled claims have not exceeded this
commercial coverage in any of the past three
fiscal years. In fiscal year 2012, the Authority
increased its overall property insurance limit to
reflect an increase in overall property values.
This provides 100% of the replacement cost
value for the Mid-Connecticut Power Block
Facility and Energy Generating Facility, plus
business interruption and extra expense values
for the Mid-Connecticut Project. This is the
Authority’s highest valued single facility. The
limit applies on a blanket basis for property
damage to all locations.

The Authority is a member of the Connecticut
Interlocal  Risk  Management  Agency’s




Connecticut Resources Recovery Ruthority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

(“CIRMA”) Workers’ Compensation Pool, a
risk sharing pool, which was begun on July 1,
1980. The Workers’ Compensation Pool
provides statutory benefits pursuant to the
provisions of the Connecticut Workers’
Compensation Act. The coverage is a
guaranteed cost program. The premium for each
of the policy periods from July 1, 2012 through
July 1, 2013 and July 1, 2011 through July 1,
2012 was $60,000 and $74,000, respectively.

9. COMMITMENTS

The Authority has various operating leases for
office space and office equipment, which totaled
$362,000 and $363,000 for fiscal years 2012
and 2011, respectively. The lease for the office
space expires on December 31, 2012, and the
Authority intends to extend it for one year.

The Authority also has agreements with various
municipalities for payments in lieu of taxes
(“PILOT™) for personal and real property. For
the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, the
PILOT payments, which are included in the
solid waste operations in the accompanying
statements of revenues, expenses and changes in
net assets, fotaled $ 5,553,000 and $ 5,121,000,
respectively. Future minimum rental
commitments under non-cancelable operating
leases and future PILOT payments as of June
30, 2012 are as follows:

Lease PILOT
Fiscal Year Amount Amount

($000) ($000)
2013 349 3,308
2014 349 907
2015 344 949
2016 15 992
2017 15 1,037
Thereafter 150 224
Total $ 1222 $ 7417

45

The Authority has executed contracts with the
operators/contractors of the resources recovery
facilities, regional recycling centers, transfer
stations, and landfills containing various terms
and conditions expiring through November
2015. Generally, operating charges are derived
from various factors such as tonnage processed,
energy produced, and certain pass-through
operating costs.

The approximate amount of contract operating
charges, including transition costs incurred in
connection with a new Operations and
Management Agreements effective in 2012 (“O
& M Agreements”) to operate the Mid-
Connecticut’s Waste Processing Facility (the
“WPF), the Power Block Facility, and the
Energy Generation Facility, included in solid
waste operations and maintenance and utilities
expense for the years ended June 30, 2012 and
2011 was as follows:

Project 2012 2011
($000) ($000)

Mid-Connecticut $ 67,943 $ 65,975
Southeast 21,046 20,521
SouthWest 13218 13,830
Property 240 2,238
Landfill 123 -
Recycling 588 -
Wallingford 21 95
Total $ 103,179 $ 102,659

There are no construction contracts executed
during fiscal year 2012. During fiscal year 2011,
the Authority executed construction contracts
totaling approximately $2.0 million for
construction of a new jet fuel storage tank at the
Jet Turbine Facility. As of June 30, 2011,
remaining commitments on executed
construction contracts totaling approximately
$303,000.




Connecticut Resources Recovery Ruthority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

10. OTHER FINANCING

The Authority served as a conduit issuer for
several bonds pursuant to bond resolutions to
fund the construction of waste processing
facilities built and operated by independent
contractors. The revenue bonds were issued by
the Authority to lower the cost of borrowing for
the contractor/operator of the projects. The
Authority was not involved in the construction
activities, and construction requisitions by the
contractor were made from various trustee
accounts.

The Authority is not involved in the repayment
of debt on these issues. In the event of default,
and except in cases where the State has a
contingent liability, the payment of debt is not
guaranteed by the Authority or the State.
Therefore, the Authority does not record the
assets and liabilities related to these bond issues
on its financial statements. The principal
amounts of these bond issues outstanding at
June 30, 2012 are as follows:

Project Amount
" ($000)
Southeast -
1992 Series A - Corp. Credit $ 30,000

2001 Series A - Covanta

Southeastern Connecticut

Company - | 6,750
2001 Series A - Covanta

Southeastern Connecticut

Company - 11 6,750
2010 Series A - Project Refunding 22,760
Total $ 66,260

46

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Authority has two projects that operate
resources recovery and recycling facilities and
landfills throughout the State, four divisions,
and two inactive projects, and are required to be
self-supporting through user service fees and
sales of electricity. The Authority has issued
various revenue bonds to provide financing for
the design, development, and construction of
these resources recovery and recycling facilities
and landfills throughout the State. These bonds
are paid solely from the revenues generated
from the operations of the projects and other
receipts, accounts, and monies pledged in the
respective bond indentures. Financial segment
information is presented below as of and for the
years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011,
respectively.




Connecticut Resources Recovery Ruthority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

Fiscal Year 2012 Mid-Connecticut ~ Southeast SouthWest Property Landfill Recydling  Bridgeport (1) ~ Wallingford {2)
Project Project Division Division Division Division Project Project
{8000) (s000) (000) (8000) (S000) (S000) (S000) {8000)
Condensed Balane Sheets
Assets:
Current wresiricted assets $ BH6 5 576§ 26§ 18 5 12463 §  1M6 $ .
Current restricted assels 15823 5,343 . 500 o T0o 9
Total curent assets 91439 11,609 2634 2181 13,163 1,455
Non-current assels:
Restricted investments 490 - 7,687
Capital assets, net 102,601 - 5663 10,338
Other assets, net 8 1,568 - -
Total non-curent assets 103,099 1,568 5,663 18,525
Total asets $ 19458 5§ 13471 § 263§ 784 0§ 31688 5 145§
Liabilities:
Current fiabilities $ 17808 5§ 2983 % 159§ 0§ L § AV
Long-term Labifities 34264 ] - 15,308
Total libilities 5201 wm 2539 120 17,025 22
Net Assets:
Tnvested in capital assets, net of related debt 99,564 - 5663 10,838
Restricted 6,434 3,088 500 1,028 -
Unrestricted 36,468 6312 95 1,561 2797 1,203
Total nel assts 142,466 9,400 95 74 14,663 1,203
Total liabilities and net assets $ 1945% § 117§ 16§ 784 0§ 368 5 145§
Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets
Operating revenues $ %08l 0§ 26751 § 13618 8 6§ Lu1 8
Operating expenses 8497 11530 13,651 716 n 1,046 30 4l
Depreciation andamortization expense 15418 392 - 265
Operating (loss) income (10313) (L1 (33) (243) n 1 (30) Q)
Non-operating revenus (expenses):
lnvestment income 157 3 | ] 25 2 1
Other income (expenses), net 30 13 9 (154) {138)
Interest expense @i
Net non-operating revenues (expense) 160 i6 | 6) (129 2 (137)
Income (foss) before special item and transfers (10,153) (1,155) (32) (249) (200) ik (30) (178)
Transfers in (out) - - (14.840) 14,363 1130 (363) {190)
Change in net assets (10,153) {1,155) (32) (15.089) 14,663 1,203 (393) (968)
Total net assets, Juy 1, 2011 152619 10,555 127 0313 39 968
Tatal net assets, June 30, 2012 ) 142466 § 9400 § %5 § 4§ 14663 8 123§
Condensed Statements of Cash Fows
Net cash provided (used) by:
Operating activities § 105§ am 3§ o 3 () § (14 3 " $ (30) (254)
Investing activities 160 4 ] 3 (1332 2 )
Capital and related financing activities {1733) - (545) - - -
Non-capital financing activities ) (21.20m) 21,203 1,130 (363) M
Net (decreass) increase {16,130) 48 23) 21412 13,032 1,243 (393) (1.043)
Cash and cash equivalents, July 1, 2011 88,790 6,713 1,453 23,549 393 1,043
Cash and cash equivalents, e 30, 2012 § - neo § 1% 0§ - 140§ L8 B § 14 8

(1) Contracts with the Bridgeport Project's municipalities and operator ended on December 31, 2008.

(2) Contracts with the Wallingford Project's municipalities and operator ended on Juse 30, 2010,

47




Connecticut Resources Recovery Ruthority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

Fiscal Year 2011 Mid-Connecticut ~ Southeast SouthWest Property Bridgeport (1) Wallingford (2)
Project Project Division Division Project Project
(3000) ($000) ($006) ($000) (8000) ($000)
Condensed Balance Sheets
Assets:
Current unrestricted assets $ 64453 § 10886 2716 § 15,018 $ 393§ 1,043
Current restricted assets 30,917 2813 - 1,404 - -
Total current assets 95,370 13,699 2,716 16,422 393 1,043
Non-crent assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 7,366 - - 7358 - -
Restricted investments 490 - - 321 - -
Capital assets, net 106,339 - 16,766 -
Other assets, net 23 1,961 - - - -
Total non-current assets 114,218 1,961 - 24 451 -
Total assets $ 209588 § 15660 8 2,716 § 40873 3§ 393§ ©L043
Liabilities:
Current liabilities $ © 19906 $ 4201 § 2589 § 2202 $ - $ 75
Long-term liabilities 37,063 898 - 15,858 - -
Total liabilities 56,969 5,105 2,589 18,060 - 75
Net Assets:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 100,430 - - 16,766 - -

Restricted 22,779 1,228 - 1,128 -

Unrestricted 29,410 9,327 127 4319 393 968
Total net assets 152,619 10,555 127 22813 393 968
Total liabilities and net assets $ 209,588 § 15660 $ 276§ 40873 § 393§ 1,043

Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets

Operating revenues $ 89411 8 25453 § 14361 § 332 % -8 -

Operating expenses 83,388 23,378 14,390 2,399 1317 19,749

Depreciation and amortization expense 17,10 418 - 299 - -
Operating (loss) income (11,078) 1,657 29 644 (1,317 (19,749)

Non-operating revenues (expenses):

Investment income 214 18 2 47 2 2

Other income (expenses), net (1,004} (179) - 32) - (166)

Interest expense (533) (153) - - - -
Net non-operating revenues (expense) (1,323) (314) 2 15 2 (144)
Income (loss) before special item and transfers (12,401) 1,343 27 659 (1,315) (19,893)
Special Item: Gain on early retirement of debt, net - 2,333 - - - -
Transfers in (out) - - 4,194 26 (4,220)

Change in net assets (12,401) 3,676 (27 4,853 (1,289) (24,113)
Total net assets, July 1, 2010 165,020 6,879 154 17,960 1,682 25,081
Total net assets, June 30,2011 $ 152,619 8§ 10555 § 127§ 2813 § 393§ 968
Condensed Statements of Cash Flows
Net cash provided (used) by:

Operating activities $ 14450 § 2743 § 1312 § 07§ (1348) § (20,055)

Investing activities 20 34 1 47 2 22

Capital and related financing activities (20,348) (1,743) - (650) - -

Non-capital financing activities (8] - - 7.840 200 (8,046)
Net (decrease) increase (5,683) 1,034 1373 7,944 (1,146) (28,079)

Cash and cash equivalents, July 1, 2010 94,473 5,679 80 15,605 1,539 29,122
Cash and cash equivalents, June 30, 2011 $ 88790 § 6713 § 1453 § 23549  § 393§ 1,043

(1) Contracts with the Bridgeport Project's municipalities and operator ended on December 31, 2008.

(2) Contracts with the Wallingford Project's municipalities and operator ended on hme 30, 2010.

48




Connecticut Resources Recovery Ruthority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

12. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

Several waste hauling companies have settled
with the Authority for diversion of waste from
the Authority’s Mid-Connecticut Project. As of
June 30, 2012 and 2011, remaining revenues for
wastes to be delivered to the Mid-Connecticut
facility totaled approximately $2.0 million and
$4.8 million; respectively.

13. CONTINGENCIES

Mid-Connecticut Project:

On October 7, 2009, The Metropolitan District
Commission (“MDC”) initiated an arbitration
proceeding against the Authority seeking a
declaratory judgment that the Authority is
responsible  for certain  post-employment
benefits and other costs that MDC may incur
upon the expiration of its contract for the
operation of a portion of the Mid-Connecticut

Project on December 30, 2011. The MDC did

not specify the amount of its monetary claim in
its demand for arbitration, but has separately set
forth the amount as in excess of $60 million;
MDC also has included certain amounts related
to this matter in its monthly invoices for
services. The Authority has denied such alleged
responsibility and disputed such invoiced
amounts. On February 7, 2012, the Authority
sent letters to all Mid-Connecticut Project
municipalities advising them that, in the event
that the Authority is ultimately determined to be
responsible for any portion of MDC’s claimed
costs, each municipality will be responsible for
its pro rata share of such costs. The arbitration
is not proceeding at this time because the
Authority has challenged the impartiality of the
MDC party-appointed arbitrator. MDC filed a
motion in Connecticut Superior Court to compel
the arbitration to proceed, and the Authority
filed a counterclaim requesting that the court
disqualify MDC’s party-appointed arbitrator.
On April 28, 2010, the court ruled that the
parties may appoint non-neutral arbitrators. The
Authority appealed that ruling. On July 12,
- 2011, the Connecticut Appellate Court ruled
that the Superior Court must hold a hearing on
the Authority’s claim that the MDC party-
appointed arbitrator should be disqualified. The

49

lower court held that hearing in December 2011,
and on August 20, 2012, denied the Authority’s
petition to disqualify MDC’s party-appointed
arbitrator. On September 6, 2012, the Authority
filed an appeal of that ruling. The matter is too
preliminary to estimate any potential exposure.

In January 2006, the Authority’s pollution
liability insurance carrier, American
International ~ Specialty Lines  Insurance
Company (“AISLIC”) settled with numerous
commercial and residential neighbors of the
Hartford Landfill who had filed suit against the
Authority in 2001, claiming that the Authority
negligently maintained and operated its Hartford
Landfil and that the Harford Landfill
constituted a public nuisance. On May 4, 2006,
AISLIC initiated a declaratory judgment action
in federal district court seeking a declaration
that AISLIC is not obligated to indemmify the
Authority in connection with the settled lawsuit
and that AISLIC should be awarded the amount
it spent on defense and indemnification of the
Authority. The Authority is defending against
this action, and has counterclaimed, alleging bad
faith and seeking recovery of its attorneys’ fees.
AISLIC filed five dispositive motions in June
2011. On October 24, 2011, the Authority filed
briefs in opposition to AISLIC’s motions,
together with the Authority’s motion for
summary judgment. On March 30, 2012, the
Court denied four of AISLIC’s five motions.
Both AISLIC and the Authority have filed
motions for reconsideration of that ruling. On
September 10, 2012, the Court granted the
Authority’s motion for summary judgment as to
AISLIC’s defense costs, and denied it as to
AISLIC’s indemnity obligations. The matter is
too preliminary to estimate any potential
exposure.

Bridgeport Project:

In the early 1990’s, the Authority was named as
a Potentially Responsible Party in the now-
combined federal and State of New Jersey suits
to recover the costs of remediation of the
landfill known as Combe Fill South. The
Authority’s liability was substantially resolved




Connecticut Resources Recovery Ruthority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

in the spring of 2009 as a result of a mediated
global settlement. However, one of the settling
parties is pursuing a contribution action against
certain non-settling entities. The Authority
continues to monitor remaining case activities to
the extent they may implicate the Authority.

Other Issues and Unasserted Claims and

Assessments:

The MDC has included in several monthly
invoices to the Authority a claim for
reimbursement of certain MDC legal and
consulting fees. The Authority has disputed
these charges on the grounds that they are not
related to the MDC’s obligation to operate,
maintain, and repair the WPF during the term of
the Authority-MDC Agreement.

The Authority is subject to numerous federal,
state and local environmental and other laws and
regulations and management believes it is in
substantial  compliance with all  such
governmental laws and regulations.

Future plan for dismantling and/or major
renovations to the Mid-Connecticut facilities
has not been determined. This matter is too
preliminary to estimate the future costs.

14. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
New Municipal Service Agreement (“MSA”)

The Authority has MSAs with 70 municipalities
for use of the Mid-Connecticut Project facilities.
Under the MSAs, the municipalities commit to
deliver their waste to the Authority and the
Authority commits to disposal of the waste from
the municipalities. Most of the MSAs expire on
November 15, 2012. Several existing Mid-
Connecticut Project towns have signed the new
MSA with the Authority’s Connecticut Solid
Waste System (“CSWS”) effective November
16, 2012, following expiration of the Mid-
Connecticut Project on November 15, 2012. In

.addition.. to these .towns, .. dozens. of - private .

haulers throughout the existing Mid-Connecticut
territory have signed contracts with the CSWS.

50

Mid-Connecticut Bonds

The Authority’s Mid-Connecticut bonds that
had been issued to finance the design,
development, and construction of the Mid-
Connecticut Project will be matured on
November 15, 2012.

15. NEW ACCOUNTING
PRONOUNCEMENTS ISSUED AND
NOT YET ADOPTED

GASB 62

In December 2010, the GASB issued Statement
No. 02, Codification of Accounting and
Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in
Pre-November 30, 1989, FASB and AICPA
Pronouncements (GASB Statement No. 62).
This statement incorporates into the GASB’s
authoritative literature certain accounting and
financial reporting pronouncements issued on or
before November 30, 1989, that do not conflict
with or contradict GASB pronouncements.

This statement also supersedes GASB Statement
No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental
Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting,
thereby eliminating the election provided in
paragraph 7 of that statement for enterprise
funds and business-type activities to apply post-
November 30, 1989, FASB Statements and
Interpretations that do not conflict with or
contradict GASB pronouncements. However,
those entities can continue to apply, as other
accounting literature, post-November 30, 1989,
FASB pronouncements that do not conflict with
or contradict GASB pronouncements, including
this statement.

GASB Statement No. 62 is effective for
financial statements for periods beginning after
December 15, 2011.

- GASB63

In June 2011, the GASB issued Statement No.
63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of
Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources and




Connecticut Resources Recovery Ruthority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

Net Position. This statement provides guidance
for reporting deferred outflows of resources,
deferred inflows of resources, and net position
in a statement of financial position and related
disclosures. This statement is effective for all
state and local governments for periods
beginning after December 15, 2011.

GASB 64

In June 2011, the GASB issued Statement No. 4,
Derivative Instruments: Application of Hedge
Accounting Termination Provisions. This
statement clarifies whether an effective hedging
relationship continues after the replacement of a
swap counterparty or a swap counterparty’s
credit support provider. This statement sets
forth criteria that establish when the effective
hedging relationship continues and hedge
accounting should continue to be applied. This
statement is effective for periods beginning after
June 15, 2011, with earlier application
encouraged.

GASB 65

In March 2012, the GASB issued Statement No.
65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and
Liabilities. This statement establishes
accounting and financial reporting standards
that reclassify, as deferred outflows of resources
or deferred inflows of resources, certain items
that were previously reported as assets and
liabilities and recognizes, as outflows of
resources or inflows of resources, certain items
that were previously reported as assets and
liabilities. This statement also provides
financial reporting guidance related to the
impact of the financial statement elements
deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources, such as changes in the
determination of major fund calculations and
limiting the use of the term deferred in the
financial statements. This statement is effective
for periods beginning after December 15, 2012,
with earlier application encouraged.

GASB 66
In March 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 66,

Technical Corrections — an amendment of
Statements No. 10 and No. 62. This statement

51

establishes clarification on two recently issued
statements; No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting
and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, and
No. 62, Codification of Accounting and
Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in
Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA
Pronouncements. This statement resolves
conflicting guidance created as a result of the
issuance of these two statements. This
statement is effective for periods beginning after
December 15, 2012, with earlier application
encouraged.

GASB 67

In June 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 67,
Financial Reporting for Pension Plans — an
amendment of GASB Statement No. 25. This
Statement replaces the requirements of
Statements No. 25, Financial Reporting for
Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Note
Disclosures for Defined Contribution Plans, and
No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as they relate to
pension plans that are administered through
trusts or equivalent arrangements (hereafter
jointly referred to as trusts) that meet certain
criteria. The requirements of Statements 25 and
50 remain applicable to pension plans that are
not administered through trusts covered by the
scope of this Statement and to defined
contribution plans that provide postemployment
benefits other than pensions. This Statement
also details the note disclosure requirements for
defined contribution pension plans administered
through trusts that meet the identified criteria.
In addition, this Statement requires single-
employer and cost-sharing pension plans to
present certain information for each of the ten
most recent fiscal years about employer and
nonemployer contributing entity obligations for
pensions provided through the pension plan in
required supplementary information.  This
Statement is effective for periods beginning
after June 15, 2013 with early implementation
encouraged. '

GASB 68

In June 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 68,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensions.  The primary objective of this
Statement is to improve accounting and




Connecticut Resources Recovery Ruthority
R Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

financial reporting by state and local
governments for pensions. It also improves
information provided by state and local
governmental employers about financial support
for pensions that is provided by other entities.
This Statement replaces the requirements of
Statements No. 25, Financial Reporting for
Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Note
Disclosures for Defined Contribution Plans, and
No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as they relate to
pension plans that are administered through
trusts or equivalent arrangements (hereafter
jointly referred to as trusts) that meet certain
criteria. The requirements of Statements 25 and
50 remain applicable to pension plans that are
not administered through trusts covered by the
scope of this Statement.

The scope of this Statement also addresses
accounting and financial reporting for pensions
that are provided to the employees of state and
local governmental employers through pension
plans that are administered through trusts that
have certain characteristics as defined in the
Statement. It establishes standards for
measuring and recognizing liabilities, deferred
outflows of resources, deferred inflows of
resources, and expense/expenditures. For
defined benefit pensions, this Statement
identifies the methods and assumptions that
should be used to project benefit payments,
discount projected benefit payments to their
actuarial present value, and attribute that present
value to periods of employee service. Note
disclosure and  required  supplementary
information requirements about pensions also
are addressed. This Statement is effective for
periods beginning after June 15, 2014, with
early implementation encouraged.

Management has not estimated the extent of

potential impact of these statements on the
Authority’s financial statements.

52




137

SLI'EST $ $ SSH'1 $ 889°1¢€ $ PPeL $ ¥€9°C $ LLI'EL $ 8ES' V61 $ L€8°1
SEI621 - §TS'81 £€99°S - 89¢°1 660°€01 €82
9L§°T - - - - 805°T 8 -
£TI'pE - 8€8°01 'S - £P8°L1 -
£p6'S - - - - - £V6°S -
081°8Z - 8£8°01 'S - - 006°T1 -
797°s8 - - 444 - - 8SL'Y8 [114
(6€p'see) - (g61°01) (sov°L) - - (Lz0'o1¢) 18D
10L02H - £61°01 979°L - - $8L°00% L60°T
175°87C - 861 £07°T - - LT6'WTT £€T'T
081°Z61 - SE0°01 429 - - 8S8°SLI 98
LLT'8 - L89°L - - - 06¥ -
SE0'PTL Sl £91°€1 1817 ¥£9°C 609°T1 6E°16 $SS°1
SL8'TT 6 00L 00§ - £v8'¢ £28°S1 -
SL8'7T 6 00L 00§ - £8'S £28's1 -
091°T01 oFH'l £9°T1 189°1 $E€9°T 99L°S 9196 PSS°1
oSty 3 1€1 - - 11 182 vT
0LE"9 - - - - - 0LE'9 -
600°VL 60T - b4 ¥0T'1 (4124 871°8 T
IE€°9L $ $ PET'T $ TEETI $ LEY] $ 0Eb'1 $ £S€°1 $ L£8°9¢S $ 80S°1
®i0], 100f013 100l01g (un ynog) UoIsIAIC] UOISIAICE uotsiAlg 109f01g 100l01g4 pung
pioj3urem uode8pug uoIsIAlg [Iypue Auadorg 1941308 jseaynog INVIAUUO)-PIA] 2=l ETSY
Burpokoay
(spuesnoy [, uy sxefo()
TI0Z 0€ ANNC A0 SV
SLIATHS IONVIVL A0 TTNATHIS DNINIFNOD
€Jo1 omn.m mdNdRIUUL)) Jo 9Je)l$ 2y} Jo nupn u—-o:cQEoU A4
V LI9IgXd ALMOHLAY AYIAODTYI SADINOSHY LADILDANNOD

SLASSY TV.LO.

SLASSY LNIYUND-NON TV.LOL
Jou ‘51509 S0oukNSsI puoq pue JuswdoeAs]
s1qeaidapuon [e10],
ssa180xd ur uoponIsUOY
puey
:9[qeroasdopuoN
Jou ‘sjqassidaq [e10],
uoneroaIdap pajenunooy :$say

Jusuwidinbg
Jued
o[qeroardey
'sjessy [ende)
SUSUNSIAUI PRIILSIY
SLISSY LNITHIND-NON
SLASSY LNIYIND TVLOL

S19SSY PAIOLISeY (8101
sjuspBAINDS Yses pue ysey
1S1958Y PaIoLISIY

SI9SSY PAIOLIISaIU) {8101
sasuadxa predeig
Krojuoauy
S30UBMO][E JO J3U ‘3[qRAIS0DI SHUNOIDY
spuojeAmba Yseo pue ysey

1§39SSY PoIdLISAIU)
SLASSY LNTHYND
SLUASSY



125

TL9'9L [434 STO'LL 0zl 6£5C LLL'E TLO'TS L88
968°0S - 808°S1 - - vz8 yoTHE -
£€81°8 - 65€°L - - P8 - -
78 - - - - 28 - -
6SE°L - 65E°L - - - - -
EIL'TY - 68 - - - Y9T'pE -
00s‘c - - - - - 00s°¢ -
€176 - 613 - - - ¥9L°0€ -
9LL'ST 434 LI 0z1 6£5°T €56°C 808°L1 L88
¥86°'LT [4 - - - 0€6°1 Zv0'91 -
TOL'TT 1 - - - 0€6°1 09L°6 -
058 - - - - - 058 -
862°1 - - - - - 86T°1 -
PEL'Y - - - - - PEL'Y -
T6LL N4 LIT1 41 6€S°C €20°1 99L°T L83
y08'y 081 8¢ 811 €€l £20°1 98¢l 8ZL
8591 09 61 [4 8071 - 01T 651
OEE‘T $ - $ 0911 ¢ - $ - $ - 0LT $ -
ey 109l01g 199{01g () ynog) UOISIALQ UOISIALCT UoISIALg JRETIY R 199l01g
paoj3urjjem HodaFpug uolIsialg Hypue] Auadoug 1S9 43n0g 1SB3YyIN0g NODIUUOD-PIN
Suiokosy
(spuesnoy, ui saejjoq)
T107 ‘0€ ANAL A0 SV

(pouunuo)) SLAAHS ADNVIVI 40 TINATHOS ONINIFINOD
€Jo 7 33eq mondIuuo) Jo 3e)S 3Y) Jo Jup) Judsuoduro)) v
V LIdIHX A ALIOHLINY AYTAODHI SADUNOSTH LADLLDANNOD

SEALLITILVIT IVLOL

STILITIEVIT WIAL-ONOT TV.LOL
$1955® pajoLysal woy s[qeded [ejo],
SIBLIqeL] 1OUI0
S|Iypue| Jo a1ed 2.ns0jo-1sod pue sinsor)
:S198SB POJOLYSaL W0y a|quhed
s1esse pajoLysaun woy aiqeded jeioy
sanljqer] YO
S[[gpue| jo a1ed aasopo~jsod pue ainsop))
1$J9SSE POIOLYSAIUN WO J]qeAed
SHLLITIAVITWIIL-ONOT

SHILITIAVIT INTINND 'TV.LOL
S)esse pajolnsal woy s[qeded e3o
SONHIqRI] JUaLND J9YI0 pur sasuadxe paniosoy
3qefed sjunodoy
S[Igpue| Jo 2183 amso[o-3sod pue ainsofn)
. 10U ‘91qeded spuog
uﬂomm,.a PaIoLYSal w0y ojqede |
§1985@ patoLusatun woy sjqeed [ejo],
) Spuny Iay3o 03 angg
SOBI[IqeI] JUSLING JOYI0 pue sasuadxd panidddy
9[qeded sjunosoy
SIIgpue] Jo a1eo amsopd-jsod pue [B3utivie)
51955 pajoLnsoIun woy s[qedeq
SHLLI'HAVIT INTWIND
SLASSV LAN ANV SALLITIAVIY



se

—

ELI'EST $ - $ - $ SVl § 389°1¢ § 'L § ¥e9'T  § LLT'EL  § 8€S 61 $ LES] $ SLASSY LAN ANV SAILITEVIT 1V.LOL
10S'9LT - - £0T°1 £99%1 pTL'L $6 00v°6 99t THL 056 SLASSY LAN TVLOL
£0E'6¥ - - €021 L6L'T 1951 S6 (4130 89¥°9¢ L99 parLysaiun
0SO°TY - - - 870°1 00 N 880°C YEP'9 - PaloLIsSSy [e10L
SET - z z - B B N 5S¢l - $J9SSE JOU PAJOLISAL Y10
9% - - - - - - - 9 - Spuny 9914138 14T
681 - - - - - - - 681 - pury uoneonps Su1jo£oa1 pIojitey jo A1)
00S - - - - 00S - - - - i 01959 p10oy3ul[[ep, LIUBAOD
089 - - - - - - 089 - - a1nsopo-3s0d [[ypue] 3{[IAJUOR
00L . - - 00L - - - - - asn.aImny [ypue] uoleys
818 - - - 8C¢ - - - 06% - , SUypuel - 1snu JIHQ
000°T . - - - - - - 000°1 - 01089 A31ouq 199[0§
POS‘T - - - - - - - $0S°1 - aoueudjuiew pue Junersdg
oS - - - - - - - $0S°1 - uswsoedal uswidinby
oIS'T . - - - . - - 9151 - Anpory Sunerouss AS1oug
20tz - - N - - - 805'Z - - . puny snusasy

“10] Pa1oLysey
SPEOLI - - - 8£8°01 £99°¢ - - $95°66 €8¢ 1G9 Pofea1 JO Jou s1assE [enden ut pajsaau]

, SLASSV LAN
B0, 193{014 193[01g (un) ymog) UOISIALCY UOISIAIQ uoIsIAlq 199[014 1030014 pung
plojSuriem uodeSpug UOISIAL] lypuey Auadoig 1S9 A UIN0S 1sE9YINOG INOPIBUUOD-PUA Jeiousn)
Butjokosy
(spuesnoy [, u saefo(y)
TI0Z ‘0€ ANNL A0 SV
(penupuod) STATHS AONVIVE 40 TINATHIS ONINITINOD

€Jo ¢odeg INdNRIPUUOY) J0 II8IS ) JO JTUn) aﬁuﬁcQEoU Vv

V LIgIHXA ALOHLAY AYTIAODTY STOUNOSTH LADLLIANNOD



9s

105°9L1 3 - - 3 - 3 €021 g €99°F1 B veLeL 3 6 3 00t°6 3 99°Th1 $ 056 3
661881 - 896 £6€ - - €187 LTl $SS°01 619'7¢1 [ZZ1
(866'11) - (896) (€6¢) £02'1 £99°1 (680°s1) [t49] (ss1'n) (gst'o) (rL)

- - (o6L) (£9¢) 0€1l £98'v1 (0r8't1) - - - -

(866°11) - [€:12)) 0€) €L (002 (6v2) [¢49)] (ss1°1) (€s1'01) (rL)

- - [(A3)) - T (621) 9) 1 i 091 €6
Zre) - - - - - - - - L1g) -

STI - (s¢1) - - (ps1) (6} - €1 0zg €6
61 - | - T ¥4 3 1 € LS1 -
(866°11) - (1) (0g) 1L (1) [(324] (£9) aLi'n (g1g'on) (on)

10°by1 (892) 12 0¢ 90° LL 186 1591 TT6'LT ¥6€7001 L9T

10071 E - - - - - - 1001 - -
610°L - - - LEL vE L6€ 14 8¢l L88°S -
£08°1 - - l - - - L z £6L°1 -

SIy - - - - (61) - - - 1434 -

006 - - - €9 (4] 91 - - S8 -

WT'oL - - - - . 374 - T6€ 8151 L9t

192'911 (892) v 62 9v8 98 £0€ 81l 686°ST L10'9L -
£P0°TET (892) - - LIT'T 9 8€L SI9°€T 154°97 180°06 -
0L9'8 - - - LIT'T 9 g - - pO1°L -

LYS*'9Y - - - - - - - 9LE'81 [TAR:14 -

09807 (892) - - - - - - €01 §70'1T -
996'sS 3 - - S - $ - $ - $ $67 $ 819°€1 $ LS $ 18L'¢e $ - $

|G suoItBuIuI[g ato1g 12lorg (31up} yInog) UOISIAL] UOISIAI UOISIAI(] wafoig 105001 pung
plojBulrem vodeSpug voisag liypuey Auedoig samynog prog i 0PI [e1auany
Sunpakooy
(spuesnoy , ux sxefjo(q)
7102 ‘0€ ANAC AAANT YVAX THL HOA
SLASSY LIAN NI STONVHD ANV SASNAIXT ‘SHANIATI 40 ATNATHIS ON NIFINOD
IN2PIIUTOY) Jo e} Y3 Jo Jup) jusuodwo) y
g LIdIHXd ALTIOHLAY AYFTAODHAA SADUNOSTY LADLLIANNOD

A83A J0 pud $13SSY Ja 1130,
a4 Jo Bunuuidoq ‘sjessy 10N 810,

$)955Y JON ur afuey;
(3n0) ut s1asuely

Sa9jsuB.LY, put we) [813ads a.4053q ($507) dwodu

10N ‘(sesuadx) sanusasy Supsaedp-uoy
asuadxa 150.93u]
(sasuadxa) swoou; 18yi1Q
SWOdUT JUIUNSIAUL

(sosuadxy) sanusasy Supeasd-uon

swoduy (sso) Bupvasdg

sasuadxy Bupeaed( (vrog
VIIIOS 01 uonnqrusiy
$90tAlas feuolesddQ pue saneasUIIpY
[BWISIXD - 53014135 [edar]
STIYPUR] JO 3185 dmsolo-1s0d puw sansol
SONIIIN PUR SOUBUSIUIIA
uoneziowe pue uonealdeq
suonesado s358m prjos

sosuadxg Buperedo

SINuaAYY SunessdQ vjoy
sonuaaal Funesado JoyiQ)
sopes A81ouy
SO
S10quIB)A
sofreyo av1Ateg
sINudARY Bupeasdg



LS

90766 s - $ - $ - $ il $  zTeo'sl $  LEIT $  otr'l $  96IL S 099°TL $ 8051 $ 4834 J0 pua ‘sudeAInba Ysvd pus yse)
0S£'€ZT - £70°1 £6¢ - - 6¥S°€T Al €1L9 0688 6011 183 jo ButuusBaq ‘syuageanbs yses pue yse)
br1v)  § - s (ep0'1) g (¢68) $ 374N $  Teoel s (Iv1e) s (g2 $ £8% s  (og1o1) $ 66 $ sjud[BAINba Y58 PUB 5L UY 358D JoN
(1) - (16L) (€9€) 0€L'l €21z (Loz'12) - - [3) - saAnoY Buroueur jeiide)-uoN Aq pasp] ysey 1oN
- - (16) (£9¢) 0€1°1 1€2°12 Loz'12) - - - - (moyno) / moyut ysey
(€1 - - - - (8) - - - () - 93] PUE 1SOIUI JOYI0)
saAnY Supueul] [ende)-uoy Lq pasy) smolg ysv)
(088‘L1) - - - - (s¥$) - - - (seeLn) - SO1IANOY SuroueuLL Pate|oy puk [ede) Aq pasp) yse) 1oN
(s16'€) - - - - - - - - ST6c) B 199p uuie}-Suoy uo pred jedroutg
(s¢¢) - - - - - - - - (scg) - 199p uLiai-Suoj uo pred 1saa0ju)
(e6L‘11) - - - - - - - - (s6L11) - sjesse [elides Jo uoPONIISU0d pue uonsinboy
(168'1) - - - - [(3$29] - - - (ope‘1) - S3N1]1qe!] 2189 2.n50]9-150d PuE AINSO[D [|1ypuUB] J0f SIUSWIAE Y
¥S - - - - - - - - 129 - awdinbs Jo safes woly spasooly
SaANAY Suppusury parey pus jende)) 4q (pas(y) papravag SMO(Y 4S8
(091°L) - 2 - [4 (zeg'L) 3 [ ¥ 091 - SanIAROY Funsaau Aq (pasp)) paplaoid yse) 1N
(Lse‘L) - - - - (Lset) - - - - - SIUBWISIAU] JO SISBYDING
L6l - 4 - 4 ST £ 1 ¥ 091 - SJUSLLISIAUL U0 I50.93U]
satAnoY Sunsaaug £q (pasq)) papracsyg SALO[ YsBD
606 - (¥s2) (o) ti rie) (802) (vz) 6Ly 050°1 66 soniandy Suneiadg Aq (pasn) papiaoid yse) tan
- 18 N - B - - N - - (18) . SPUMY 19430 0} siuswAed
Gov'D) - - - - - - - (tov*1) - - VYYUDS 01 uonnquisi
(r8€'p) - - - (zL) (9g) (80¢) (zre) (8s) (895°€) - 901135 10§ s2240[dWa O} SIUaLIAE
(L98'671) 89T [€454] (0¢€) (szL) (782) (189) 6sect) (60¥LT) (c6€°28) - 53514105 pue Sp00% 10y sia1jddns o} sjuswAeq
- (18) - - - - - - 18 - SPURY 12YI0 WO} PIAINOA SUSWAB
19s'9¢T & (892) s - $ - $ 806 $ 9 $ 8L $  LL9el $  LPEST $ 08616 $ 081 $ $901A10S SUIPlACId WL PaALedal SyuaUIAE]
sanianoy SunessdQ Aq (pesn) papiacag smopy yseD)
e, suoneulg 1oafo1g 109fo1g (nun yinog) uoIsiAlg uoisialg UOISIALCY 199f01g 10aforg punyg
paojSut|em uodaSplLg uoIsIAIg l1ypue] Ausdoag 182 YIn0g 1seaynog NVIUUCD-PIN |eisuan
Sunpohoay /
(spuesnoy |, ut stefjoq)
7107 ‘0€ ANAL AAANT AVAX THL HOd
SMOTA HSVD 40 TTNATHDS ONINIFINOD
7jo 198eg 1021303uu0)) Jo IS Y} Jo u() Jusuodwo)) y
O LI9IHXH ALROHLAY AdAAODTY SADUNOSTA LAJILLIANNOD



8S

606 $ - $ (D) RG] $ TN $ (o) $ (80D $  (v2) $ 6Ly $  0s0°l $ 66 $ sanlandy 3unesado Aq (pasn) papiaoag yse) N
- [ - - - - - - - - (18) Spuny 13y3o 03 ang
.(sos‘D) (sL) - [474 Ls (80¥) (0s) (8ze'1) (05) L6 SaMHIQEl] SO0 pus s3suadxe parose ‘sjqeded sjunoooy
_ ‘Ut (9583100p) asERIOU]
- (18) - - - - - - - 18 - Spuny 1910 woly eng
(r95°c) - - - (€) (1gD) 43! - (o1 (pese) z 19558 JUSLM U0 puE sasuadxs predarg
(L6€'D - - - - - - - - (L6£7) - : A1ojuaaug
61s'c - - - (602) - SL 65 £85°C 1101 - 1oU "3[qEAI921 STUN00OY
‘Ul 9582.199p (9sealour)
“mo__::nm__ pue sjasse w1 sauety)
L6Y - (8¢1) - (0s1) (6) - €l 00t 18 (sesuadxa) awosur 1o
SIP - - - - (61) - - - pEY - SIHJPUR[ JO 918D 2.1NS0[9-)50d PUR 9INSO[9 10§ UOISIACLY
- LOb - - - - - - - Z6€ Si - SIS0 aduBnss! puoq pue Euan_?ov Jo uoyezioury
. Se8'sT - - - - - 974 - - £0¥°S1 L91 siasse fendes jo uoneroarda
'san1Ano8 Sunelado Ap (pasn) papiaoad yses jou 0)
dwodur (ssop) m::.w._._omo 9[10U0oal 0] sjudUmsSN[pY
(866‘1T) $ - $  {(1v) $  (0%) $ 1L s (1) $ (9D g (¢0) s (en $  (g1gon) $ (o 3 . dwoou (ssof) Funeradpy
oAy Sunesad( £q (pasn) papiaoag yse)
JON 01 dwoduy Awme_‘.c BuneedQ jo voneinduUcdy
18301, suoneurui|g aloig 199f01d (3iun) ynog) uorsiAlg UoIsIAlQ UOISIAL(] 199{01q 199l014 pung .
paogSurjep uodaSpug UOISIALQ 1ypue] Ausdorg 1B3AYIN0S 1seayinog NIOBUUCD-PIA [eausn)
Suipphony
(spuesnoy |, ui saefjo()
T107 *0€ ANNSL AAANA YVAA THL U04
(ponupu0)) SMOTA HSYD A0 TINAAHIS ONINIFINOD
joz owﬁnm uzo_uoo:—_o“u JO elg a4y} jo yun u—;:OQEOU VY
O LI9IHXH

ALROHLAY AYAAODTY SAIUNOSTY LADLLIANNOD



65

061 - - - 820°1 008 - 880°¢ PEV'9 - $13S5E J9U PaJILIISAL [2)0]
6SEL B - 5 BSEL . B N B B $1955% PaJoLISaI JUSLTO-UOU Yy pid aq 0] SATIIqeY| [210],
6SE°L T B N 656 s = N ] - B $]500 o1es 2msofo-jsod ypuey

1S19SSE PI)ILI)SAL JUALIND-UOT IPIM Pred 3q 03 SIP[IqeI] 5537

£V9°TT - - 6 i - - SSLT 6L8°6 - SJOSSE PalOLISal JuaLING ynm pred aq 01 SINIIGe]] [2I0L
605°8 - - 6 - - - SSLT ShL's - SSnMIqE SWO
PEL'Y - - - - - - - PEIY - Isaiaul panooe Suipnjour jou ‘sjqeded spuog

15J985E PAJILLSAL JUDLIND Y4 pred aq 0) SIPIIQRI] 5597

LLT8 - - - L85°L - - - 06v - sjuaUns2AUL

PUE SIUS[EAINDS SED PUE YSED PajoLISal JUSLIND-UOU [B)0 ]
318 - - - E3 - - - 06¥ - : slypue| - 1800 48Q
189'1 - - - 189°1 - - - - - pung 1snn [jypue] projBujem
8L9'S - - - 8LY'S - - - - - PUTYy 1510 [[ypUe] UOYRYS

ISJUSUISIAUI PUE SJUS[EAINDS YSEO PUE YSED PAIOLNSAI JUBLINI-UON

SLS'TT - - 6 00 00$ - £18°C €281 - SIUSEAIND SO PUE YSED PaIOLISA JUSLING [El0 L
3 B - 3 B B - B - - QIBYS ANUIAIL ANpOUNUOy)
s - - - - - - - 8t - spury pejood - 1snn uoiSur(g Jo umo g
L8 - - - - - - - L8 - wnasnjAl
731 - - - - - - - 961 - juawrded j0 sonrerend towolsny
96€ - - - - - - - 96¢ - puny uoneonpa Jujokos piojirey jo A
00S - - - - 00S - - - - 201080 plojBuljjep eireA0)
00L - - - 004 - - - - - 95T 2Ry [[YPUE] UOIAYS
000°1 - - - - - - - 000°1 - MO1089 A1oug 100]e8
1961 - - - - - - - 19p°1 - SPUTY SAI8531 92IAIAS 193(]
$OS°T - - - - - - - 08 1 - adurusjurew pue Funeladpy
POS* - - - - - - - $0S‘1 - Juowedydal uswdinby
LI9'] - - - - - - L19°1 - - aunso}d-1s0d jypuel oIl
1891 - - - - - - - 189°1 - Anoey Sunesousd A81sug
L6L'T - - - - - - - L6LT - Spury 301at9s 1q3(]
6046 - - - - - - 9eTy £81°¢ - puty snuossy

:spusfeainbe yses puw yseo pajoLnsal jusLmny)
1S)9SSE JIU PIIINAISIY

8pE'9IL $ - 3 - $ - $ 8£8°01 $ £99° $ - $ - B ¥95°66 $ £32 $ 1G9P PAIeI2L JO J9U “53osse |epded ul pajsaauy §)asse JON
®10L aforg J9lo1g (nup pnog) uoIsiAl(] UOISIAICY UoISIAL(Y 199fo1g 130014 purn
plojBurep uodadpug UOISIAIY [ypue] Auedolg BIMYINOS sesyInog MONIIULOD-PIN jLA=DetsY :
Fupokooy -
(spuesnoy ], ui sag[jo()
T10Z ‘0€ ANNL A0 SV
SLASSY LAN 40 TTNATHIS ONINIFINOD
3o a8eyq 1MINIUUOY) Jo 3)e3S Y3 Jo jrup) Juduodwo) v

a LISTHXH ALNOHLAY AYIAOCOTY SADUNOSHH LODILLDINNOD



09

10S°9LT $ - $ - £0T'1 $ £99%1 $ veL'L $ <6 $ 00¥°6 $ 99°Thl $ 0s6
€016 - - £0T°1 L6LT 19§°1 $6 TIE9 89¥°9¢€ L99
IST'Y1 - - ST - 81y 6 0909 9819 L£99
88 - - - - - - - 83 -
LI - - - - Ll - - - -
967 - - - - - - - 96T -
6Sp - - - - - - - 394 -
00s - - - - - - - 008 -
8L9 - - 8L9 - - - - - -
£50°T - - - - £9¢ - - 069 -
£g0'r - - - - - - - £€0°1 -
62077 ) . - - - - - 620 -
8SE'7 - - - - - - - 8S€T -
1S£°9 - - - - - - - 18€°9 -
879'L - - - L6L'T - - - 1€8% -
97T $ - $ - - $ - $ £99 $ - $ [4Y4 $ LYETL $ -
[GLXA 102f01g 399[014 () ynog) UOISIAIY UOISTAIQY UOISIAIQ 103(014 109l01g pung
paojBurepmy nodsSpug uotsIAlg {1ypue] Apedoig 1o (Inog 1seayInog MOTRAUOD-PIA fesouany
. Sunakony
(spuesnoyj, u saegoq)
T10Z ‘0€ ANAL 40 SV
(penupuo)) SLASSV LAN 4O ATINATHIS ONINIFNOD
7Jo 7 a3y IM2ddUUCY) Jo NS Yyl jo yupn ucoﬁoQEoU v
q LIGIHXA ALTMOHLAY AYIAODHYA SADANOSAY LODJILDANNOD

SIOSSV 39N [E30

S19S5€ Jou pajonsaun [ejo],
pajeusisopun)
UOTIBIPAUAI 9)]S SMOPEAJA YIN0g
. amsop 10sforg
uswdo[aaap [ypue
. osuadxs uonedp-1sod
SAIDSAL SANENIUL 31SeM DI[OS UOREINDS Fulokosy
Buyohoay
108(01d~1504
340038 Burloy
S1S00 uonSUeL ]
dAt9s31 uoneSr]
suonedyIpouwt ANjoey
2msoo-1sod g1 # gSyH-uoN
se1ouaBunuod sso etming
110§ pajeudisag
iS}OSSE JoU PaoLYsILUf)



BOLLAM, SHEEDY, TORANI & CO. LLP
Certified Public Accountants

New York, New York DR AFT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority
Hartord, Connecticut

We have audited the financial statements of the Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority (Authority) as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, and have issued our report thereon dated September XX, 2012. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of the Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over financial reporting. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Authority’s internal control
over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Authority’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and
correct misstatements on a tirmely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Authority’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined
above.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of
our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

61




This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of Directors, others
within the Authority, and the State of Connecticut and.is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone
other than these specified parties.

New York, New York
September XX, 2012

BOLLAM, SHEEDY, TORANI & CO. LLp Certified Public Accountants

62




TABS5




RESOLUTION REGARDING USE OF THE HARTFORD LANDFILL
CLOSURE RESERVES

WHEREAS, the Authority is responsible for the expenditures associated with the closure
of the bulky waste and ash residue areas and the thirty years of monitoring and
maintenance of the Hartford Landfill; and

WHEREAS, at its August 31, 2003 meeting, the Authority’s Board of Directors
established the Hartford Landfill Closure Reserve to fund all expenses associated with the
landfill’s closure activities ; and

WHEREAS, at its May 31, 2012 meeting, the Authority’s Board of Directors approved
the President to enter into the Standard Contract associated with Connecticut Light and
Power’s RFP for the purchase and sale of Connecticut Class 1 Renewable Energy Credits
from low or zero emission projects; and

WHEREAS, the Authority submitted a bid in response to the RFP for Class 1 Renewable
Energy Credits that will be generated by CRRA’s proposed solar landfill cap and will
help offset the expenses associated with the Harford Landfill; and

WHEREAS, the Authority was selected as a winning bidder and signed and submitted
the Standard Contract to CL&P; and

WHEREAS, the Standard Contract with Connecticut Light and Power has certain costs
associated with it, including the requirement that the Authority post a financial guaranty
in the amount of $34,166, refundable upon completion of the solar landfill capping
project; and

WHEREAS: the Hartford Landfill Closure Reserve has sufficient funds for these
activities.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT:

RESOLVED: that the Board of Directors approves the use of the Hartford Landfill
Closure Reserve for expenses associated with the Standard Contract for the zero
emissions renewable energy credit program of the Connecticut Light and Power
Company.




TAB 6




RESOLUTION REGARDING DELIVERY OF COVER SOILS
TO THE HARTFORD LANDFILL

RESOLVED: That the President is hereby authorized to enter into an agreement
with LaRosa Construction Company, Inc. for delivery of soil to be used as
contouring and cover material at the Hartford Landfill, and as approved by the
Connecticut Department of Energy & Environmental Protection, substantially as
discussed and presented at this meeting.

FURTHER RESOLVED: That the revenue received from this contract will be
deposited into the Hartford Landfill Post Closure Reserve.




Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority

Contract Summary for Contract
Entitled

Special Waste Cover Soils Letter Agreement

Presented to the CRRA Board on: September 27, 2012

Vendor/ Contractor(s): LaRosa Construction Company, Inc.
Effective date: Upon Execution

Contract Type/Subject matter: Agreement. Delivery of CTDEEP

approved soil to the Hartford Landfill to
be used as grading and contouring

material.

Facility (ies) Affected: Hartford Landfill

Original Contract: This is the original contract

Term: Through May 31, 2013 or upon CRRA’s
decision to terminate

Contract Dollar Value: $990,000 (estimated based on 90,000
tons at $11/ton).
This is a REVENUE Contract.

Amendment(s): None

Term Extensions: Not applicable

Scope of Services: Delivery of CTDEEP approved soil to

the Hartford Landfill to be used as
grading and contouring material.
Generator — City of Hartford.

Other Pertinent Provisions: None




Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority
Hartford Landfill
Delivery of Cover Soil

September 27, 2012

Executive Summary

In 2011, the Board of Directors approved a resolution to contract with the City of
Hartford to accept approximately 90,000 tons of CTDEEP approved soil generated during
the City’s North and South Meadows Flood Control Pond Dredging Project at the
Hartford Landfill for use as grading and contouring material, and, to deposit revenues
received from the contract into the Hartford Landfill Post Closure Reserve.

In accordance with Section 5.11 (Market Driven Purchases and Sales) of CRRA’s
Procurement Policies and Procedures, this is to request that the CRRA Board of Directors
authorize the President to enter into an agreement with the City of Hartford’s selected
contractor, LaRosa Construction Company, Inc. for the delivery of soil at the negotiated
price.

Discussion

In 2011, as CRRA was secking CTDEEP approval to install an exposed membrane solar
cap at its Hartford Landfill, the City of Hartford and CRRA negotiated a discounted price
of $11/ton for the City to dispose of soil to be removed from the City’s North and South
Meadows Flood Control Ponds. At its October 27, 2011 regular meeting, CRRA’s Board
of Directors approved a resolution to contract with the City to accept approximately
90,000 tons of CTDEEP approved soil generated during the Project at the Hartford
Landfill for use as grading and contouring material, and to deposit the revenues from the
contract into the Hartford Landfill Post Closure Reserve. Acceptance of the soil would
be in accordance with CRRA’s Special Waste Soil Acceptance Plan.

Since that time, the City of Hartford issued a Request for Bids and selected a contractor,
LaRosa Construction Company, Inc., to complete the project. Instead of contracting
directly with the City as contemplated in the resolution approved October 27, 2011,
CRRA will now contract with the City’s contractor, LaRosa Construction Company, Inc.

Financial Summary

This will provide up to approximately $990,000 in revenue to the Mid-Connecticut
project (90,000 tons at $11.00 per ton). These revenues will be deposited in the Hartford
landfill post closure reserve account to ensure adequate funding of CRRA’s post closure
care obligation for the Hartford Landfill.




TAB 7




RESOLUTION REGARDING DELIVERY OF COVER SOILS
TO THE HARTFORD LANDFILL

RESOLVED: That the President is hereby authorized to enter into an agreement
with Empire Paving, Inc. for delivery of soil to be used as contouring and cover
material at the Hartford Landfill, and as approved by the Connecticut Department
of Energy & Environmental Protection, substantially as discussed and presented
at this meeting.

FURTHER RESOLVED: That the revenue received from this contract will be
deposited into the Hartford Landfill Closure Reserve.




Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority

Contract Summary for Contract

Entitled

Special Waste Cover Soils Letter Agreement

Presented to the CRRA Board on:
Vendor/ Contractor(s):
Effective date:

Contract Type/Subject matter:

Facility (ies) Affected:
Original Contract:

Term:

Contract Dollar Value:

Amendment(s):

Term Extensions:

Scope of Services:

Other Pertinent Provisions:

September 27, 2012

Empire Paving, Inc.

August 13, 2012

Agreement. Delivery of CTDEEP
approved soil to the Hartford Landfill to
be used as grading and contouring
material.

Hartford Landfill

This is the original contract

Through August 31, 2013 or upon
CRRA’s decision to terminate

$1,000,000 (estimated based on up to
50,000 tons at $20/ton).

This is a REVENUE Contract.

None

Not applicable

Delivery of CTDEEP approved soil to
the Hartford Landfill to be used as

grading and contouring material.
Generator — State of Connecticut DOT.

None




Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority
Hartford Landfill
Delivery of Cover Soil

September 27, 2012

Executive Summary

CRRA has negotiated a contract with Empire Paving to deliver up to 50,000 tons of
CTDEEP approved soil generated in the Hartford to New Britain Busway Project to the
Hartford Landfill for use as grading and contouring material.

In accordance with Section 5.11 (Market Driven Purchases and Sales) of CRRA’s
Procurement Policies and Procedures, this is to request that the CRRA Board of Directors
authorize the President to enter into an agreement with the Empire Paving, Inc. for the
delivery of soil at the negotiated price.

Discussion

Although the Hartford landfill ceased accepting solid waste on December 31, 2008 and
no longer needs soil for daily cover, CRRA continues to need soil to support landfill
closure activities, and is permitted to accept CTDEEP approved soil to shape and grade
the landfill surface in preparation for final closure.

Based on CRRA’s need for CTDEEP approved soils to support landfill closure activities,
and in accordance with Section 5.11 (Market Driven Purchases and Sales) of CRRA’s
Procurement Policies and Procedures, CRRA management periodically identifies
prospective sources of non-virgin soils, acceptable to CTDEEP, that can be used as cover
and contouring materials for the landfill closure, and for which a disposal charge can be
assessed to the generator or deliverer of the soil. CRRA then negotiates a disposal price
for the soil with the company that generates or otherwise is managing such soil. CRRA
staff originally established a list of approximately 20 companies (e.g., construction
contractors, environmental remediation companies, environmental consultants) and
periodically contacts companies to determine if they have quantities of such soil for
shipment to the landfill.

In order to reach out to more potential soil suppliers, in July 2010, staff advertised an
“Expression of Interest for Soils” in the following publications throughout Connecticut:

Connecticut Post
Hartford Courant
Manchester Journal Inquirer




New Haven Register

Waterbury Republican-American
LaVoz Hispania de Connecticut
Northeast Minority News

Additionally, the Expression of Interest for Soils was submitted for posting on the DAS
website and the Environmental Professionals of Connecticut website, as well as CRRA’s
website.

From July 2010 through 2011, staff received over 60 inquiries from owners, contractors,
and consultants with potential sources of soil. Based on quantity, soil composition, the
estimated delivery time frame, receipt of CTDEEP approval of the soil for use as cover
material, and the Mid-Connecticut Project Permitting, Disposal and Billing Procedures,
CRRA staff make a determination whether or not the soil would be of use, and if so,
negotiate a tip fee for soil delivered to the landfill with the generator or their
representative.

Of the more than 60 inquiries, CRRA contracted with 5 contractors at a price of $15-
$16/ton for similar soil and has accepted approximately 41,000 tons in aggregate from
those contractors since July 2010. In late 2011, CTDEEP approved a revision to CRRA’s
Hartford Landfill Closure Plan which modifies the landfill cap to incorporate a Solar PV
installation on top of the landfill. With the approval of its revised closure plan, and based
on an updated topographic survey performed in December 2011, the landfill requires
additional grading and contouring soil in preparation for the final capping system. In
October 2011, CRRA’s Board of Directors approved a contract to accept approximately
90,000 tons of soil from the City of Harford for a price of $11/ton. Delivery of that soil
was originally scheduled to occur during the spring/summer 2012, but is now scheduled
to occur from the fall of 2012 through the spring of 2013.

In February 2012, CRRA was contacted by CTDOT regarding 80,000 to 150,000 tons of
excess soil to be removed from its New Haven Harbor Crossing project and up to 15,000
tons of soil to be removed from its West Haven Train Station Project. CTDOT stated that
it had some potential future no-cost outlets for the soil, but stated it would be willing to
move the soil to CRRA if the price was competitive and if CRRA could commit to a
Jarge volume. CRRA staff, knowing that additional soil was needed for grading and
contouring in advance of final closure, proposed a price of $11/ton, the same price that
was recently negotiated with the City of Hartford, which CTDOT accepted. At its May
2012 meeting, CRRA’s Board of Directors approved contracts to accept soil from each of
these projects. Since May 2012, CTDOT has delivered over 85,000 tons of soil from
these two projects.

In May, 2012, CRRA received an inquiry from a consultant involved in the CTDOT’s
Hartford to New Britain Busway Project (Project). The consultant stated that the Project
would be generating excess soil that would need to be disposed of. CRRA staff received
information that indicated the soil was already approved for daily cover at one or more




Massachusetts landfills for a Transportation and Disposal (T&D) price of approximately
$23/ton.

Knowing this T&D price, CRRA staff quoted a Disposal price of $20/ton. This price was
based on CRRA’s estimate that the cost of Transportation from the Project to the
Hartford landfill is approximately $3-$4/ton, so a $20 Disposal price would bring the
T&D price to the Hartford landfill in line with the current T&D price for Massachusetts
landfills. Although the T&D prices are in line, the Hartford landfill offers several
advantages over Massachusetts landfills:

1) The closer proximity of the Hartford landfill to the project means fewer trucks are
required to move an equivalent amount of soil on a daily basis, simplifying truck
scheduling.

2) There is less risk of traffic related delays.

3) The Hartford landfill can consistently accept large quantities of soil, while
Massachusetts landfills may be limited in the amount of soil they can accept
based on daily cover needs.

In August 2012, the Empire Paving, Inc. accepted the Disposal price of $20/ton and
CRRA executed the contract with Empire Paving, Inc.

Financial Summary

This will provide up to approximately $1,000,000 in revenue to the Mid-Connecticut
project (50,000 tons at $20.00 per ton). These revenues will be deposited in the Hartford
landfill closure reserve account to ensure the cost of CRRA’s proposed solar landfill cap
is fully funded.




TAB 8




RESOLUTION REGARDING A LETTER AGREEMENT
FOR THE SALE OF BALED OLD CORRUGATED
CARDBOARD AND LOOSE CORRUGATED
CARDBOARD AND OLD NEWSPAPER

WHEREAS: The municipalities that constitute the Southwest Regional
Recycling Operating Committee deliver source separated baled and loose old
cardboard and loose old newspaper to CRRA’s Stratford Intermediate Processing

Center and;

WHEREAS: Source separated cardboard and newspaper commodities garner

higher revenues and avoid processing and transportation costs;

WHEREAS: CRRA is party to an Agreement for Operation, Maintenance and
Transportation Services for the Stratford Intermediate Processing Center with

City Carting, Inc. therefore;

RESOLVED: That the President is hereby authorized to execute a second Letter
Agreement for the Acceptance of Baled and Loose Old Corrugated Cardboard and

Loose Old Newspaper with City Carting, Inc.




Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority

Contract Summary for Contract

Entitled

Letter Agreement for the Acceptance of Baled Old Corrugated Cardboard and
Loose Old Corrugated Cardboard and Old Newspaper #6

Presented to the CRRA Board on:
Vendor/ Contractor(s):
Effective date:

Contract Type/Subject matter:

Facility (ies) Affected:

Original Contract:
Term:

Contract Dollar Value:

Amendment(s):
Term Extensions:

Scope of Services:

Other Pertinent Provisions:

September 27, 2012

City Carting, Inc.

Upon Execution

Letter Agreement. Purchase of
corrugated cardboard and old
newspaper FOB from the Stratford
Recycling Facility

Stratford Recycling Facility

2" consecutive Letter Agreement with
City Carting

Through June 30, 2013

$75,000 (estimated based on current
market pricing).

This is a REVENUE Contract.

None

Not applicable

Purchase of baled and loose old
corrugated cardboard and loose old
newspaper #6 grade FOB Stratford
facility.

None




Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority

Sale of Baled Old Corrugated Cardboard and Loose
Old Corrugated Cardboard and Old Newspaper

September 27, 2012

Executive Summary

CRRA has executed a second Letter Agreement between CRRA and City Carting, Inc.
(City) that allows City to purchase baled old corrugated cardboard (OCC), loose OCC
and loose old newspaper #6 (ONP), FOB from the Stratford IPC. The baled OCC comes
from the Fairfield transfer station. The loose OCC and ONP#6 is delivered from a
number of towns in the Southwest Recycling Operating Committee (SWEROC). Pricing
is adjusted monthly according to the first month’s publication of the Official Board
Markets “Yellow Sheet” New England Region Index (low-side pricing).

In accordance with Section 5.11 (Market Driven Purchases and Sales) of CRRA’s
Procurement Policies and Procedures, this is to inform the CRRA Board of Directors that
the President entered into an agreement with City Carting, Inc. for the purchase of OCC
and ONP at the negotiated price.

Discussion

It is important to note that CRRA will only sell City Carting these fiber commodities
when the pricing City Carting has agreed to pay exceeds the amount CRRA would
receive from FCR/ReCommunity under the Mid-CT IPC Operating Agreement. For
example, the current low-side Yellow Sheet price for baled OCC in the New England
region is $100.00 per ton. For baled OCC, City Carting has agreed to pay $10.00 below
that index or $90.00 per ton. For loose OCC, City Carting has agreed to pay $40.00
below that index or $60.00 per ton. Per the Mid-CT IPC Operating Agreement,
FCR/ReCommunity would compensate CRRA $19.00 over the scale in Hartford plus a
fixed OCC share of $6.50 for a total of $25.50. Therefore, City Carting’s pricing for OCC
under the Letter Agreement is more favorable to CRRA. Moreover, City Carting’s
pricing includes the cost of transportation which decreases CRRA’s costs.

Specifically, City Carting has agreed to pay the following for baled OCC, loose OCC and
loose ONP#6:




Baled OCC

For baled OCC, $10.00 below the per ton low side pricing for OCC in the New England
Region listed on the Official Board Markets “Yellow Sheet” that is published during the
first week of every month for all baled OCC. CRRA shall issue an invoice with the
corresponding tons and ticket number from CRRA’s Stratford scale and the invoice is
payable with fifteen (15) business days upon receipt. For purposes of example, if the low
side pricing for OCC in the New England Region published on the Yellow Sheet for the
first week of the month equals $100.00 per ton, City Carting will be issued an invoice for
$90.00 times the tons of baled OCC weighed at CRRA’s Stratford scale and transported
by City Carting to their facility during that month.

Loose OCC

For loose OCC, $40.00 below the per ton low side pricing for OCC in the New England
Region listed on the Official Board Markets “Yellow Sheet” that is published during the
first week of every month for all loose OCC transported by City Carting to their facility.
CRRA shall issue an invoice with the corresponding tons and ticket number from
CRRA’s Stratford scale and the invoice is payable with fifteen (15) business days upon
receipt. For purposes of example, if the low side pricing for OCC in the New England
Region published on the Yellow Sheet for the first week of the month equals $100.00 per
ton, City Carting will be issued an invoice for $60.00 times the tons of loose OCC
weighed at CRRA’s Stratford scale and transported by City Carting to their facility
during that month.

Loose ONP

For loose ONP#6, $40.00 below the per ton low side pricing for ONP#6 in the New
England Region listed on the Official Board Markets “Yellow Sheet” that is published
during the first week of every month for all loose ONP#6 transported by City Carting to
their facility. CRRA shall issue an invoice with the corresponding tons and ticket number
from CRRA’s Stratford scale and the invoice is payable with fifteen (15) business days
upon receipt. For purposes of example, if the low side pricing for ONP#6 is $100.00 per
ton, City Carting will be issued an invoice for $60.00 times the tons of loose ONP#6
weighed at CRRA’s Stratford scale and transported by City Carting to their facility
during that month. Current ONP pricing for the #6 grade is only $35.00 per ton so CRRA
would obviously not sell to City until the pricing rose to a level that would benefit CRRA
beyond what we receive under the FCR/ReCommunity Agreement at Mid-CT.

* The term of this Letter Agreement is one year and expires on June 30, 2013.




Financial Summary

The initial Agreement with City Carting resulted in just over $80,000.00 in revenues to
the Recycling Division during the nine months of FY 12 it was in effect. Fiber pricing
has softened considerably during the past few months and is expected continue to soften.
Tn recognition of lower pricing forecasts we estimate that this Agreement will provide up
to approximately $75,000.00 in revenue to the Recycling Division (average monthly tons
from FY 12 x 20 year average OCC per ton price of $67.00 net processing costs).




TABY9




RESOLUTION REGARDING THE NEW PILOT AGREEMENT WITH THE
CITY OF HARTFORD

WHEREAS, Connecticut General Statutes Section 22a-270 provides that the Authority
shall be exempt from state and local taxes but may enter into agreements to make
payment in lieu of taxes (“PILOT”); and

WHEREAS, the agreement between the City of Hartford and CRRA pursuant to which
CRRA pays a PILOT to the City will expire November 15, 2012; and

WHEREAS, CRRA acknowledges the impact of its South Meadows operations on the
City of Hartford, and intends to continue to pay a PILOT to abate that impact; and

WHEREAS, the expiration of the long term Mid-Connecticut Project municipal
agreements, historically low wholesale electric rates, and the prospective permitting of
new out-of-state transfer facilities raise concerns regarding the continued viability of
CRRA’s South Meadows facilities;

NOW THEREFORE, it is hereby

RESOLVED: CRRA will pay a PILOT to the City of Hartford, in an amount to be
determined on an annual basis as part of CRRA’s budgeting process; and

FURTHER RESOLVED: That, subject to the requirements of each annual budget, the
amount of the PILOT shall be calculated as follows:




CRRA shall retain an appraiser who is familiar with the area and has expertise in appraising the
type of facility under consideration, who shall perform a fair market valuation of the facility, the
real estate, and appurtenances owned by CRRA in Hartford. The City of Hartford shall be free to
retain its own appraiser with similar attributes to provide an independent appraisal of said
facilities. Should the City of Hartford hire its own appraiser, appraisals provided by said
appraiser shall be given consideration by CRRA.

The annual PILOT shall be calculated by multiplying seventy percent (70%) of the appraised
value of the facility by the applicable municipal mill rate then in effect, provided that such
amount is according to the number of days of such year that the agreement is in effect. Payment
of the PILOT shall be due to the City in semi-annual installments on January 3 1* and July 31%.

CRRA acknowledges that this new method for determining a PILOT stated above will result in
lower payments to the City of Hartford. CRRA undertakes to diminish this impact by reducing
the difference between the amount of the current PILOT payment and that of the new PILOT
payment based upon the above stated formula, incrementally by twenty percent (20%) yearly for
a period of five years.

The actual amount of the PILOT to be paid to the City will be determined each year in
accordance with the requirements of the CRRA as determined by the Board of Directors of the
CRRA in its annual budget approval, and paid to the City in semi-annual installments on January
31% and July 31°%.




TAB 10




CONNECTICUT RESOURCES RECOVERY AUTHORITY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DISCUSSION OF CRRA’S MEMBERSHIP IN THE
THE CONNECTICUT CONFERENCE OF MUNICIPALITIES

September 27,2012




Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority

Summary for CRRA Municipal Business Associate membership in the
Connecticut Conference of Municipalities

Presented to the Board of

Directors on: September 27, 2012

Vendor: Connecticut Conference of Municipalities

Effective date: July 1, 2012

Contract type/subject matter: Participation in the Connecticut Conference of Municipalities and

its activities, including the CCM Convention & Expo and the CCM
Annual Meeting

Total expenditures: Estimated $2,700




Since 2005 CRRA has participated in activities of the Connecticut Conference of Municipalities as part
of its ongoing outreach to customer cities and towns, including the annual CCM Convention & Expo,
and since 2009 CRRA has been a Municipal Business Associate of CCM, which has afforded CRRA
additional opportunities to interact with mayors, first selectmen, town managers and other municipal
officials.

The total cost of CRRA’s participation has been less than $2,700 annually, including membership fees
and costs related to the CCM Convention & Expo. Because CCM has helped fortify communication
between CRRA and its customer municipalities, funds have historically come from the Authority
Communications Services (01-001-501-52118) budget. Management anticipated this expenditure and
included it in its development of the FY 2013 budget.

Management has found these activities invaluable in fostering and strengthening relationships with the
leaders of its cities and towns. Further, on many occasions CCM has helped CRRA with its outreach to
legislators.

However, management has reassessed its involvement with CCM after events of the 2012 legislative
session, when management became aware that CCM was actively lobbying in support of HB 5540,
which was interpreted as giving private haulers more freedom to export trash to out-of-state landfills in
contravention of the state Solid Waste Management Plan and, more importantly, to the detriment of the
Mid-Connecticut Project system and, by extension, the cities and towns Mid-Conn serves. Further,
management recently became aware of a letter from CCM Executive Director James Finley to the
Commissioner Energy and Environmental Protection which read, in part, “[w]e urge DEEP to
immediately stop mandating adherence to the ‘recommended’ (solid-waste) disposal hierarchy.”

Management has always been aware that CCM’s policy decisions are made by its member cities and
towns, but when issues may benefit some towns but at the expense of others, as we believe the increased
exporting of trash would do, CCM generally takes no position. That was obviously not the case in this
matter.

These expenditures qualify for the “proprietary, patent or intellectual property rights” exception to the
CRRA Procurement Policy & Procedure as defined in Section 3.1.2.3 and, because of this exception and
the dollar amount involved, do not require approval of the CRRA Board of Directors.

Management has considered this matter carefully and still believes that the advantages of involvement
with CCM are worth preserving. The CRRA Board of Directors Policies & Procurement Committee
agreed with this assessment at its meeting on Sept. 13, but before proceeding with renewing its
membership in CCM, management would like to bring this concemn to the Board and solicit the Board’s
input on whether and how CRRA might better leverage its membership in CCM.




